TOYOTA MOTOR CORP/ Form F-4/A August 31, 2011 Table of Contents

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 31, 2011.

Registration No. 333-175524

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

PRE-EFFECTIVE AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO FORM F-4 REGISTRATION STATEMENT

UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

TOYOTA JIDOSHA KABUSHIKI KAISHA

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

TOYOTA MOTOR CORPORATION

(Translation of Registrant s name into English)

Edgar Filing: TOYOTA MOTOR CORP/ - Form F-4/A Japan Not Applicable (State or other jurisdiction of (Primary Standard Industrial (I.R.S. Employer incorporation or organization) **Classification Code Number) Identification No.)** 1 Toyota-cho, Toyota City Aichi Prefecture 471-8571 Japan +81-565-28-2121 (Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant s principal executive offices) Toyota Motor Sales, U.S.A., Inc. 19001 South Western Avenue Torrance, CA 90501 U.S.A. (310) 468-4000 Attention: Christopher P. Reynolds (Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

Copies to:

Masahisa Ikeda

Shearman & Sterling LLP

Fukoku Seimei Building

2-2-2, Uchisaiwaicho

Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0011

Japan

+81-3-5251-1601

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: As soon as practicable after the effective date of this Registration Statement.

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

If applicable, place an X in the box to designate the appropriate rule provision relied upon in conducting this transaction:

Exchange Act Rule 13e-4(i) (Cross-Border Issuer Tender Offer) "

Exchange Act Rule 14d-1(d) (Cross-Border Third-Party Tender Offer) "

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of Each Class of		Proposed Maximum Offering	Proposed Maximum Aggregate	
	Amount to be			Amount of
Securities to be Registered (1)	Registered	Price per Unit	Offering Price	Registration Fee
Shares of Common Stock of Toyota	436,820(1)	Not applicable	\$33,857,117(2)	\$3,930(3)

- (1) Based upon the estimated number of shares of the Registrant s common stock that may be allocated to U.S. holders of Kanto common stock in connection with the statutory share exchange. Such estimate has been calculated by multiplying 8,596,561, which is the maximum number of shares of the Registrant s common stock that may be allocated in the share exchange, by a fraction, of which the numerator is 3,548,964, which is the number of shares of Kanto common stock held of record by U.S. holders on March 31, 2011 (the most recent date for which information with respect to such record holders can be determined), and the denominator is 69,843,137, which is the total number of issued shares of Kanto common stock as of such date.
- (2) Estimated solely for the purposes of calculating the registration fee pursuant to Rule 457(f) and Rule 457(c) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, based on the market value of the securities of Kanto to be exchanged in the share exchange for securities of the Registrant, by taking \(\frac{\pmathcal{x}}{769}\), which is the average of the high and low prices per share of Kanto common stock as reported on the Tokyo Stock Exchange as of July 8, 2011 (converted into dollars based on \(\frac{\pmathcal{x}}{80.64} = U.S.\(\frac{\pmathcal{x}}{1.00}\), which is the noon buying rate for cable transfers in Japanese yen as certified for customs purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York as in effect on such date), multiplied by 3,548,964, which is the total number of shares of Kanto common stock held of record by U.S. holders on March 31, 2011 (the most recent date for which information with respect to Kanto U.S. record holders can be determined).
- (3) Previously paid.

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until this Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

The information in this preliminary prospectus is not complete and may be changed. These securities may not be sold until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This preliminary prospectus is not an offer to sell nor does it seek an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Subject to Completion Dated August 31, 2011

Prospectus

Toyota Motor Corporation

Offer to Exchange Shares of Common Stock of Kanto Auto Works, Ltd. for Shares of Common Stock of Toyota Motor Corporation

The boards of directors of Toyota Motor Corporation, or Toyota, and Kanto Auto Works, Ltd., or Kanto, have agreed to a share exchange between the two companies under the Companies Act of Japan. On July 13, 2011, Toyota and Kanto entered into a share exchange agreement that sets forth the share exchange ratio and the other terms of the share exchange. In the share exchange, each shareholder of Kanto will receive 0.25 shares of Toyota common stock for each share of Kanto common stock that such shareholder holds.

Based on the number of shares of Kanto common stock issued as of September 30, 2011, Toyota expects to allocate shares of its common stock in connection with the share exchange. Approximately % of those shares will be offered to holders of Kanto common stock who are resident in the United States. Shares of Toyota common stock that will be used in the share exchange are currently expected to consist of treasury stock of Toyota.

The share exchange is subject to the approval of the share exchange agreement by the shareholders of Kanto. See The Share Exchange for a further discussion of the terms and conditions of the share exchange. Under the current schedule, if the shareholders of Kanto approve the share exchange agreement and the share exchange agreement does not otherwise cease to have effect in accordance with the provisions therein, the share exchange is expected to become effective on January 1, 2012.

This document has been prepared for the holders of Kanto common stock who are resident in the United States to provide them with detailed information of the share exchange and the shares of Toyota common stock to be delivered in connection with the share exchange. You are encouraged to read this prospectus in its entirety.

The extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto, at which holders of Kanto common stock will vote on the share exchange agreement, is currently scheduled to be held on , 2011 at , in . Holders of Kanto common stock of record as of the close of business on September 30, 2011 will be entitled to vote at this meeting. To attend and vote at the extraordinary meeting of shareholders, Kanto shareholders must follow the procedures outlined in the convocation notice and the mail-in voting card and other voting and reference materials that will be distributed by Kanto.

Shares of Toyota common stock are traded on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, the Nagoya Stock Exchange and three other regional stock exchanges in Japan and on the London Stock Exchange. Toyota s American Depositary Shares, or ADSs, each representing two shares of Toyota common stock, are listed on the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, under the ticker symbol TM. On August 30, 2011, the last reported sale price of

shares of Toyota common stock on the Tokyo Stock Exchange was \(\frac{4}{2}\),721 per share, and the last reported sale price of the ADSs on the NYSE was \(\frac{5}{2}\).

You may have dissenters rights in connection with the share exchange under Japanese law. See page 31 for a discussion of your dissenters rights, if any.

You should consider carefully the <u>risk factors</u> beginning on page 7 of this prospectus.

Kanto is not asking for a proxy and you are not required to send a proxy.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is , 2011.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
References to Additional Information	iii
About this Prospectus	iii
Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements	iv
Questions and Answers about the Share Exchange	vi
<u>Summary</u>	1
Risk Factors	7
Selected Financial Data of Toyota	10
Market Price and Dividend Information	12
Exchange Rates	15
Extraordinary Meeting of Kanto Shareholders	16
The Share Exchange	18
Regulation Programme Regulation	34
Major Shareholders	36
<u>Taxation</u>	38
Comparison of Shareholders Rights	46
<u>Experts</u>	47
Validity of Toyota Shares	48
Where You Can Find More Information	49
Incorporation of Documents by Reference	49
Enforceability of Civil Liabilities	51
Appendix A: English translation of the Share Exchange Agreement	
Appendix B: English translation of the Fairness Opinion Delivered by Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd.	
Appendix C: English translation of Selected Articles of the Companies Act of Japan	

ii

REFERENCES TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This prospectus is part of a registration statement on Form F-4, which includes additional important business and financial information about Toyota and Kanto that is not included in or delivered with this prospectus. This information is available to you without charge upon written or oral request. If you would like to receive any of the additional information, please contact:

Yuji Maki Accounting Division Toyota Motor Corporation 1 Toyota-cho, Toyota City Aichi, 471-8571 Japan

Telephone: +81-565-28-2121

Akira Kawana Legal Affairs & Property Control Department, General Administration Division Kanto Auto Works, Ltd. 1501 Misyuku, Susono Shizuoka, 410-1198 Japan

Telephone: +81-55-996-2000

Please note that copies of documents provided to you will not include exhibits, unless the exhibits are specifically incorporated by reference into the documents or this prospectus.

IN ORDER TO OBTAIN TIMELY DELIVERY, YOU SHOULD MAKE YOUR REQUEST NO LATER THAN , 2011, WHICH IS FIVE BUSINESS DAYS BEFORE YOU MUST MAKE A DECISION REGARDING THE SHARE EXCHANGE.

For additional information about Toyota and Kanto, see Where You Can Find More Information.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

As used in this prospectus, references to Toyota are to Toyota Motor Corporation, and references to Kanto are to Kanto Auto Works, Ltd., in each case on a consolidated basis except where the context otherwise requires. References to the Toyota group are to the group of companies centered around Toyota and including Toyota s subsidiaries and affiliates involved in the development and manufacture of Toyota vehicles. Also, references to the share exchange are to the proposed share exchange between Toyota and Kanto.

As used in this prospectus, except where the context otherwise requires, references to the shareholders meeting of Kanto or to the meeting of Kanto shareholders are to the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto that is scheduled to take place on , 2011, at which Kanto s shareholders will vote on the share exchange agreement and certain related matters. See Extraordinary Meeting of Kanto Shareholders for a more detailed discussion of the shareholders meeting of Kanto.

In this prospectus, references to dollars and \$ mean U.S. dollars unless otherwise indicated, references to euro, Euro and mean the currence those member states of the European Union which are participating in the European Economic and Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty on European Union, and references to yen and ¥ mean Japanese yen. This prospectus contains a translation of some Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollars solely for your convenience.

Unless otherwise specified, the financial information presented in this prospectus and the consolidated financial statements of Toyota, which are included in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus, are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, or U.S. GAAP. References to fiscal 2011 are to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 and references to other fiscal years have the corresponding meanings.

iii

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and documents incorporated by reference contain forward-looking statements. The U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking information to encourage companies to provide prospective information about themselves without fear of litigation so long as the information is identified as forward-looking and is accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected in the information.

Forward-looking statements appear in a number of places in this prospectus and include statements regarding the current intent, belief, targets or expectations of Toyota and Kanto or those of their respective management. In many, but not all cases, words such as aim, anticipate, believe, estimate, expect, hope, intend, may, plan, predict, probability, risk, should, will, would, and similar expressions, are use and Kanto or their respective management, to identify forward-looking statements. These statements reflect the current views of Toyota and Kanto or their respective management with respect to future events and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those which are anticipated, aimed at, believed, estimated, expected, intended or planned.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ from those in forward-looking statements as a result of various factors. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from estimates or forecasts contained in the forward-looking statements are identified in Risk Factors and elsewhere in this prospectus, and include, among others:

- (i) the impact of the March 11, 2011 Great East Japan Earthquake and ensuing events, including the negative effect on the Toyota group s vehicle production and sales;
- (ii) changes in economic conditions and market demand affecting, and the competitive environment in, the automotive markets in Japan, North America, Europe and other markets in which the Toyota group operates;
- (iii) fluctuations in currency exchange rates, particularly with respect to the value of the Japanese yen, the U.S. dollar, the euro, the Australian dollar, the Canadian dollar and the British pound;
- (iv) changes in funding environment in financial markets;
- (v) the Toyota group s ability to realize production efficiencies and to implement capital expenditures at the levels and times planned by management;
- (vi) changes in the laws, regulations and government policies in the markets in which the Toyota group operates that affect its automotive operations, particularly laws, regulations and policies relating to vehicle safety, including recalls, trade, environmental protection, vehicle emissions and vehicle fuel economy, as well as changes in laws, regulations and government policies that affect the Toyota group s other operations, including the outcome of current and future litigation and other legal proceedings;
- (vii) political instability in the markets in which the Toyota group operates;
- (viii) the Toyota group s ability to timely develop and achieve market acceptance of new products;
- (ix) any impact on the Toyota group s ability to maintain and develop its brand image as a result of the Toyota group s inability to deliver safe and high-quality products or its failure to promptly implement safety measures such as recalls when necessary;

iv

Table of Contents

- (x) the Toyota group s reliance on various suppliers for the provision of supplies;
- (xi) natural disasters, fuel shortages, interruptions in social infrastructure such as electricity or transportation, labor strikes, work stoppages or other interruptions to, or difficulties in, the employment of labor in the major markets where the Toyota group purchases materials, components and supplies for the production of its products or where its products are produced, distributed or sold;
- (xii) the parties being unable to complete the proposed share exchange due to failure to obtain the necessary shareholder approval or any governmental approval for the proposed transactions or for other reasons; and
- (xiii) difficulties in realizing the anticipated benefits of the share exchange.

V

OUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SHARE EXCHANGE

- Q. What are Toyota and Kanto proposing?
- A. Toyota and Kanto are proposing to conduct a statutory share exchange (kabushiki kokan) under the Companies Act of Japan (the Companies Act) pursuant to which shareholders of Kanto will become shareholders of Toyota, and Kanto will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota.
- Q. Why are Toyota and Kanto proposing the share exchange?
- A. The boards of directors of Toyota and Kanto have agreed to the share exchange in order to promote Kanto to a more active and substantial role within the Toyota group and to streamline certain decision-making within the Toyota group related to vehicle development and manufacturing. If the share exchange is approved by Kanto s shareholders, Kanto would become a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota.

Kanto has contributed to the domestic and global businesses of the Toyota group from the development to production stages of many Toyota vehicles, as well as in the support of overseas operations through the production of parts and components. Following the share exchange, Kanto s role within the Toyota group will change substantially from a supporting role in the development and manufacturing of Toyota vehicles, to a leading role in the planning, development and manufacturing of compact vehicles. Kanto aims to be actively involved in a broad range of processes related to Toyota brand compact vehicles, beginning with the initial planning stage. In addition, building on its expertise in manufacturing compact vehicles, Kanto intends to work closely with Toyota and its group companies overseas to support the overseas development and production of compact vehicles and production of parts and components.

The share exchange is expected to enable Kanto to serve an expanded role in the area of compact vehicles and become an important part of executing Toyota s management strategy for compact vehicles, and enable Toyota to better streamline its business structure and decision-making that would lead to a more optimal structure of Toyota s overall supply and production systems. As a result, Kanto and Toyota s alliance would be strengthened and the two companies would work closely together in an increasingly complex and highly competitive business environment, which Toyota and Kanto believe would increase the corporate value of both companies.

In addition, assuming the share exchange is completed, Kanto and two wholly owned subsidiaries of Toyota, Central Motor Co., Ltd. (Central Motor) and Toyota Motor Tohoku Corporation (Toyota Motor Tohoku), have agreed to commence discussions to merge their businesses to become a vehicle manufacturing hub in the Tohoku area focused on compact vehicles, including the development and manufacture of compact vehicles and the implementation and development of high-volume production methods (the Subsidiary Integration). The Subsidiary Integration is currently targeted to be completed in July 2012. Toyota and Kanto believe that the Subsidiary Integration would further enable Kanto to contribute to the domestic and global businesses of Toyota. Toyota believes that Kanto becoming a wholly owned subsidiary through the share exchange and implementing the Subsidiary Integration would be an important step towards realizing some of its key medium-term initiatives related to product and supply under the Toyota Global Vision. Assuming the share exchange is completed, Toyota and Kanto currently do not anticipate issues that would prevent the Subsidiary Integration because the Subsidiary Integration will be a merger among three wholly owned subsidiaries of Toyota. Nonetheless, the anticipated benefits of the share exchange may not be realized to the fullest extent or they may take longer than expected to be realized, depending on the consummation and successful implementation of the Subsidiary Integration.

Q. What will Kanto shareholders receive in the share exchange?

A. Kanto shareholders as of the time immediately preceding the share exchange will receive 0.25 shares of Toyota common stock for each share of Kanto common stock which they hold. Holders of Kanto common stock who have duly exercised their dissenters appraisal rights will not receive shares of Toyota common stock for shares of Kanto common stock.

vi

- Q. How did Toyota and Kanto determine the share exchange ratio?
- A. Toyota and Kanto conducted thorough negotiations and discussions on the share exchange ratio, each taking into account the analyses of its respective financial advisors; the financial position, assets and future prospects of each party; and other factors. As a result of these negotiations and discussions concerning the share exchange ratio, on July 13, 2011, the board of directors of Kanto determined that the share exchange ratio was fair to the non-controlling shareholders of Kanto, and Toyota and Kanto agreed upon the share exchange ratio on the same day.
- Q. Does the board of directors of Kanto recommend the share exchange?
- A. Yes. The board of directors of Kanto (except for one member who did not attend the meeting in order to avoid possible conflicts of interest) unanimously recommends that shareholders vote for the share exchange.
- Q. What are the interests of Toyota and directors and executive officers of Kanto in the share exchange?
- A. As of March 31, 2011, Toyota held 50.4% of the outstanding shares of Kanto common stock. Toyota and Kanto have a long standing relationship that began in the late 1940s when Kanto began manufacturing Toyota vehicles, and Kanto has been a consolidated subsidiary of Toyota under U.S. GAAP since 2003. As of March 31, 2011, the directors, executive officers, corporate auditors and their affiliates of Kanto owned approximately 0.18% of the outstanding shares of Kanto common stock. While none of the directors and executive officers of Kanto are currently seconded from Toyota, a number of them have been previously employed by Toyota.

In proposing the share exchange, in order to ensure that the share exchange ratio was determined appropriately and to avoid possible conflicts of interest, Kanto retained Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd. (Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities) as its financial advisor and a third-party valuation institution to provide analyses of the share exchange ratio which were used in negotiating the share exchange ratio. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities also delivered a fairness opinion to the effect that the proposed share exchange ratio was fair from a financial point of view to the holders of Kanto shares other than Kanto's controlling shareholder, subject to certain assumptions and reservations set forth therein. Further, certain of Kanto's directors and corporate auditors did not participate in the board meeting to approve the share exchange to avoid possible conflicts of interest. Toyota retained Nomura Securities Co., Ltd. (Nomura) as its financial advisor and a third-party valuation institution to provide analyses of the share exchange ratio which were used in negotiating the share exchange ratio. See The Share Exchange for a more detailed discussion of the process of determining the share exchange.

Toyota and Kanto believe that adequate measures were taken to ensure the fairness and appropriateness of the share exchange. Nonetheless, when you consider the recommendation of the board of directors of Kanto, you should keep in mind that Toyota, as the controlling shareholder, and the directors and executive officers of Kanto may have interests in the share exchange that are in addition to, or different from, the interests of the non-controlling shareholders of Kanto.

- Q. What vote of Kanto's shareholders is required to approve the share exchange agreement?
- A. The affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the voting rights of Kanto present or represented at its extraordinary meeting of shareholders, at which shareholders holding at least one-third of the total voting rights of Kanto are present or represented, is required to approve the share exchange agreement. One hundred (100) shares of Kanto common stock constitutes one voting right, or unit.
- Q. How will fractional shares be treated in the share exchange?

A. Kanto shareholders will not receive any fractional shares of Toyota common stock in the share exchange. Instead, the shares representing the aggregate of all such fractions (in cases where such aggregated shares

vii

Table of Contents

include any fractional shares, such fraction will be rounded down) will be sold to Toyota at the market price and the net cash proceeds from the sale will be distributed to the former holders of Kanto shares on a proportionate basis in accordance with their respective fractions

- Q. How will shareholders with less than one unit of Toyota shares be treated after the share exchange?
- A. The articles of incorporation of Toyota provide that 100 shares of its common stock constitute one unit, which will have one voting right. If the share exchange is approved, 400 shares of Kanto common stock will be exchanged for 100 shares of Toyota common stock, which constitute one unit. Holders of Kanto common stock who hold less than 400 shares will receive less than one unit of Toyota common stock in the share exchange. Holders of less than one unit of shares will be registered in Toyota s register of shareholders, but shares held by a holder constituting less than one unit will not carry voting rights. A holder of shares constituting less than one unit of Toyota shares may request Toyota to purchase those shares at their market value in accordance with the Companies Act, Toyota s articles of incorporation and its share handling regulations.
- Q. How do the legal rights of Toyota shares differ from those of Kanto shares?
- A. There are no material differences between the legal rights of shareholders of Toyota common stock and Kanto common stock.
- Q. When is the share exchange expected to be completed?
- A. The share exchange is expected to be completed on January 1, 2012.
- Q. How will trading in Kanto shares be affected in connection with the completion of the share exchange?
- A. Kanto expects that the last day of trading in its shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and the Nagoya Stock Exchange will be December 27, 2011, four trading days prior to the effective date of the share exchange, and that its shares will be delisted the following day.
- Q. Can the number of shares of Toyota common stock for which the shares of Kanto common stock are exchanged change between the time of the shareholders meeting and when the share exchange is completed?
- A. No. The exchange ratio is fixed, and unless the share exchange agreement is amended, it will not change even if the trading prices of either Toyota common stock or Kanto common stock change between the time of the shareholders meeting and when the share exchange is completed, which is currently expected on January 1, 2012. See Risk Factors beginning on page 7.
- Q. What is the record date for voting at the extraordinary shareholders meeting of Kanto?
- A. Holders of Kanto shares as of September 30, 2011 will be eligible to vote at the extraordinary shareholders meeting expected to be held on , 2011.

Q. How do I vote at the extraordinary shareholders meeting of Kanto?

A. You may exercise voting rights by submitting a mail-in voting card, attending the meeting in person or through attorney-in-fact or through a standing proxy in the case of a non-resident holder. Kanto will distribute materials to shareholders that will enable them to exercise their voting rights. Completed mail-in voting cards must be received by Kanto by 5:20 p.m. (Japan time) one business day prior to the extraordinary shareholders meeting.

For shareholders not resident in Japan and who have appointed a standing proxy in Japan, Kanto will distribute the mail-in voting cards and notice of convocation to their standing proxy in Japan, who may then transmit those materials to the shareholders according to the terms of the respective proxy agreements. For shareholders not resident in Japan and who have purchased shares of Kanto through a securities broker

viii

located outside of Japan, Kanto will distribute voting and reference materials to the broker standing proxy in Japan, who is expected to transmit those materials according to the terms of the arrangement with the broker. Kanto shareholders who are non-residents of Japan are encouraged to contact their standing proxy in Japan, or broker, to obtain the voting and reference materials and confirm the necessary procedures to exercise their voting rights. For shareholders not resident in Japan and who have designated a mailing address in Japan, Kanto will send a mail-in voting card and notice of convocation to that mailing address.

Q. How will shares represented at the extraordinary shareholders meeting by mail-in voting cards be treated?

A. The mail-in voting cards used for the extraordinary shareholders meeting of Kanto will describe the proposals to be voted on by shareholders at the meeting, including the approval of the share exchange agreement. The mail-in voting cards will allow each shareholder to indicate his or her approval or disapproval with respect to each proposal. In accordance with Japanese law, Kanto intends to count toward the quorum for its shareholders meeting any shares represented by mail-in voting cards that are returned without indicating the approval or disapproval of any of the proposals, and count these mail-in voting cards as votes in favor of the share exchange agreement and other related proposals. Any mail-in voting cards will become void if the shareholder who voted by mail attends the meeting in person or through another shareholder with voting rights whom the shareholder appointed as his or her attorney-in-fact.

Q. May I change my vote after I submit a mail-in voting card?

- A. Yes. To change your vote after submitting a mail-in voting card, you must attend the meeting in person, or through another shareholder with voting rights whom you have appointed as your attorney-in-fact or through a standing proxy in the case of a non-resident holder, or send another mail-in voting card dated a later date than the previous mail-in voting card if Kanto redistributes mail-in voting cards. By attending the meeting in person, you automatically revoke your mail-in voting card.
- Q. If my shares are held in street name by my broker, will my broker vote them for me without instructions?
- A. Whether your broker will vote your shares without your instructions depends on the terms of the agreement entered into by you and your broker. Therefore, you are encouraged to contact your broker directly to confirm the applicable voting procedure.
- Q. Do I have dissenters appraisal rights in connection with the share exchange?
- A. Under the Companies Act, you are entitled to dissenters appraisal rights in connection with the share exchange if you comply with the procedures set forth in the Companies Act and share handling regulations of Kanto. Any Kanto shareholder (i) who notifies Kanto in any form prior to the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of his or her intention to oppose the share exchange, and who votes against the approval of the share exchange agreement at the shareholders meeting; or (ii) who is not entitled to vote at such extraordinary meeting of shareholders; and complies with the other relevant procedures set forth in the Companies Act and share handling regulations of Kanto, may demand that Kanto purchase his or her shares of Kanto common stock at the fair value. If you vote against the share exchange by submitting a mail-in voting card, such submission will satisfy all requirements mentioned in (i) above. Such demand must be made within the period from the day 20 days prior to the effective date of the share exchange to the day immediately preceding the effective date of the share exchange.

The failure of a Kanto shareholder who is entitled to vote at such extraordinary meeting of shareholders to provide such notice prior to the shareholders meeting or to vote against the approval of the share exchange agreement at the shareholders meeting will in effect constitute a waiver of the shareholder s right to demand that Kanto purchase his or her shares of Kanto common stock at the fair value.

ix

There are other procedural issues that you may wish to consider when deciding whether to exercise your dissenters appraisal rights. See

The Share Exchange Dissenters Appraisal Rights for a more detailed discussion of dissenters appraisal rights. In addition, dissenters appraisal rights for shareholders of a company becoming a wholly owned subsidiary through a share exchange are set forth in Articles 785 and 786 of the Companies Act. An English translation of these articles is included in this prospectus as Appendix C.

- Q. What are the Japanese tax consequences of the share exchange to non-resident holders of Kanto shares?
- A. Non-resident holders of shares of Kanto common stock will generally not be subject to Japanese taxation with respect to the share exchange, except with respect to cash payments of the sale price from Kanto as a result of their exercise of dissenters appraisal rights. See Taxation Japanese Tax Consequences.
- Q. What are the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the share exchange to U.S. Holders of Kanto shares?
- A. The share exchange has not been structured to achieve a particular treatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and Toyota and Kanto have no obligation to structure the share exchange in a manner that is tax-free to U.S. Holders. As structured, however, the share exchange is expected to qualify as a tax-deferred reorganization under the provisions of Section 368(a) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), but such qualification depends on the resolution of issues and facts that will not be known until the date of the share exchange. Neither Toyota nor Kanto has obtained or will obtain a ruling from the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (the IRS) or an opinion of U.S. counsel that the share exchange will qualify as a reorganization. If the share exchange qualifies as a reorganization, no gain or loss generally will be recognized by a U.S. Holder on the exchange of shares of Kanto common stock for shares of Toyota common stock pursuant to the share exchange, except with respect to any cash received in lieu of a fractional share of Toyota common stock and unless Kanto has been a passive foreign investment company (PFIC) at any time during the holding period of the U.S. Holder. If the share exchange does not qualify as a reorganization, a U.S. Holder that exchanges its shares of Kanto common stock for shares of Toyota common stock will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between (i) the sum of (a) the fair market value of the shares of Toyota common stock received and (b) any cash received in lieu of fractional shares of Toyota common stock and (ii) the U.S. Holder s adjusted tax basis in the shares of Kanto common stock exchanged. See Taxation U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences.

Q. Who can I call with questions?

A. If you have more questions about the share exchange, you should contact: Yuji Maki

Accounting Division

Toyota Motor Corporation

1 Toyota-cho, Toyota City, Aichi, 471-8571

Japan

Telephone: +81-565-28-2121

Akira Kawana

Legal Affairs & Property Control Department, General Administration Division

Kanto Auto Works, Ltd.

1501 Misyuku, Susono, Shizuoka, 410-1198

Japan

Telephone: +81-55-996-2000

X

SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information from this document. It does not contain all the information that may be important to you. You should carefully read this entire prospectus, documents incorporated by reference and the other documents to which this prospectus refers for a more complete understanding of the share exchange.

The Companies

Toyota

Toyota is one of the leading companies in the worldwide automotive market in terms of vehicle production and sales. Toyota also conducts business in finance and other industries. Toyota sold 7.30 million vehicles worldwide in fiscal 2011 on a consolidated basis. Toyota had net revenues of ¥18,993.6 billion and net income of ¥408.1 billion in fiscal 2011.

Toyota s business segments are automotive operations, financial services operations and other operations. Toyota s automotive operations include the design, manufacture, assembly and sale of passenger cars, recreational and sport-utility vehicles, minivans and trucks and related parts and accessories. Toyota s financial services business consists primarily of providing financing to dealers and their customers for the purchase or lease of Toyota vehicles. Toyota s other operations include the design and manufacture of prefabricated housing and information technology-related businesses.

Toyota sells its vehicles in approximately 170 countries and regions. The primary markets for Toyota s automobiles are Japan, North America, Europe and Asia. During fiscal 2011, approximately 26% of Toyota s automobile unit sales were in Japan, 28% were in North America, 11% were in Europe and 17% were in Asia.

Toyota s principal executive offices are located at 1 Toyota-cho, Toyota City, Aichi, 471-8571, Japan, and its telephone number is +81-565-28-2121.

Kanto

Kanto is one of Japan's leading manufacturers of auto-bodies and a majority-owned subsidiary of Toyota. Kanto mainly manufactures and develops auto-bodies for compact vehicles, including various Toyota vehicles. In addition, Kanto manufactures and distributes automotive products including parts and components, and optional parts such as fenders and grills. In fiscal 2011, Kanto derived more than 90% of its sales from sales to Toyota. Kanto also develops other products, including the Patrafour all-wheel-drive powered wheelchair sold by Nissin Medical Industries and the TETRAS automatic vehicle maintenance lift. Kanto had net revenues of ¥504.1 billion and net loss of (¥1.9 billion) in fiscal 2011.

Kanto has a major R&D center and two domestic facilities in Japan, as well as a parts manufacturing subsidiary in Brazil, and has contributed to Toyota group s automotive development, manufacturing and production support. Kanto has seven consolidated subsidiaries that engage in the manufacture of oil products and electric control instruments, maintenance of factory facilities and other operations.

Kanto s principal executive offices are located at 1501 Misyuku, Susono, Shizuoka, 410-1198, Japan, and its telephone number is +81-55-996-2000.

1

The Share Exchange

The boards of directors of Toyota and Kanto have agreed to a statutory share exchange (*kabushiki kokan*) under the Companies Act, pursuant to which shares of Kanto will be exchanged for shares of Toyota, and Kanto will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota. On July 13, 2011, Toyota and Kanto entered into a share exchange agreement setting forth the terms of the share exchange.

As of March 31, 2011, Toyota held 50.4% of the outstanding shares of Kanto common stock. Upon the share exchange, each shareholder of Kanto (excluding Toyota) as of the time immediately preceding the share exchange will receive 0.25 shares of Toyota common stock in exchange for each share of Kanto common stock that such shareholder holds. The resulting number of shares of Toyota common stock to which Kanto shareholders are entitled will be recorded in Toyota s register of shareholders. The shares representing the aggregate of all fractional shares (in cases where such aggregated shares include any fractional shares, such fraction will be rounded down) will be sold to Toyota at the market price and the net cash proceeds from the sale will be distributed to the former holders of Kanto shares on a proportionate basis in accordance with their respective fractions.

The share exchange is subject to the approval of the share exchange agreement by the shareholders of Kanto. If the share exchange agreement is approved by the shareholders of Kanto and the share exchange does not otherwise cease to have effect in accordance with the provisions therein, the share exchange is expected to become effective on January 1, 2012.

The Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting of Kanto

To seek shareholders approval of the share exchange agreement and certain related matters, the board of directors of Kanto has convened an extraordinary meeting of shareholders. Under Japanese law and the articles of incorporation of Kanto, the notice of an extraordinary meeting of shareholders must be dispatched at least two weeks in advance to all shareholders of record who have voting rights. Kanto will distribute materials to shareholders that will enable them to exercise their voting rights.

The date, time and place of the meeting is expected to be , 2011, at (Japan Time), at , Japan.

Shareholders may exercise voting rights by submitting a mail-in voting card, attending the meeting in person or through attorney-in-fact or through a standing proxy in the case of a non-resident holder. Kanto shareholders who are non-resident of Japan are encouraged to contact their standing proxy in Japan, or broker, to obtain the voting and reference materials and confirm the necessary procedures to exercise their voting rights. For shareholders not resident in Japan and who have designated a mailing address in Japan, Kanto will send a mail-in voting card and notice of convocation to that mailing address.

The affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the voting rights of Kanto present or represented at its extraordinary meeting of shareholders, at which shareholders holding at least one-third of the total voting rights of Kanto who are entitled to exercise their voting rights are present or represented, is required to approve the share exchange agreement. One hundred (100) shares of Kanto common stock constitutes one voting right, or unit.

As of March 31, 2011, the directors, executive officers, corporate auditors and their affiliates of Kanto owned approximately 0.18% of the outstanding shares of Kanto common stock. As of March 31, 2011, directors, executive officers, corporate auditors and their affiliates of Toyota owned approximately 0.02% of the outstanding shares of Kanto common stock.

2

Reasons for the Share Exchange

The boards of directors of Toyota and Kanto have agreed to the share exchange in order to promote Kanto to a more active and substantial role within the Toyota group and to streamline certain decision-making within the Toyota group related to vehicle development and manufacturing. If the share exchange is approved by Kanto shareholders, Kanto would become a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota.

Kanto has contributed to the domestic and global businesses of the Toyota group from the development to production stages of many Toyota vehicles, as well as in the support of overseas operations through the production of parts and components. Following the share exchange, Kanto s role within the Toyota group will change substantially from a supporting role in the development and manufacturing of Toyota vehicles, to a leading role in the planning, development and manufacturing of compact vehicles. Kanto aims to be actively involved in a broad range of processes related to Toyota brand compact vehicles, beginning with the initial planning stage. In addition, building on its expertise in manufacturing compact vehicles, Kanto intends to work closely with Toyota and its group companies overseas to support the overseas development and production of compact vehicles and production of parts and components.

The share exchange is expected to enable Kanto to serve an expanded role in the area of compact vehicles and become an important part of executing Toyota's management strategy for compact vehicles, and enable Toyota to better streamline its business structure and decision-making that would lead to a more optimal structure of Toyota's overall supply and production systems. See The Share Exchange Reasons for the Share Exchange for a more detailed discussion of the Toyota Global Vision. As a result, Kanto and Toyota's alliance would be strengthened and the two companies would work closely together in an increasingly complex and highly competitive business environment, which Toyota and Kanto believe would increase the corporate value of both companies.

In addition, assuming the share exchange is completed, Kanto and two wholly owned subsidiaries of Toyota, Central Motor and Toyota Motor Tohoku, have agreed to commence discussions to enter into the Subsidiary Integration, which would merge their businesses to become a vehicle manufacturing hub in the Tohoku area focused on compact vehicles, including the development and manufacture of compact vehicles and the implementation and development of high-volume production methods. The Subsidiary Integration is currently targeted to be completed in July 2012. Toyota and Kanto believe that the Subsidiary Integration would further enable Kanto to contribute to the domestic and global businesses of Toyota. Toyota believes that Kanto becoming a wholly owned subsidiary through the share exchange and implementing the Subsidiary Integration would be an important step towards realizing some of its key medium-term initiatives related to product and supply under the Toyota Global Vision. Assuming the share exchange is completed, Toyota and Kanto currently do not anticipate issues that would prevent the Subsidiary Integration because the Subsidiary Integration will be a merger among three wholly owned subsidiaries of Toyota. Nonetheless, the anticipated benefits of the share exchange may not be realized to the fullest extent or they may take longer than expected to be realized, depending on the consummation and successful implementation of the Subsidiary Integration.

No Solicitation of Proxies, Consents or Authorizations

Kanto s management is not soliciting proxies, consents or authorizations with respect to the share exchange prior to the extraordinary meeting of shareholders.

3

Termination of the Share Exchange Agreement

The share exchange agreement shall cease to have effect if, among other things, (i) the share exchange agreement is not approved at a shareholders meeting of Kanto, (ii) any of the approvals from the relevant regulatory authorities are not obtained or (iii) due to an act of god or other events, a material change occurs or a material impediment arises in the implementation of the share exchange and the share exchange agreement is terminated by Toyota and Kanto, upon their mutual consultation. See The Share Exchange Material Terms of the Share Exchange for a more detailed discussion of the terms of the share exchange.

Under the Companies Act, the share exchange is not subject to approval at a shareholders meeting of Toyota, except under limited circumstances.

Toyota and Kanto currently do not expect any regulatory requirements, other than the U.S. federal securities laws, that must be complied with or approvals that must be obtained in connection with the share exchange.

Dissenters Appraisal Rights

Under Japanese law, you may have dissenters appraisal rights in connection with the share exchange. See The Share Exchange Dissenters Appraisal Rights for a more detailed discussion of dissenters appraisal rights.

Material Tax Consequences

Japanese Taxation

Non-resident holders of shares of Kanto common stock will generally not be subject to Japanese taxation with respect to the share exchange, except with respect to cash payments of the sale price from Kanto as a result of their exercise of dissenters appraisal rights. See Taxation Japanese Tax Consequences.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences

The share exchange has not been structured to achieve a particular treatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and Toyota and Kanto have no obligation to structure the share exchange in a manner that is tax-free to U.S. Holders. As structured, however, the share exchange is expected to qualify as a tax-deferred reorganization under the provisions of Section 368(a) of the Code, but such qualification depends on the resolution of issues and facts that will not be known until the date of the share exchange. Neither Toyota nor Kanto has obtained or will obtain a ruling from the IRS or an opinion of U.S. counsel that the share exchange will qualify as a reorganization. If the share exchange qualifies as a reorganization, no gain or loss generally will be recognized by a U.S. Holder on the exchange of shares of Kanto common stock for shares of Toyota common stock pursuant to the share exchange, except with respect to any cash received in lieu of a fractional share of Toyota common stock and unless Kanto has been a PFIC at any time during the holding period of the U.S. Holder. If the share exchange does not qualify as a reorganization, a U.S. Holder that exchanges its shares of Kanto common stock for shares of Toyota common stock will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between (i) the sum of (a) the fair market value of the shares of Toyota common stock received and (b) any cash received in lieu of fractional shares of Toyota common stock and (ii) the U.S. Holder s adjusted tax basis in the shares of Kanto common stock exchanged. See Taxation U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences.

Accounting Treatment of the Share Exchange

The share exchange will be accounted for by Toyota as an equity transaction in accordance with U.S. GAAP. See
Exchange Accounting Treatment.

Risk Factors

In determining whether to vote to approve the share exchange, you should consider carefully the risk factors beginning on page 7 of this prospectus.

Market Price Information

The shares of Toyota common stock are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, the Nagoya Stock Exchange and three other regional stock exchanges in Japan and on the London Stock Exchange. Toyota s ADSs, each representing two Toyota shares, are listed on the NYSE under the ticker symbol TM. The shares of Kanto common stock are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and the Nagoya Stock Exchange. The following table sets forth the closing prices of Toyota common stock and Kanto common stock on July 12, 2011, the last full trading day prior to the public announcement date on which the two companies announced the share exchange, and , 2011, the last practicable trading day prior to the distribution of this prospectus. The table also sets forth the implied equivalent value of Kanto common stock on these dates, as determined by multiplying the applicable closing price of Toyota common stock by the exchange ratio of 0.25 Toyota shares per Kanto share. Toyota urges you to obtain current market quotations for each of the two companies common stock.

		oyota on Stock		Kanto Common Stock	
	His	torical	Historical	Equ	ivalent
July 12, 2011	¥	3,355	¥ 777	¥	839
, 2011					

5

Planned Corporate Ownership Structure

The diagram below shows the corporate ownership structure of Toyota and Kanto before and after the share exchange.

6

RISK FACTORS

Prior to making a decision on the share exchange, you should carefully consider the risks described below and the risk factors included in Toyota's annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended March 31, 2011, along with other information presented, or incorporated by reference, in this prospectus. This prospectus also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including the risks described below and the risk factors included in Toyota's annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended March 31, 2011, incorporated herein by reference. See Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements.

Risks Relating to the Share Exchange

The exchange ratio for the share exchange is fixed and will not be adjusted to reflect changes in the market values of Toyota and Kanto common stock. As a result, the value of Toyota common stock you receive in the share exchange may be less than the value of your shares when you vote on the share exchange

Upon the effectiveness of the share exchange, currently expected on January 1, 2012, each share of Kanto common stock will be exchanged for 0.25 shares of Toyota common stock. The ratio at which Kanto common stock will be exchanged for Toyota common stock is fixed, and will not be adjusted for changes in the market prices of either company s common stock. Therefore, even if the relative market values of Toyota common stock and Kanto common stock change, there will be no change in the number of shares of Toyota common stock which shareholders of Kanto will receive in the share exchange.

Any change in the prices of either company s common stock occurring prior to the effective date of the share exchange will affect the value that holders of Kanto common stock receive in the share exchange. The value of Toyota common stock to be received in the share exchange may be higher or lower than the indicative value as of the date of this prospectus and/or as of the date of the extraordinary meeting of Kanto shareholders, depending on the prevailing market prices of Toyota common stock and Kanto common stock.

The share prices of Toyota common stock and Kanto common stock are subject to the general price fluctuations in the market for publicly traded equity securities and have experienced volatility in the past. Stock price changes may result from a variety of factors that are beyond the control of Toyota and Kanto, including actual changes in, or investor perception of, Toyota s and Kanto s businesses, operations and prospects. Regulatory developments, as well as current or potential legal proceedings, and changes in general market and economic conditions may also affect the stock price of Toyota or Kanto.

You should obtain and review recent market quotations for Toyota common stock and Kanto common stock before voting on the share exchange agreement. There can be no assurances as to the future market prices of Toyota common stock and Kanto common stock before the effectiveness of the share exchange, nor of the market price of Toyota common stock at any time after the effectiveness of the share exchange.

Significant expenses have been and are being incurred in the course of the share exchange

Significant transaction-related expenses have been and are being incurred related to the share exchange in making Kanto a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota, which are estimated to be approximately ¥390 million. These transaction-related expenses include financial advisory, legal fees and expenses, filing fees, printing expenses and other related charges. In addition, there may be significant costs in compensating dissenting shareholders who exercise their appraisal rights. While currently not estimable, additional significant costs may also be incurred in connection with the subsequently planned merger among Kanto, Central Motor and Toyota Motor Tohoku, currently aimed to be completed in July 2012. Even if the share exchange is completed, there is no guarantee that such merger of Kanto, Central Motor and Toyota Motor Tohoku will occur. See The Share Exchange for a more detailed discussion of the share exchange and the planned merger.

Making Kanto a wholly owned subsidiary may not produce the benefits anticipated by Toyota

The anticipated benefits of making Kanto a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota through the share exchange include promoting Kanto to a more active and substantial role within the Toyota group and enabling Toyota to streamline its business structure and decision-making related to vehicle development and manufacturing. The share exchange is currently expected to become effective on January 1, 2012, subject to approval at the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto. Following the share exchange, Kanto is expected to serve a leading role in the planning, development and manufacturing of compact vehicles. Kanto is also expected to serve an expanded supporting role for the overseas production of Toyota's compact vehicles. If obstacles or unanticipated problems arise in the process of executing the objectives of the share exchange, including delays in the transfer of product planning functions from Toyota to Kanto, a significant decrease in domestic or global demand for automobiles, shortage of supplies of parts and components or the occurrence of natural or man-made disasters, the benefits of the share exchange may not be realized in the expected time period or at all.

In addition, assuming the share exchange is completed, Kanto, Central Motor and Toyota Motor Tohoku have agreed to commence discussions to enter into the Subsidiary Integration. The Subsidiary Integration is currently targeted to be completed in July 2012, assuming the share exchange of Kanto is completed. Toyota believes that Kanto becoming a wholly owned subsidiary through the share exchange and implementing the Subsidiary Integration would be an important step towards realizing some of the key medium-term initiatives related to product and supply under the Toyota Global Vision. See The Share Exchange Reasons for the Share Exchange for a more detailed discussion of the Toyota Global Vision. Assuming the share exchange is completed, Toyota and Kanto currently do not anticipate issues that would prevent the Subsidiary Integration because the Subsidiary Integration will be a merger among three wholly owned subsidiaries of Toyota. Nonetheless, there is no guarantee that the Subsidiary Integration will occur in the time period contemplated or at all. Even if the Subsidiary Integration occurs, there is no guarantee that the merger would be successful. If the share exchange cannot be successfully implemented, or if the Subsidiary Integration is not consummated in the expected time period or at all, then Toyota may not be able to fully realize, or it may take longer than expected to realize, the anticipated benefits of the share exchange.

Risks Relating to Owning Toyota Common Stock or ADSs

Investors holding less than a unit of shares will have limited rights as shareholders

Pursuant to the Companies Act and other related legislation, Toyota s articles of incorporation provide that 100 shares of common stock constitute one unit. If the share exchange is approved, 400 shares of Kanto common stock will be exchanged for 100 shares of Toyota common stock, which constitute one unit. The Companies Act imposes significant restrictions and limitations on holdings of shares that do not constitute whole units. In general, holders of shares constituting less than one unit do not have the right to vote or to examine Toyota s accounting books and records. The transferability of shares of Toyota common stock constituting less than one unit is significantly limited. For a more complete description of the unit share system and its effect on the rights of holders of Toyota shares, see Memorandum and Articles of Association Japanese Unit Share System of Toyota's annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended March 31, 2011 incorporated herein by reference.

Because of daily price range limitations under Japanese stock exchange rules, you may not be able to sell your shares at a particular price on any particular trading day, or at all

Stock prices on Japanese stock exchanges are determined on a real-time basis by the equilibrium between bids and offers. These exchanges are order-driven markets without specialists or market makers to guide price formation. To prevent excessive volatility, Japanese stock exchanges set daily upward and downward price range limitations for each stock, based on the previous day s closing price. Although transactions may continue at the upward or downward limit price if the limit price is reached on a particular trading day, no transactions may take place outside the limits. Consequently, an investor wishing to sell at a price above or below the relevant daily limit may not be able to effect a sale at such price on a particular trading day, or at all.

8

Rights of shareholders under Japanese law may be more limited than under the laws of other jurisdictions

Toyota s corporate affairs are governed by and in accordance with its articles of incorporation, regulations of board of directors, share handling regulations and the Companies Act. Legal principles relating to Toyota s corporate affairs, including legality of corporate procedures, directors and officers fiduciary duties and shareholders rights may be different from, or less clearly defined than, those that would apply if Toyota were incorporated in another jurisdiction. For example, under the Companies Act and Toyota s articles of incorporation, only holders of 3% or more of the total voting rights or total issued shares (excluding treasury stock) are entitled to examine Toyota s accounting books and records. Shareholders rights under Japanese law may not be as extensive as shareholders rights under the laws of other countries.

It may not be possible for investors to effect service of process within the United States upon Toyota or its directors, executive officers or corporate auditors, or to enforce against Toyota or those persons judgments obtained in U.S. courts predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States

Toyota is a joint-stock corporation with limited liability incorporated under the laws of Japan. Almost all of Toyota s directors and corporate auditors reside in Japan. Many of Toyota s assets and the assets of these persons are located in Japan and elsewhere outside the United States. It may not be possible, therefore, for investors to effect service of process within the United States upon Toyota or these persons or to enforce against it or these persons judgments obtained in United States courts predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States. Toyota believes that there is doubt as to the enforceability in Japan, in original actions or in actions for enforcement of judgments of United States courts, of liabilities predicated solely upon the federal securities laws of the United States.

If you become a holder of ADSs, you will have fewer rights than a shareholder has, and you must act through the depositary to exercise those rights

The rights of shareholders under Japanese law to take actions, including voting their shares, receiving dividends, bringing derivative actions, examining Toyota's accounting books and records, and exercising appraisal rights, are available only to shareholders of record. Because the depositary, through its custodian agents, is the registered holder of the shares underlying the ADSs, only the depositary can exercise those rights in connection with the deposited shares. The depositary will make efforts to vote the shares underlying a holder s ADSs as instructed by the holder and will pay to the holder the dividends collected from Toyota. However, if you become an ADS holder, in such capacity, you will not be able to bring a derivative action, examine Toyota's accounting books and records, or exercise appraisal rights except through the depositary.

There are restrictions on the withdrawal of shares from Toyota s depositary receipt facility

Toyota s articles of incorporation provide that 100 shares constitute one unit. Under Toyota s ADS program, each ADS represents the right to receive two shares. As a result of the unit share system, American Depositary Receipt (ADR) holders will only be permitted to surrender ADRs and withdraw underlying shares constituting whole units. If a holder surrenders an ADR representing shares that do not constitute an integral number of whole units, the depositary will deliver to that holder only those shares which constitute a whole unit. The depositary will then issue to the holder a new ADR representing the remaining shares. Holders of an ADR that represents less than a whole unit of underlying shares will be unable to withdraw the underlying shares. As a result, while holders of common stock whose shares constitute less than one whole unit may require Toyota to purchase such shares under its articles of incorporation, those ADR holders will be unable to require Toyota to purchase their underlying shares to the extent those shares constitute less than one whole unit.

9

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA OF TOYOTA

Selected consolidated statement of income data for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008 and selected consolidated balance sheet data as of March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009 set forth below have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements not included in this prospectus. Selected consolidated statement of income data for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011 and selected consolidated balance sheet data as of March 31, 2010 and 2011 set forth below have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

Data set forth below are derived from Toyota s consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. You should read the selected financial data set forth below in conjunction with Toyota s consolidated financial statements and related notes and other financial data included, or incorporated by reference, in this prospectus. The following data are qualified in their entirety by reference to all of that information.

			Year Ended I	March 31,		
	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2011
		(in mil	llions, except share	e and per share da	ta)	
Consolidated Statement of Income Data:						
Automotive:	W.01.000.006	W.O. 155 006	W 10 5 (4 500	W 15 105 100	W 15 225 220	φ 2 00 5 0 7
Revenues	¥ 21,928,006	¥ 24,177,306	¥ 18,564,723	¥ 17,197,428	¥ 17,337,320	\$ 208,507
Operating income (loss)	2,038,828	2,171,905	(394,876)	(86,370)	85,973	1,034
Financial Services:						
Revenues	1,300,548	1,498,354	1,377,548	1,245,407	1,192,205	14,338
Operating income (loss)	158,495	86,494	(71,947)	246,927	358,280	4,309
All Other:						
Revenues	1,323,731	1,346,955	1,184,947	947,615	972,252	11,693
Operating income (loss)	39,679	33,080	9,913	(8,860)	35,242	424
Elimination of intersegment:						
Revenues	(604,194)	(733,375)	(597,648)	(439,477)	(508,089)	(6,111)
Operating income (loss)	1,681	(21,104)	(4,101)	(4,181)	(11,216)	(135)
Total Company:						
Revenues	23,948,091	26,289,240	20,529,570	18,950,973	18,993,688	228,427
Operating income (loss)	2,238,683	2,270,375	(461,011)	147,516	468,279	5,632
Income (loss) before income taxes and						
equity in earnings of affiliated companies	2,382,516	2,437,222	(560,381)	291,468	563,290	6,774
Net income (loss) attributable to Toyota						
Motor Corporation	1,644,032	1,717,879	(436,937)	209,456	408,183	4,909
Net income (loss) attributable to Toyota						
Motor Corporation per share:						
Basic	512.09	540.65	(139.13)	66.79	130.17	1.57
Diluted	511.80	540.44	(139.13)	66.79	130.16	1.57
Shares used in computing net income (loss)						
attributable to Toyota Motor Corporation						
per share, basic (in thousands)	3,210,423	3,177,445	3,140,417	3,135,986	3,135,881	
Shares used in computing net income (loss)						
attributable to Toyota Motor Corporation						
per share, diluted (in thousands)	3,212,235	3,178,662	3,140,417	3,135,998	3,135,915	
,	-, , ,	-, -,	-, -, -,	-,,-	- , ,	

	Year Ended March 31,					
	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2011
		(in millions, exc	cept per share and	numbers of vehicl	les sold data)	
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data (end of						
period):						
Total Assets:	¥ 32,574,779	¥ 32,458,320	¥ 29,062,037	¥ 30,349,287	¥ 29,818,166	\$ 358,607
Short-term debt, including current portion of						
long-term debt	5,865,507	6,228,152	6,317,184	5,497,997	5,951,836	71,579
Long-term debt, less current portion	6,263,585	5,981,931	6,301,469	7,015,409	6,449,220	77,561
Toyota Motor Corporation shareholders						
equity	11,836,092	11,869,527	10,061,207	10,359,723	10,332,371	124,262
Common stock	397,050	397,050	397,050	397,050	397,050	4,775
Other Data:						
Dividends per share	¥ 120.0	¥ 140.0	¥ 100.0	¥ 45.0	¥ 50.0	\$ 0.60
Number of vehicles sold						
Japan	2,273,152	2,188,389	1,944,823	2,162,418	1,913,117	
North America	2,942,661	2,958,314	2,212,254	2,097,374	2,031,249	
Europe	1,223,628	1,283,793	1,061,954	858,390	795,534	
Asia	789,637	956,509	904,892	979,651	1,255,016	
Other*	1,295,581	1,526,934	1,443,433	1,139,329	1,313,123	
Worldwide total	8,524,659	8,913,939	7,567,356	7,237,162	7,308,039	

^{*} Other consists of Central and South America, Oceania, Africa and the Middle East, etc.

MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

The shares of Toyota common stock are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, the Nagoya Stock Exchange and three other regional stock exchanges in Japan and on the London Stock Exchange. Toyota shares, each representing two Toyota shares, are listed on the NYSE under the ticker symbol TM.

The shares of Kanto common stock are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and the Nagoya Stock Exchange.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the reported high and low prices per share of Toyota common stock on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and ADSs on the NYSE:

	Stock Ex Price pe	Tokyo Stock Exchange Price per Share		York schange er ADS
Fiscal Year Ended March 31,	High	Low	High	Low
2007	¥ 8,350	¥ 5,430	\$ 138.00	\$ 94.52
2008	7,850	4,830	128.12	96.91
2009	5,670	2,650	106.74	57.68
2010	4,200	3,270	91.78	67.90
2011	3,955	2,800	93.90	67.56
Financial Quarter Ended:				
June 30, 2009	4,040	3,270	83.54	67.90
September 30, 2009	4,150	3,380	87.43	73.65
December 31, 2009	3,890	3,300	85.06	75.07
March 31, 2010	4,200	3,270	91.78	71.55
June 30, 2010	3,830	3,030	81.65	68.05
September 30, 2010	3,280	2,806	74.67	67.56
December 31, 2010	3,340	2,800	79.81	69.33
March 31, 2011	3,955	2,830	93.90	77.36
June 30, 2011	3,425	3,095	84.00	75.85
	·	ĺ		
Month Ended:				
February 28, 2011	3,955	3,345	93.74	82.34
March 31, 2011	3,865	2,830	93.90	77.36
April 30, 2011	3,380	3,095	81.00	75.85
May 31, 2011	3,425	3,165	84.00	78.62
June 30, 2011	3,420	3,155	82.85	79.03
July 31, 2011	3,480	3,145	85.49	81.03

On August 30, 2011, the last reported sale price of Toyota shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange was ¥2,721 per share.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the reported high and low prices per share of Kanto common stock on the Tokyo Stock Exchange:

		Tokyo Stock Exchange Price per Share	
Fiscal Year Ended March 31,	High	Low	
2007	¥ 1,790	¥ 1,300	
2008	1,850	1,110	
2009	1,483	745	
2010	1,200	635	
2011	806	432	
Financial Quarter Ended:			
June 30, 2009	1,200	856	
September 30, 2009	1,005	775	
December 31, 2009	922	695	
March 31, 2010	891	635	
June 30, 2010	806	653	
September 30, 2010	681	542	
December 31, 2010	719	476	
March 31, 2011	803	432	
June 30, 2011	736	503	
Month Ended:			
February 28, 2011	765	661	
March 31, 2011	697	432	
April 30, 2011	590	503	
May 31, 2011	550	506	
June 30, 2011	736	520	
July 31, 2011	834	721	

On August 30, 2011, the last reported sale price of Kanto shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange was ¥684 per share.

The following table sets forth the closing prices of Toyota common stock and Kanto common stock on July 12, 2011, the last full trading day prior to the public announcement date on which the two companies announced the share exchange, and , 2011, the last practicable trading day prior to the distribution of this prospectus. The table also sets forth the implied equivalent value of Kanto common stock on these dates, as determined by multiplying the applicable closing price of Toyota common stock by the exchange ratio of 0.25 Toyota shares per Kanto share. Toyota urges you to obtain current market quotations for each of the two companies common stock.

		oyota on Stock		Kanto Common Stock		
	His	torical	Historical	Equ	ivalent	
July 12, 2011	¥	3,355	¥ 777	¥	839	
, 2011						

The following table sets forth the dividends per share paid on Toyota and Kanto common stock for each of the periods shown. The periods shown are the six months ended on that date. The U.S. dollar equivalents for the cash dividends shown are based on the noon buying rate for Japanese yen on the last date of each period set forth below.

	To	Toyota		Kanto	
Period Ended	Yen	Dollars	Yen	Dollars	
September 30, 2006	¥ 50.0	\$ 0.42	¥ 13.00	\$ 0.11	
March 31, 2007	70.0	0.59	16.00	0.14	
September 30, 2007	65.0	0.65	16.00	0.14	
March 31, 2008	75.0	0.75	19.00	0.19	
September 30, 2008	65.0	0.61	16.00	0.15	
March 31, 2009	35.0	0.35	4.00	0.04	
September 30, 2009	20.0	0.22	4.00	0.04	
March 31, 2010	25.0	0.26	6.00	0.06	
September 30, 2010	20.0	0.24	6.00	0.07	
March 31, 2011	30.0	0.36	6.00	0.07	

EXCHANGE RATES

The following table sets forth information regarding the noon buying rates for cable transfers in Japanese yen as certified for customs purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York expressed in Japanese yen per 1.00 during the periods shown. On August 26, 2011, the noon buying rate was 476.62 = 1.00. The average exchange rate for the periods shown is the average of the month-end rates during the period.

		Average		
Fiscal Year Ended or Ending March 31,	At End of Period	(of month-end rates) (¥ per \$1.00)	High	Low
2007	117.56	116.55	121.81	110.07
2008	99.85	113.61	124.09	96.88
2009	99.15	100.85	110.48	87.80
2010	93.40	92.49	100.71	86.12
2011	82.76	85.00	94.68	78.74
2012 (through August 26, 2011)	76.62	80.46	85.26	76.41

Month Ended	High	Low
	(¥ per	\$1.00)
February 28, 2011	83.79	81.48
March 31, 2011	82.98	78.74
April 30, 2011	85.26	81.31
May 31, 2011	82.12	80.12
June 30, 2011	80.98	79.87
July 31, 2011	81.26	77.18

EXTRAORDINARY MEETING OF KANTO SHAREHOLDERS

General

Kanto is distributing mail-in voting cards to its shareholders who are entitled to exercise their voting rights (or their standing proxies in Japan, as appropriate) for use at the Kanto extraordinary meeting of shareholders, expected to be held on , 2011, at . Kanto is distributing the mail-in voting cards, together with the notice of convocation of the meeting and reference documents concerning the shareholders meeting, by mail to its shareholders who have voting rights as of the record date.

Non-resident shareholders are required to appoint a standing proxy in Japan or designate a mailing address in Japan, directly or indirectly through their securities broker. For shareholders not resident in Japan and who have appointed a standing proxy in Japan, Kanto will distribute the mail-in voting cards and notice of convocation to their standing proxy in Japan, who may then transmit those materials to the shareholders according to the terms of the respective proxy agreements. Such shareholders are encouraged to contact their standing proxy in Japan to confirm the applicable voting procedure. For shareholders not resident in Japan and who have purchased shares of Kanto through a securities broker located outside of Japan, such shareholders are encouraged to ask their broker to obtain the voting and reference materials from the broker s standing proxy in Japan. For shareholders not resident in Japan and who have designated a mailing address in Japan, Kanto will send a mail-in voting card and notice of convocation to that mailing address.

At the extraordinary shareholders meeting of Kanto, the approval of the share exchange agreement will be considered and voted upon by the shareholders of Kanto.

Voting

Voting Rights

Kanto currently uses the unit share system, where one unit consists of 100 shares of common stock of Kanto. Kanto s shareholders may vote at the Kanto extraordinary meeting only if they are registered as a holder of one unit or more shares of Kanto common stock in Kanto s register of shareholders on the record date. Each unit of shares of Kanto common stock outstanding on the Kanto record date is entitled to one vote on each matter properly submitted at the extraordinary shareholders meeting of Kanto. Shares constituting less than one unit are not entitled to vote.

The following shares are not entitled to vote at, and are not counted in determining the quorum for, the extraordinary meeting of shareholders:

treasury shares held by Kanto;

shares held by entities in which Kanto (together with its subsidiaries) holds 25% or more of the voting rights; and

shares issued after the applicable record date and shares that have come to constitute one or more units after the record date.

Record Date

The close of business on September 30, 2011 has been fixed by the resolution of the board of directors to be the Kanto record date for the determination of the holders of Kanto common stock entitled to exercise the shareholders rights at the Kanto extraordinary meeting.

How to Vote; Use of Mail-in Voting Cards

Shareholders who are entitled to exercise voting rights at the Kanto extraordinary meeting of shareholders may exercise their voting rights by attending the meeting in person or by having another shareholder who has

Table of Contents

voting rights attend the meeting as their attorney-in-fact or by returning the mail-in voting cards that will be mailed to those shareholders or, in case of non-resident shareholders who have appointed a standing proxy, through their standing proxy in Japan.

Holders of Kanto common stock entitled to vote at the extraordinary shareholders meeting of Kanto may vote their shares by returning a mail-in voting card, using the form in Japanese which Kanto is distributing together with the notice of convocation of such meeting by mail to those holders. Mail-in voting cards will allow a shareholder with a right to vote at the shareholders meeting to indicate his or her approval or disapproval with respect to each proposal at the meeting, including the share exchange agreement. Completed mail-in voting cards must be received by Kanto by 5:20 p.m. (Japan time) one business day prior to the shareholders meeting.

In accordance with applicable Japanese law, Kanto intends to:

count toward the quorum for its shareholders meeting any shares represented by mail-in voting cards that are returned without indicating the approval or disapproval of any of the proposals; and

count the shares represented by mail-in voting cards returned in this manner as votes in favor of the share exchange agreement and other proposals referred to in the mail-in voting cards.

Vote Required

Approval of the share exchange agreement requires the affirmative vote of two-thirds of votes of Kanto present or represented at the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto, at which shareholders holding one-third of the total voting rights of the shareholders who are entitled to exercise their voting rights are present or represented.

As of March 31, 2011, the directors, executive officers, corporate auditors and their affiliates of Kanto owned approximately 0.18% of the outstanding shares of Kanto common stock. As of March 31, 2011, directors, executive officers, corporate auditors and their affiliates of Toyota owned approximately 0.02% of the outstanding shares of Kanto common stock.

Revocation

Any person who submits a mail-in voting card by mail may revoke it any time before it is voted:

by sending another mail-in voting card dated a later date than the previous mail-in voting card to Kanto if Kanto redistributes mail-in voting cards; or

by voting in person, or through another shareholder entitled to vote and appointed as such person s attorney-in-fact or through a standing proxy in the case of a non-resident holder, at the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto. Kanto shareholders who have instructed a broker to vote their shares must follow directions received from their broker to change and revoke their vote.

17

THE SHARE EXCHANGE

This section of the prospectus describes material aspects of the share exchange, including the material provisions of the share exchange agreement. The full text of an English translation of the share exchange agreement, the original of which is written in Japanese, is incorporated herein by reference in its entirety and is included in this prospectus as Appendix A.

General

The boards of directors of Toyota and Kanto have agreed to the share exchange, to be approved by shareholders meeting of Kanto. Pursuant to the share exchange, each shareholder of Kanto will receive 0.25 shares of Toyota common stock for each share of Kanto common stock that such shareholder holds. If the share exchange agreement is approved at the shareholders meeting of Kanto and the share exchange agreement does not otherwise cease to have effect in accordance with the provisions therein, the share exchange is expected to become effective on January 1, 2012.

Background to the Share Exchange

Kanto was established in the name of Kaiyukai Co., Ltd. in 1942 and renamed Kanto Electric Motor Works, Ltd. in 1946 and subsequently Kanto Auto Works, Ltd. in 1950. Kanto began manufacturing Toyota vehicles in 1949 and has since developed and manufactured numerous Toyota vehicles, primarily compact vehicles. Toyota made an initial investment in Kanto in 1954. The business partnership between Kanto and Toyota strengthened over time, and Kanto became a consolidated subsidiary of Toyota in 2003 under U.S. GAAP when Toyota acquired 50.46% of the issued shares of Kanto.

Kanto established plants in Higashi Fuji and Iwate in Japan in 1967 and 1993, respectively, and a parts manufacturing subsidiary in Brazil in 2006. Kanto has contributed to the domestic and global businesses of the Toyota group from the development to production stages of many Toyota vehicles as well as in the support of overseas operations through the production of parts and components.

In promoting a sustainable growth strategy, establishing a production system capable of providing an optimal supply of products in the global market has become increasingly integral to Toyota's strategy. While Toyota's financial results in fiscal 2010 greatly improved primarily as a result of various cost reduction efforts, compared to fiscal 2009 when the global financial crisis led to a rapid downturn in the economy, a trend toward decreased demand in developed countries, including Japan, and the appreciation of the Japanese yen against other currencies continued to present challenges. During this time, Toyota came to the view that it can maximize overall group performance and corporate value through optimally structuring its supply and production systems and investing in strategic areas such as next-generation eco-cars and emerging countries.

On May 11, 2010, Toyota announced a global production restructuring plan, intended to create an optimal global supply system as part of its sustainable growth strategy. As part of this plan, Toyota announced that it will increase its local production capacities to meet a wide range of growing customer demand in a timely manner in emerging countries such as China and India. On the other hand, in developed countries with mature markets, Toyota will reevaluate production models to respond to changes in market demand and to establish a flexible and efficient production system that can withstand currency fluctuations. Toyota announced that in Japan, the country most affected by changes in Toyota s business environment, Toyota will conduct a broad review of its current production models. Toyota would aim to specifically focus in Japan on vehicle models that involve the development of new technology, new concepts and the introduction of new manufacturing methods, while producing high-volume vehicles mainly in regions where there is demand. Toyota also announced that it would further work towards establishing a flexible and efficient production system that can meet fluctuating demand by aiming to keep utilization rates of plants and lines across the board at constant levels, while maintaining current production levels.

18

Table of Contents

In June 2010, following the plan announced on May 11, 2010, Toyota requested each domestic body manufacturer in the Toyota group, including Kanto, to begin a review and examination of the direction of their projected future businesses.

On November 9, 2010, the president of Toyota, Mr. Akio Toyoda, held an internal meeting with the executive vice presidents of Toyota, in which they discussed possible restructuring of group operations and related changes to the group capital structure based on the results of each such domestic body manufacturer s review. The participants at the meeting concluded that Toyota would further review and deliberate with each domestic body manufacturer.

On November 16, 2010, the executive vice president of Toyota, Mr. Atsushi Niimi, visited the president of Kanto, Mr. Tetsuo Hattori, at Kanto s office and held a meeting in which they discussed a possible restructuring of the business operations between Toyota and Kanto and related changes to Kanto s capital structure. They agreed to examine a possible restructuring and meet again by the end of March 2011 upon completion of each company s examination.

On March 9, 2011, Toyota unveiled the Toyota Global Vision corporate outline for the future and announced that it will work to achieve sustained growth through the realization of the ideals set forth in the Vision. Key medium-term initiatives of the Vision include the product strategy of the promotion of localized production of vehicles in the regions where the demand exists in order to meet the unique customer needs of each market, and the supply strategy of the continued efficient utilization of existing production capacity. See Reasons for the Share Exchange for a more detailed discussion of the Toyota Global Vision.

Although the effects of the Great East Japan Earthquake on March 11, 2011 interrupted the review of the possible restructuring of group operations, on April 11, 2011, the president of Toyota, Mr. Akio Toyoda, gave instructions internally to expedite the review of possible restructuring, particularly related to businesses in the Tohoku area.

On April 12, 2011, the president of Toyota, Mr. Akio Toyoda, requested the president of Kanto, Mr. Tetsuo Hattori, to resume the examination of the business and capital restructuring that was temporarily interrupted following the Great East Japan Earthquake. Mr. Hattori agreed to resume the examination. Around this time, Toyota determined that a share exchange would be an effective transaction structure by which to make Kanto a wholly owned subsidiary, as a share exchange can be conducted speedily and would allow an effective use of its treasury stock.

On April 13, 2011, Toyota retained Nomura as its financial advisor and as a third-party valuation institution independent from Toyota.

On April 15, 2011, Toyota also retained TMI Associates as its Japanese legal counsel.

On April 19, 2011, Toyota also retained Shearman & Sterling LLP as its U.S. legal counsel.

On May 13, 2011, Kanto retained Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities as its financial advisor and as a third-party valuation institution independent from Kanto. On the same date, the working groups of Toyota and Kanto held a kickoff meeting regarding the share exchange.

Between early May 2011 and early July 2011, Toyota conducted its legal and financial due diligence of the share exchange with Kanto, with the assistance of its external Japanese legal counsel.

On May 27, 2011, Kanto retained Nagashima Ohno & Tsunematsu as its legal counsel. On the same date, members of the working groups of Toyota and Kanto discussed the status of the share exchange negotiations and due diligence.

19

Table of Contents

Between early June 2011 and early July 2011, Kanto conducted its legal due diligence of the share exchange with Toyota, with the assistance of its external legal counsel.

On June 29, 2011, the working groups of Toyota and Kanto met to discuss the share exchange ratio. Each of the working groups proposed a share exchange ratio and at the conclusion of the meeting, agreed to further discuss the share exchange ratio. Between June 29, 2011 and July 10, 2011, the working groups of Toyota and Kanto negotiated the share exchange ratio.

On July 13, 2011, a meeting of the board of directors of Toyota was held to consider the share exchange. The board of directors of Toyota conducted a comprehensive review of various factors relating to the share exchange, including the business, operations, earnings and future prospects of Kanto, and the share exchange ratio and the results of the analyses of the share exchange ratio prepared by Nomura, in order to reach a resolution. After review and discussions of the terms of the share exchange agreement, the board of directors of Toyota resolved to enter into the share exchange agreement and to make Kanto a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota, subject to approval at the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto.

On July 13, 2011, a meeting of the board of directors of Kanto was held to consider the share exchange. The board of directors of Kanto conducted a comprehensive review of various factors relating to the share exchange, including the business, operations, financial condition, earnings and future prospects of both Kanto and Toyota, the results of analyses of the share exchange ratio prepared by Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities, the fairness opinion of Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities, and the conclusion of the outside corporate auditors who did not have conflicts of interest that they had no objections to Kanto s execution of the share exchange agreement. After review and discussions of the terms of the share exchange, the board of directors of Kanto resolved to approve the share exchange agreement and to become a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota, subject to approval at the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto.

On the same date, Kanto, Central Motor and Toyota Motor Tohoku mutually agreed to begin discussions about merging the businesses of the three companies aimed to be completed on or around July 2012. See Reasons for the Share Exchange for a more detailed discussion of the planned merger.

On July 13, 2011, Toyota and Kanto executed the share exchange agreement and announced the details of the share exchange, including the share exchange ratio. If the share exchange agreement is approved at the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto, and the share exchange agreement does not otherwise cease to have effect in accordance with the provisions therein, the share exchange is scheduled to become effective on January 1, 2012.

Reasons for the Share Exchange

The boards of directors of Toyota and Kanto have agreed to the share exchange in order to promote Kanto to a more active and substantial role within the Toyota group and to streamline certain decision-making within the Toyota group related to vehicle development and manufacturing. If the share exchange is approved by Kanto shareholders, Kanto would become a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota.

Kanto has contributed to the domestic and global businesses of the Toyota group from the development to production stages of many Toyota vehicles, as well as in the support of overseas operations through the production of parts and components. Within the Toyota group going forward, Kanto s role is expected to change substantially from a supporting role in the development and manufacturing of Toyota vehicles, to a leading role in the planning, development and manufacturing of compact vehicles. Kanto is also expected to serve an expanded supporting role for the overseas production of Toyota s compact vehicles.

In order to realize Kanto s expanded roles within the Toyota group, it became necessary for Kanto to become closely integrated with Toyota s business strategies, including marketing, product planning, and overseas

20

Table of Contents

and supply strategies. Accordingly, Toyota and Kanto concluded that it was essential for Kanto to become a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota to achieve this objective. The share exchange is expected to enable Kanto to serve an expanded role in the area of compact vehicles and become an important part of executing Toyota group s management strategy for compact vehicles, and enable Toyota to better streamline its business structure and decision-making that would lead to a more optimal structure of Toyota s overall supply and production systems. As a result, Kanto and Toyota s alliance would be strengthened and the two companies would work closely together in an increasingly complex and highly competitive business environment, which Toyota and Kanto believe would increase the corporate value of both companies.

In addition, assuming the share exchange is completed, Kanto and two wholly owned subsidiaries of Toyota, Central Motor and Toyota Motor Tohoku, have agreed to commence discussions to enter into the Subsidiary Integration, which would merge their businesses to become a vehicle manufacturing hub in the Tohoku area focused on compact vehicles, including the development and manufacture of compact vehicles and the implementation and development of high-volume production methods. The Subsidiary Integration is currently targeted at or around July 2012, assuming the share exchange of Kanto is completed.

Toyota believes that Kanto becoming a wholly owned subsidiary through the share exchange and implementing the Subsidiary Integration would be an important step towards realizing some of its key medium-term initiatives related to product and supply under the Toyota Global Vision as more fully described below. In a highly competitive business environment, Toyota believes it is essential to build a business framework that would enable it to utilize its group resources to the fullest extent. Toyota believes that body manufacturers are to play a leading role in the planning, developing and manufacturing of vehicle models within their expertise, which would more clearly define their roles and responsibilities and lead to faster decision-making. Toyota has entrusted Kanto with this role with respect to Toyota s compact vehicles. Toyota believes that this would enable Toyota to streamline its business structure to respond to customer needs with increased speed and to better streamline its business structure and decision-making, which would lead to a more optimal structure of Toyota s overall supply and production systems. Toyota believes that the realization of these goals would maximize overall group performance and enhance the corporate value of the Toyota group, which benefits it believes may be offered to Kanto s non-controlling shareholders as shareholders of Toyota going forward.

Kanto shares the ideals of the Toyota Global Vision. Kanto s new corporate vision as more fully described below is to become a globally competitive, comprehensive vehicle manufacturer engaged in a broad range of processes related to compact vehicles vehicle and unit planning, development and manufacturing. Kanto believes that the realization of this vision will lead to enhanced corporate value. Through this vision, Kanto aims to contribute in the support of overseas production of compact vehicles and to become a manufacturing hub in the Tohoku area, together with Central Motor and Toyota Motor Tohoku.

Toyota Global Vision

The Toyota Global Vision, unveiled in March 2011, represents Toyota's commitment to being a company that customers choose and that exceeds customer expectations. The Vision outlines Toyota's corporate vision regarding the kind of organization Toyota should be and the values it should honor.

Toyota believes that it and its group companies operate under long standing shared values and ideals, including the *monozukuri* spirit of conscientious manufacturing and the *genchi genbutsu* principle of placing emphasis on on-site operations with a go-and-see attitude for continued improvement and problem solving. These shared values and ideals are the guiding principles under which Toyota and its group companies conduct their operations with the aim of achieving the objectives of the Vision.

Toyota works closely with its group companies to achieve the four key medium-term initiatives of the Vision, which include the product strategy of the promotion of localized production of vehicles that meet the unique customer needs of each market; continued efforts to position Lexus as a global premium brand from Japan that is the vehicle of choice for discerning automobile customers; the supply strategy of the continued

21

Table of Contents

efficient utilization of existing production capacity and the review of investments for expanded capacity in Japan, North America and other developed countries as well as emerging countries; and the participation in the development of smart community projects and collaboration with industry-leading information technology companies in order to promote a new mobility society that connects vehicles, homes, and information networks and enables community energy management.

The economic environment surrounding the Toyota group is changing rapidly and dramatically, with automotive markets expanding primarily in China, India and other emerging countries. The Toyota group s business environment is expected to remain highly competitive mainly due to the rapid increase in vehicle unit sales by automotive manufacturers in South Korea, North America and Europe, as well as intense competition in the technical development of green vehicles such as hybrid vehicles and electric vehicles.

Given these highly competitive business conditions, Toyota believes it is essential to build a business framework that will enable it to utilize its group resources to the fullest extent in order to implement the key initiatives of the Vision.

Historically, Toyota group vehicle manufacturers have supported Toyota in the global marketing of Toyota and Lexus vehicles through the provision of resources, including manufacture of vehicles, parts and components and human resources. Toyota aims to respond with increased speed to the needs of customers around the world by defining the roles of its group vehicle manufacturers to enable Toyota to make the best use of the advantages and strengths of each manufacturer. Body manufacturers, brand manufacturers and Toyota itself will each strive to further strengthen their business in the following ways in order to collectively maximize the overall performance of the Toyota group:

Body Manufacturers. Toyota works closely with the following manufacturers for the development and manufacture of Toyota vehicle bodies: Kanto and Central Motor in respect of compact vehicles; Toyota Auto Body Co., Ltd. in respect of medium-size minivans, commercial vehicles and sport utility vehicles; and Toyota Motor Kyushu, Inc. in respect of Lexus and large-size Toyota vehicles. These manufacturers intend to continue to work closely with Toyota in the Toyota and Lexus businesses, with Toyota and each manufacturer performing more clearly defined roles in order to achieve the key initiatives of the Vision. The body manufacturers are to play a leading role in planning, developing and manufacturing of certain vehicle models within their expertise. In addition, the body manufacturers intend to develop vehicles targeted at overseas markets, support the preparation of overseas production, and strengthen their capabilities for the overseas expansion of vehicle related operations such as manufacture of welfare vehicles and super-compact electric vehicles and related parts and components. Toyota believes that the body manufacturers, including Kanto s, more active involvement in Toyota s overseas operations by utilizing their expertise and skills would lead to efficient application of resources in the overseas operations of the Toyota group. Toyota hopes that this in turn would contribute to further streamline decision-making within the respective regions and further the realization of one of Toyota s goals of building a structure where decisions can be made regionally, in areas closest to its customers.

Brand Manufacturers. Daihatsu Motor Co., Ltd. and Hino Motors Ltd. have invested heavily in supporting Toyota s business while developing their own brands. Daihatsu is a brand manufacturer of mini-vehicles and low-priced subcompact vehicles and Hino is a brand manufacturer of pick-up trucks and commercial vehicles. Going forward, these manufacturers intend to focus on enhancing and expanding their own brands globally, while also collaborating with Toyota on products and technology.

Toyota. Toyota will be responsible for Lexus and Toyota s global brand vehicle models, Camry, Corolla, and Yaris. Toyota also aims to enhance efforts in next-generation areas and new fields such as the development of next-generation green vehicles, the development of gasoline engines with high fuel efficiency, and expanding lines of hybrid vehicle models. In addition, Toyota will play a role in developing and expanding new value-added products and services such as smart grids and new mobility vehicles.

Table of Contents

Of the four key initiatives of the Vision, Toyota expects Kanto to play a more active and substantial role primarily in the product strategy and the supply strategy. In the product strategy, Kanto will aim to play a leading role in planning, developing and manufacturing of compact vehicles in order to offer, in a timely manner, good-quality, affordable vehicles that meet customers needs. In the supply strategy, Kanto, together with Central Motor and Toyota Motor Tohoku, will strive to play a leading role in the Tohoku area as the third vehicle manufacturing hub following Chubu and Kyushu. Kanto aims to contribute to the support of overseas production in the Toyota global business by further developing its skills in the manufacturing of vehicles.

Toyota and the group companies aim to act as one, while each playing defined roles. Toyota believes that this approach would maximize overall group performance, which would lead to the achievement of the objectives of the Vision.

Strengthened Role of Kanto

Kanto shares the ideals of the Toyota Global Vision. As a body manufacturer, Kanto s operations contribute to the domestic and global businesses in the Toyota group and Kanto is expected to serve a more active and substantial role within the Toyota group going forward. Kanto s new corporate vision is to become a globally competitive comprehensive vehicle manufacturer engaged in a broad range of processes related to compact vehicles, vehicle and unit planning, development and manufacturing. Through this vision, Kanto aims to contribute in the support of overseas production of compact vehicles and to become a manufacturing hub in the Tohoku area, together with Central Motor and Toyota Motor Tohoku. Towards those ends, Kanto aims to perform the following two strengthened roles within the Toyota group:

- (1) Active role in the planning, developing and manufacturing of primarily compact vehicles. Historically, Toyota has entrusted the development and manufacture of certain vehicle models to Kanto. Following the share exchange, Kanto s role within the Toyota group will change substantially from a supporting role in the development and manufacturing of Toyota vehicles, to a leading role in the planning, development and manufacturing of compact vehicles. Kanto aims to be actively involved in a broad range of processes related to Toyota brand compact vehicles, beginning with the initial planning stage and including implementation and development of high-volume production methods. By developing vehicles by model line (including variant models within each model line) rather than by individual model, Kanto aims to be able to efficiently plan and develop vehicles that match customers needs. Kanto also aims to strengthen the procurement of local supplies and integrate the development-to-production and procurement processes in order to manufacture globally competitive compact vehicles. Kanto aims to work to promote measures integrated with Toyota's global product strategy to make better vehicles through marketing efforts such as studies of customer needs and technological developments aimed at increasing product appeal.
- (2) Expanded supporting role for the overseas production of compact vehicles. Building on its expertise in manufacturing compact vehicles, Kanto aims to play an expanded role in supporting the development and production of vehicles overseas. Currently, Kanto manufactures certain parts and components overseas and supplies them to Toyota s global operations. Going forward, as a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota, in addition to the continued overseas production of parts and components, Kanto aims to actively contribute to Toyota s global operations by striving to develop compact vehicles that satisfy the preferences of customers not only in Japan but around the world and by applying its know-how and expertise in compact cars that it has developed, or will continue to develop, in Japan to support overseas production. To this end, Kanto intends to work closely with Toyota and its group companies overseas.

In addition, in order to achieve the objectives of the Vision, Kanto plans to consider merging its business with Central Motor, a manufacturer of compact vehicles in Miyagi Prefecture, and Toyota Motor Tohoku, a manufacturer of suspension parts and materials as well as electronic unit components also in Miyagi Prefecture. The three companies agreed to consider a merger out of a common belief that by working together to achieve efficient production in the Tohoku area supply chain as a whole, as well as efficient and prompt vehicle and unit

23

parts development, the three companies could become a comprehensive vehicle manufacturer capable of delivering competitive compact vehicles and unit parts globally. Through the Subsidiary Integration, Kanto would form Toyota's Tohoku area manufacturing hub, which would be Toyota's third national hub. Toyota's Chubu hub focuses on innovation and development of new technology and manufacturing methods and serves as the center of Toyota's domestic vehicle manufacturing. Toyota's Kyushu hub focuses on implementation and development of high-volume production methods with respect to mid-size and Lexis brand vehicles. As Toyota's Tohoku hub, Kanto would focus on compact vehicles, including the development and manufacture of compact vehicles and the implementation and development of high-volume production methods. Toyota believes that its hubs allow the Toyota group to focus on and develop expertise in multiple areas at once and to respond more quickly to consumer preferences and market conditions. Toyota and Kanto believe that the Subsidiary Integration would further enable Kanto to contribute to the domestic and global businesses of Toyota. The Subsidiary Integration is premised on Kanto becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota through the share exchange. The three companies are currently targeting July 2012 as a merger completion date, and have agreed to establish an integration committee and to consider the terms of the planned merger.

Determination of Kanto s Board of Directors

On July 13, 2011, the meeting of the board of directors of Kanto was convened to resolve the share exchange agreement. Of the seven members of the board, six members were in attendance and unanimously resolved that the share exchange ratio was fair to the non-controlling shareholders of Kanto and approved the share exchange agreement. The remaining director, Mr. Yasuhiko Ichihashi, who serves as an advisor of Toyota, did not attend the board meeting nor did he participate in the discussions and negotiations with Toyota on behalf of Kanto in order to prevent possible conflicts of interest. In addition, of the four corporate auditors of Kanto, three corporate auditors (including two outside corporate auditors) also participated in the deliberation of the board meeting and opined that they had no objections to the execution of the share exchange agreement by Kanto. The remaining corporate auditor of Kanto, Mr. Wahei Hirai, who served as an advisor of Toyota until the end of June 2011, did not attend the board meeting in order to prevent possible conflicts of interest.

In making its determination to approve the share exchange agreement, with advice from Kanto s financial and legal advisors, the board of directors of Kanto considered a number of factors, including the following:

the board s knowledge of the businesses, operations, financial condition, earnings and future prospects of both Kanto and Toyota;

the board s knowledge of the current and prospective economic, market and industry environment in which Kanto and Toyota operate;

the results of the legal due diligence of Toyota s operations conducted by Kanto and its legal advisor;

the results of analyses of the share exchange ratio, prepared by Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities, which included historical share exchange ratio analysis, comparable companies analysis and discounted cash flow analysis;

the original signed version of the fairness opinion of Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities, which was delivered to the board of directors of Kanto immediately prior to the approval of the share exchange agreement, to the effect that, as of the date of the opinion and subject to certain assumptions and reservations set forth therein, the proposed share exchange ratio was fair from a financial point of view to the holders of Kanto shares other than Kanto s controlling shareholders as defined in Article 441-2 of the Securities Listing Regulations of Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. and Article 436-3 of the Enforcement Rules of the Tokyo Stock Exchange;

the fact that the outside auditors who did not have conflicts of interest expressed no objections to Kanto s execution of the share exchange agreement; and

the terms of the share exchange agreement and its effects, including, without limitation, the fact that Toyota would become the sole shareholder of Kanto upon consummation of the share exchange.

24

Table of Contents

The foregoing discussion of the information considered by the board of directors of Kanto is not exhaustive, but includes the material factors that the board of directors of Kanto considered in approving the share exchange. In view of the wide variety of factors considered in connection with its evaluation of the share exchange and the complexity of these matters, the board of directors of Kanto did not find it useful, and did not attempt, to quantify, rank or otherwise assign relative weights to these factors. The board of directors of Kanto conducted an overall analysis of the factors described above, including discussions with Kanto s financial and legal advisors, and considered the factors overall to be favorable to, and to support, its determination.

The above description contains forward-looking statements and, therefore, should be read in light of the factors discussed under Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements.

Opinion of Kanto s Financial Advisor

Opinion of Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities

Kanto retained Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities to provide financial advisory services in connection with the share exchange and to render a financial opinion in connection with the share exchange between Toyota and Kanto under the Companies Act. At a meeting of the Kanto board of directors on July 13, 2011, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities delivered to Kanto s board of directors Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s written opinion dated July 12, 2011, that, as of such date, based on and subject to the various assumptions, limitations and qualifications set forth in its opinion, the share exchange ratio pursuant to the share exchange agreement was fair, from a financial point of view, to the holders of shares of common stock of Kanto other than Kanto s controlling shareholders as defined in Article 441-2 of the Securities Listing Regulations of Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. (Tokyo Stock Exchange) and Article 436-3 of the Enforcement Rules of the Tokyo Stock Exchange (the Controlling Shareholders).

The original written opinion of Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities dated July 12, 2011 delivered to the board of directors of Kanto was prepared in Japanese. The full text of an English translation of Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s opinion is attached to this document as Appendix B. The opinion sets forth, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and qualifications and limitations on the scope of the review undertaken by Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities in rendering its opinion. You are urged to read the entire opinion carefully. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s opinion is directed to Kanto s board of directors and addresses only the fairness from a financial point of view of the share exchange ratio pursuant to the share exchange agreement to holders of shares of common stock of Kanto as of the date of the opinion. The opinion does not address any other aspects of the transaction and does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholders of Kanto or Toyota as to how such shareholder should vote or act on any matter at any special meeting with respect to the share exchange.

Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities has consented to the inclusion of (i) its opinion letter, dated July 12, 2011, to the board of directors of Kanto as Appendix B to the registration statement on Form F-4 relating to the proposed share exchange involving Kanto and Toyota and (ii) references made to such opinion in the sections captioned The Share Exchange Reasons for the Share Exchange Determination of Kanto s Board of Directors and The Share Exchange Reasons for the Share Exchange Opinions of Kanto s Financial Advisors of the registration statement. In giving such consent, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities did not admit that Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities comes within the category of persons whose consent is required under, nor did Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities admit that Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities is an expert for purposes of, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

In connection with rendering its opinion, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities, among other things;

- (a) reviewed certain publicly available financial statements and other business and financial information of Kanto and Toyota, respectively;
- (b) reviewed certain internal financial statements and other financial and operating data concerning Kanto;

25

Table of Contents

- (c) reviewed certain financial projections prepared by the managements of Kanto and Toyota, respectively;
- (d) discussed the past and current operations and financial condition and the prospects of Kanto, including information relating to certain strategic, financial and operational benefits anticipated from the share exchange, with senior executives of Kanto;
- (e) discussed the past and current operations and financial condition and the prospects of Toyota, including information relating to certain strategic, financial and operational benefits anticipated from the share exchange, with senior executives of Toyota;
- (f) reviewed the reported prices and trading activity for common stock of Kanto and Toyota, respectively;
- (g) compared the financial performance of Kanto and Toyota and the prices and trading activity of the common stock of Kanto and Toyota with that of certain other publicly-traded companies comparable with Kanto and Toyota, respectively, and their securities;
- (h) reviewed the financial terms, to the extent publicly available, of certain comparable acquisition transactions;
- (i) participated in discussions and negotiations among representatives of Kanto and the representative of Toyota and Toyota s financial advisor:
- (j) reviewed the share exchange agreement (draft dated as of July 11, 2011) and certain related documents; and
- (k) considered such other factors as Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities deemed appropriate.

Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness of the information that was publicly available or supplied or otherwise made available to it by Kanto and Toyota, and formed a substantial basis for its opinion. With respect to the financial projections, including information relating to certain strategic, financial and operational benefits anticipated from the share exchange, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities assumed that they had been reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of the respective managements of Kanto and Toyota of the future financial performance of Kanto and Toyota. In addition, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities assumed that the share exchange would be consummated in accordance with the terms set forth in the share exchange agreement, without any waiver, amendment or delay of any terms or conditions, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities assumed that in connection with the receipt of all the necessary governmental, regulatory or other approvals and consents required for the proposed share exchange, no delays, limitations, conditions or restrictions would be imposed that would have a material adverse effect on the contemplated benefits expected to be derived in the proposed share exchange. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities is not a legal, accounting or tax advisor. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities is a financial advisor only and has relied upon, without independent verification, the assessment of Kanto and Toyota and their legal, accounting and tax advisors with respect to legal, accounting and tax matters. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities expressed no opinion with respect to the fairness of the amount or nature of the compensation to any of Kanto s officers, directors or employees, or any class of such persons, relative to the consideration to be received by the holders of shares of common stock of Kanto in the share exchange. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities did not make any independent valuation or appraisal of the assets or liabilities of Kanto or Toyota, nor was Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities furnished with any such appraisals. Further, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s opinion did not in any manner address the prices at which common stock of Kanto or Toyota would trade at any time, including following consummation of the share exchange and Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities expressed no opinion or recommendation as to how the shareholders of Kanto should vote at the shareholders meetings to be held in connection with the share exchange. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s opinion was necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as in effect on, and the information made available to Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities as of the date of the opinion. Events occurring after the date of the opinion may affect Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s opinion and the assumptions used in preparing it, and Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities did not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm its opinion. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s opinion was approved by a committee of Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s investment banking and other professionals in accordance with its customary practice.

Financial Analyses of Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities

The following is a brief summary of the material financial analyses performed by Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities in connection with the preparation of its written opinion letter dated July 12, 2011. The following summary includes information presented in tabular format. In order to understand fully the financial analyses used by Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities, these tables must be read together with the text of each summary. The tables alone do not constitute a complete description of the financial analyses. The analyses listed in the tables and described below must be considered as a whole; considering any portion of such analyses and the factors considered, without considering all analyses and factors, could create a misleading or incomplete view of the process underlying Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s financial opinion.

Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s financial analyses consisted of, with respect to Kanto, (i) a historical share exchange ratio analysis, (ii) a comparable companies analysis and (iii) a discounted cash flow analysis, and (iv) a precedent transactions analysis and, with respect to Toyota, a historical share exchange ratio analysis. Detailed descriptions for each analysis are as follows.

Historical Share Exchange Ratio Analysis. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities reviewed the share exchange ratios of the recent trading performance of Kanto common shares and Toyota common shares using July 11, 2011 as a record date (Record Date). In order to calculate the market prices, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities referred to the Record Date and the periods of one (1) week, one (1) month and three (3) months prior to the Record Date to calculate the share exchange ratio based on Kanto and Toyota's closing stock prices on each of the trading dates during those periods. The share exchange ratios are summarized in the table below.

Historical Share Exchange Ratio

Record Date	0.231
1 week prior to Record Date	0.216~0.231
1 month prior to Record Date	0.194~0.231
3 months prior to Record Date	0.155~0.231

Comparable Companies Analysis. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities reviewed and compared the financial information for Kanto against the corresponding financial information, ratios and public market multiples for the following publicly traded companies that share similar business characteristics with the entire business of Kanto.

Comparable Companies of Kanto

Toyota Auto Body Co., Ltd.

Nissan Shatai Co., Ltd.

Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities selected the comparable companies above from among the three major listed auto-body makers in Japan which have businesses similar to Kanto. From these major listed auto-body makers, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities excluded Yachiyo Industry Co., Ltd. as Yachiyo Industry Co., Ltd. s primary business is auto parts, while Toyota Auto Body Co., Ltd. and Nissan Shatai Co., Ltd. both focus mainly on auto body.

For each of these comparable companies, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities calculated the ratio of aggregate value, defined as the sum of market capitalization, minority interests and the total debt less cash and cash equivalents including marketable securities, to estimated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, which is referred to as EBITDA, for the fiscal years ending March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013, based on the most recent publicly available information and closing prices as of July 11, 2011. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities selected representative ranges of financial multiples of the comparable companies as follows.

	FY11E	FY12E
Aggregate Value to EBITDA multiples	1.2x~2.2x	$0.9x \sim 1.9x$

27

Table of Contents

Based on this analysis, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities used the 1 week average price for Toyota common stock ending on July 11, 2011, in order to derive a range of share exchange ratios of 0.131 to 0.233.

No company analyzed in the comparable companies analysis is identical to Kanto. In evaluating the comparable companies, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities made judgments and assumptions with regard to industry performance, general business, economic, market and financial conditions and other matters, which are beyond the control of Kanto, such as the impact of competition on the business of Kanto or the industry generally, industry growth and the absence of any material adverse change in the financial condition of Kanto or the industry or in the financial markets in general, which could affect the public trading value of the companies.

Discounted Cash Flow Analysis. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities performed a discounted cash flow analysis to estimate a range of present values per share of common stock of Kanto assuming Kanto continues to operate as a stand-alone entity. This range was determined by adding (i) the sum of the discounted net present value of the stream of the unlevered free cash flows of Kanto expected to be generated over the next five years ending March 31, 2016 and (ii) the discounted net present value of the terminal value, calculated by applying a range of aggregate value to EBITDA multiples to the normalized EBITDA of Kanto for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2016. The financial projections used in the discounted cash flow analysis are based on Kanto s projections provided by the management of Kanto. The cash flow stream and terminal value were discounted to present value using a range of discount rates for Kanto, which was chosen by Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities based upon Kanto s risk characteristics and an analysis of weighted average costs of capital, or WACC.

The range of aggregate value to EBITDA multiples for calculation of the terminal values and discount rates applied to Kanto are as follows.

	Aggregate Value to	
	EBITDA multiples	Discount Rates
Kanto	1.75x~2.25x	7% ~ 9%

The respective aggregate values were then adjusted for indebtedness, net of cash and cash equivalents including marketable securities, and minority interests based on the estimated balance sheets as of January 1, 2012.

Based on this analysis, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities used the 1 week average price for Toyota common stock ending on July 11, 2011, in order to derive a range of the share exchange ratios of 0.168 to 0.269.

Precedent Transactions Analysis. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities performed an analysis of precedent Share Exchange Only transactions in Japan announced since 2010 where the target company (i) had already been consolidated by the acquiring company and (ii) was turned into a wholly owned subsidiary by the acquiring company. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities excluded precedent transactions in which a tender offer was followed by a subsequent share exchange.

In connection with this analysis, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities calculated the premium and discount by comparing the target companies predicted stock prices based on the announced share exchange ratio with the stock price of the target company on the day before the announcement, 1 month prior to and 3 months prior to the announcement date, respectively. The results from this analysis are as follows:

Implied premiums

	Closing Price	1 month ave.	3 months ave.
Average value after Jan, 2011	12.6%	11.4%	12.9%
Average value after Jan, 2010	18.3%	15.6%	17.1%

28

General

In connection with the review of the share exchange by Kanto s board of directors, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities performed a variety of financial and comparative analyses for purposes of rendering its opinion.

The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process and is not necessarily susceptible to a partial analysis or summary description. In arriving at its opinion, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities considered the results of all of its analyses as a whole and did not attribute any particular weight to any analysis or factor it considered. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities believes that selecting any portion of its analyses, without considering all analyses as a whole, would create an incomplete view of the process underlying its analyses and opinion. In addition, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities may have given various analyses and factors more or less weight than other analyses and factors, and may have deemed various assumptions more or less probable than other assumptions. As a result, the range of valuations resulting from any particular analysis described above should not be taken to be Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s view of the actual value of Kanto or Toyota. In performing its analysis, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities made numerous assumptions with respect to industry performance, general business and economic conditions and other matters, many of which are beyond the control of Kanto or Toyota. Any estimates contained in Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s analyses are not necessarily indicative of future results or actual values, which may be significantly more or less favorable than those suggested by these estimates.

Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities conducted the analyses described above solely as part of its analysis of the fairness of the share exchange ratio pursuant to the share exchange agreement from a financial point of view to the holders of shares of common stock of Kanto other than the Controlling Shareholders, and in connection with the delivery by Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities of its opinion, dated July 12, 2011, to the Kanto board of directors. These analyses do not purport to be appraisals or to reflect the prices at which shares of common stock of Kanto or Toyota might actually trade.

The share exchange ratio was determined through arm s length negotiations between Kanto and Toyota and was approved by Kanto s board of directors. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities did not recommend any specific share exchange ratio to Kanto or its board of directors or that any specific share exchange ratio constituted the only appropriate share exchange ratio for the share exchange.

Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s opinion and its presentation to Kanto s representatives was only one of many factors taken into consideration by Kanto s board of directors in deciding to approve the share exchange. Consequently, the analyses as described above should not be viewed as determinative of the opinion of Kanto s board of directors with respect to the share exchange ratio or of whether Kanto s board of directors would have been willing to agree to a different share exchange ratio. The foregoing summary describes the material analyses performed by Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities but does not purport to be a complete description of the analyses performed by Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities.

Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities and its affiliates (the Group) are a global financial services firm engaged in the banking, securities, trust, investment management, credit services and other financial businesses (collectively, Financial Services). Its securities business is engaged in securities underwriting, trading, and brokerage activities, foreign exchange, commodities and derivatives trading, as well as providing investment banking, financing and financial advisory services. In the ordinary course of its underwriting, trading, brokerage and financing activities, the Group may at any time hold long or short positions, may provide Financial Services to Kanto, Toyota or companies that may be involved in the share exchange and may trade or otherwise effect transactions, for its own account or the accounts of customers, in debt or equity securities or

29

Table of Contents

loans of Kanto, Toyota or any company that may be involved in the share exchange, or in any currency or commodity that may be involved in the share exchange, or in any related derivative instrument. The Group, its directors and officers may also at any time invest on a principal basis or manage funds that invest on a principal basis, in debt or equity securities of Kanto, Toyota, or any company that may be involved in the share exchange, or in any currency or commodity that may be involved in the share exchange, or in any related derivative instrument. Further, the Group may at any time carry out ordinary course broking activities for Kanto, Toyota, or any company that may be involved in the share exchange.

In the past, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities or its affiliates have provided financial advisory and financing services for Toyota and its affiliates and have received fees for the rendering of these services. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities and its affiliates may also seek to provide such services to Kanto, Toyota and their respective affiliates in the future and expect to receive fees for the rendering of these services.

Under the terms of its engagement letter, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities has acted as financial advisor to the board of directors of Kanto in connection with this transaction and will receive a total fee of 160 million Japanese yen for its services, 30 million Japanese yen of which is contingent upon the consummation of the share exchange. Kanto has also agreed to reimburse Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities for its expenses incurred in performing its services. In addition, Kanto agreed to indemnify Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities and its affiliates, their respective directors, officers, agents and employees and each person, if any, controlling Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities or any of its affiliates against certain liabilities and expenses, including certain liabilities under the U.S. federal securities laws, related to or arising out of Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities s engagement.

Material Terms of the Share Exchange Agreement

On July 13, 2011, Toyota and Kanto entered into a share exchange agreement setting forth the terms of the share exchange. The following is a summary of material provisions of the share exchange agreement. This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the share exchange agreement, an English translation of which is incorporated by reference in its entirety and attached to this prospectus as Appendix A.

Structure of the Share Exchange

Upon the effectiveness of the share exchange, the following events will occur:

Toyota will deliver to shareholders of Kanto common stock, excluding Toyota and Kanto, in exchange for Kanto common stock, the number of shares of Toyota common stock calculated by multiplying the total number of shares of Kanto common stock held by shareholders of Kanto common stock as of the time immediately preceding the share exchange by 0.25.

shareholders of Kanto common stock (other than Kanto, with respect to its treasury shares, which will be cancelled, and Toyota, with respect to shares of Kanto owned by it) as of the time immediately preceding the share exchange will be allotted a number of shares of Toyota common stock based on the ratio of 0.25 Toyota shares for one Kanto share, such amount (excluding any fractional shares) to be reflected in Toyota s register of shareholders; and

in lieu of any fractional shares of Toyota common stock that would otherwise be allotted to former shareholders of Kanto, the former shareholders of Kanto will receive cash as described in more detail in Holders of Fractional Shares.

Effect of the Share Exchange

As a result of the share exchange, Toyota will acquire all outstanding shares of Kanto common stock (excluding shares of Kanto common stock already owned by Toyota). Toyota will become the sole shareholder of Kanto, and Kanto will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota.

Toyota s Stated Capital and Reserves

The stated capital and retained earnings reserves of Toyota will not increase as a result of the share exchange. The amount of Toyota s capital reserves will be the minimum amount required to be increased pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.

Effective Date of the Share Exchange

The share exchange will become effective on January 1, 2012, subject to changes in certain circumstances.

Extraordinary Meeting of Shareholders of Kanto

Kanto will seek the approval of its shareholders for the terms of the share exchange agreement at the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto scheduled to be held on , 2011.

Modification, Termination and Effectiveness of the Share Exchange Agreement

Toyota and Kanto may, upon mutual consultation, modify or terminate the share exchange agreement, if, during the period commencing from the execution date of the share exchange agreement until the effective date of the share exchange, due to an act of god or other events, (i) a material change occurs to the assets or results of operations of Toyota or Kanto, (ii) a material impediment arises in the implementation of the share exchange or (iii) it otherwise becomes difficult to achieve the purpose of the share exchange agreement.

The share exchange agreement shall cease to have effect if (i) shareholders of Toyota holding more than one-ninth of shares with votes entitled to be exercised at the shareholders meeting submit a notification to Toyota to the effect that such shareholders dissent to the share exchange and the share exchange agreement is not approved at a shareholders meeting of Toyota, (ii) the share exchange agreement is not approved at a shareholders meeting of Kanto, (iii) any of the approvals from the relevant regulatory authorities are not obtained or (iv) the share exchange agreement has been terminated pursuant to the preceding paragraph.

Holders of Fractional Shares

In accordance with the Companies Act, Kanto shareholders will not receive any fractional shares of Toyota common stock in the share exchange. Instead, the shares representing the aggregate of all such fractions (in case where such aggregated shares include any fractional shares, such fraction will be rounded down) will be sold to Toyota at the market price and the net cash proceeds from the sale will be distributed to the former holders of Kanto shares on a proportionate basis in accordance with their respective fractions.

Kanto Voting Matters

The close of business on September 30, 2011 has been fixed by the resolution of Kantos board of directors as the record date for determination of the holders of Kanto common stock entitled to exercise shareholders rights at Kantos extraordinary meeting. As of September 30, 2011, there were shares of Kanto common stock issued and outstanding. See Extraordinary Meeting of Kanto Shareholders for a more detailed description of the vote required, and the use and revocation of mail-in voting cards, at the extraordinary meeting of shareholders.

Dissenters Appraisal Rights

Any Kanto shareholder (i) who notifies Kanto in any form prior to the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of his or her intention to oppose the share exchange, and who votes against approval of the share exchange at the extraordinary meeting, or (ii) who is not entitled to vote at such extraordinary meeting of shareholders, and complies with the other procedures set forth in the Companies Act and share handling

31

Table of Contents

regulations of Kanto (a dissenting shareholder) may demand that Kanto purchase his or her shares of Kanto common stock at the fair value. If a shareholder votes against the share exchange by submitting a mail-in voting card, such submission will satisfy all requirements mentioned in (i) above. The failure of a shareholder who is entitled to vote at such extraordinary meeting of shareholders to provide such notice prior to the extraordinary meeting or to vote against approval of the share exchange agreement at the extraordinary meeting will in effect constitute a waiver of the shareholder s right to demand that Kanto purchase his or her shares of common stock at the fair value. The dissenting shareholder who has made such demand may withdraw such demand only if Kanto approves such withdrawal.

Kanto will give individual or public notice to its shareholders announcing that Kanto intends to execute the share exchange and provide the name and address of Toyota, no later than 20 days prior to the effective date of the share exchange (such public notice may be made prior to the date of the extraordinary meeting of shareholders). The demand referred to in the preceding paragraph must be made within the period from the day 20 days prior to the effective date of the share exchange to the date immediately preceding the effective date of the share exchange.

The demand must state the number of shares relating to such demand. The Companies Act does not require any other statement in the demand. Accordingly, the demand is legally valid regardless of whether the demand includes the dissenting holder s estimate of the fair value of shares. The dissenting shareholder must also request an individual shareholder notification (*kobetsu kabunushi tsuchi*) through its standing proxy in Japan From Japan Securities Depository Center, Inc., or JASDEC, and submit a receipt of the individual shareholder notification and identity verification documents to Kanto upon the request from Kanto.

If the value of such shares is agreed upon between the dissenting shareholder and Kanto, then Kanto is required to make payment to such dissenting shareholder of the agreed value within 60 days of the effective date of the share exchange. If the dissenting shareholder and Kanto do not agree on the value of such shares within 30 days from the effective date of the share exchange, the shareholder or Kanto may, within 30 days after the expiration of such period, file a petition with the Yokosuka Branch of Yokohama District Court for a determination of the value of his or her shares. Kanto is also required to make payment of statutory interest on such share value as determined by the court accruing from the expiration of the 60-day period referred to in the second preceding sentence. The transfer of shares from dissenters to Kanto becomes effective on the effective date of the share exchange.

Dissenter s appraisal rights for shareholders of a company becoming a wholly owned subsidiary through a share exchange are set forth in Articles 785 and 786 of the Companies Act. An English translation of these articles is included in this prospectus as Appendix C.

Status of Toyota Common Stock under the Federal Securities Laws

The exchange of shares of Kanto common stock held by U.S. shareholders for shares of Toyota common stock pursuant to the share exchange has been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act). Accordingly, there will be no restrictions under the Securities Act on the resale or transfer of such shares by U.S. shareholders of Kanto except for those shareholders, if any, who become affiliates of Toyota as such term is used in Rule 144 under the Securities Act. Persons who may be deemed to be affiliates of Toyota generally include individuals or entities that, directly or indirectly, control, are controlled by, or are under common control with Toyota. With respect to those shareholders who may be deemed to be affiliates of Toyota after the share exchange, Rule 144 places certain restrictions on the offer and sale within the United States or to U.S. persons of shares of Toyota common stock that may be received by them pursuant to the share exchange. This prospectus does not cover resales of shares of Toyota common stock received by any person who may be deemed to be an affiliate of Toyota after the share exchange.

32

Accounting Treatment

Kanto was a consolidated subsidiary of Toyota prior to the share exchange as Toyota had a controlling financial interest. As the share exchange does not result in a change of control of Kanto, the share exchange will be accounted for by Toyota in accordance with ASC 810 Consolidation. Increases or decreases in Toyota sownership interest in Kanto, while Toyota retains its controlling financial interest, will be accounted for as equity transactions. No gain or loss will be recognized in the consolidated statements of income of Toyota and the carrying amount of the noncontrolling interest will be adjusted to reflect the change in Toyota sownership interest in Kanto. Any difference between the fair value of the consideration paid by Toyota and the amount by which the noncontrolling interest is adjusted will be recognized within Toyota sonsolidated balance sheet.

Differences in Shareholders Rights

There are no material differences between the rights of shareholders of Toyota common stock and Kanto common stock from a legal perspective.

Tax Consequences of the Share Exchange

Non-resident holders of shares of Kanto common stock will generally not be subject to Japanese taxation with respect to the share exchange, except with respect to cash payments of the sale price from Kanto as a result of their exercise of dissenters appraisal rights.

The share exchange has not been structured to achieve a particular treatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and Toyota and Kanto have no obligation to structure the share exchange in a manner that is tax-free to U.S. Holders. As structured, however, the share exchange is expected to qualify as a tax-deferred reorganization under the provisions of the Code, but such qualification depends on the resolution of issues and facts that will not be known until the date of the share exchange. Neither Toyota nor Kanto has obtained or will obtain a ruling from the IRS or an opinion of U.S. counsel that the share exchange will qualify as a reorganization. If the share exchange qualifies as a reorganization, no gain or loss generally will be recognized by a U.S. Holder on the exchange of shares of Kanto common stock for shares of Toyota common stock pursuant to the share exchange, except with respect to any cash received in lieu of a fractional share of Toyota common stock and unless Kanto has been a PFIC at any time during the holding period of the U.S. Holder. If the share exchange does not qualify as a reorganization, a U.S. Holder that exchanges its shares of Kanto common stock for shares of Toyota common stock will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between (i) the sum of (a) the fair market value of the shares of Toyota common stock received and (b) any cash received in lieu of fractional shares of Toyota common stock and (ii) the U.S. Holder s adjusted tax basis in the shares of Kanto common stock exchanged. See Taxation for further discussion regarding the tax consequences of the share exchange.

33

REGULATION

Japanese Foreign Exchange Controls

The Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade Law and the cabinet orders and ministerial ordinances thereunder (collectively, the Foreign Exchange Regulations), govern the acquisition and holding of shares of capital stock of Toyota by exchange non-residents and by foreign investors. The Foreign Exchange Regulations currently in effect do not, however, affect transactions between exchange non-residents to purchase or sell shares outside Japan using currencies other than Japanese yen.

Exchange non-residents are:

individuals who do not reside in Japan; and

corporations whose principal offices are located outside Japan.

Generally, branches and other offices of non-resident corporations that are located within Japan are regarded as residents of Japan. Conversely, branches and other offices of Japanese corporations located outside Japan are regarded as exchange non-residents.

Foreign investors are:

individuals who are exchange non-residents;

corporations or other organizations that are organized under the laws of foreign countries or whose principal offices are located outside of Japan; and

corporations (1) of which 50% or more of their voting rights are held directly or indirectly by individuals who are exchange non-residents and/or corporations or other organizations (a) that are organized under the laws of foreign countries or (b) whose principal offices are located outside of Japan or (2) a majority of whose officers, or officers having the power of representation, are individuals who are exchange non-residents.

Acquisition of Equity Securities

In general, the acquisition of shares of a Japanese company (such as the shares of capital stock of Toyota) by an exchange non-resident from a resident of Japan is not subject to any prior filing requirements. In certain limited circumstances, however, the Minister of Finance may require prior approval of an acquisition of this type. While prior approval, as described above, is not required, in the case where a resident of Japan transfers shares of a Japanese company (such as the shares of capital stock of Toyota) for consideration exceeding ¥100 million to an exchange non-resident, the resident of Japan who transfers the shares is required to report the transfer to the Minister of Finance within 20 days from the date of the transfer, unless the transfer was made through a bank, securities company or financial futures trader licensed under Japanese law.

If a foreign investor acquires shares of a Japanese company that is listed on a Japanese stock exchange (such as the shares of capital stock of Toyota) and, as a result of the acquisition, the foreign investor, in combination with any existing holdings, directly or indirectly holds 10% or more of the issued shares of the relevant company, the foreign investor, with certain exceptions, must file a report of the acquisition with the Minister of Finance and any other competent Ministers having jurisdiction over that Japanese company by the 15th day of the month following the month in which the date of the acquisition falls. In limited circumstances, such as where the foreign investor is in a country that is not listed on an exemption schedule in the Foreign Exchange Regulations, a prior notification of the acquisition must be filed with the Minister of Finance and any other competent Ministers, who may then modify or prohibit the proposed acquisition.

34

Distributions and Proceeds of Sale

Under the Foreign Exchange Regulations, dividends paid on, and the proceeds of sales in Japan of, shares held by non-residents of Japan may in general be converted into any foreign currency and repatriated abroad. Under the terms of the deposit agreement pursuant to which Toyota s ADSs are issued, the Depositary is required, to the extent that in its judgment it can convert yen on a reasonable basis into dollars and transfer the resulting dollars to the United States, to convert all cash dividends that it receives in respect of deposited shares into dollars and to distribute the amount received (after deduction of applicable withholding taxes) to the holders of ADSs.

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

Toyota

As of March 31, 2011, 3,447,997,492 shares of Toyota common stock were issued, out of which, 312,298,805 shares were treasury stock and 3,135,698,687 shares were outstanding.

Under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law, any person who becomes, beneficially and solely or jointly, a holder, including, but not limited to, a deemed holder who manages shares for another holder pursuant to a discretionary investment agreement, of more than 5% of the total issued shares of a company listed on a Japanese stock exchange (including ADSs representing such shares) must file a report concerning the shareholding with the director of the relevant local finance bureau. A similar report must be filed, with certain exceptions, if the percentage of shares held by a holder, solely or jointly, of more than 5% of the total issued shares of a company increases or decreases by 1% or more, or if any change to a material matter set forth in any previously filed reports occurs.

Based on information known to Toyota or that can be ascertained from public filings, including filings made by Toyota s shareholders regarding their ownership of Toyota common stock under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan, the following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of holders of more than 5% of Toyota common stock as of March 31, 2011.

	Number of	Percentage of
	Shares	Shares
Name of Beneficial Owner	(in thousands)	Issued
Toyota Industries Corporation	215,640	6.25

On December 1, 2010, Toyota Industries Corporation filed a report with the Tokai Local Finance Bureau indicating that it increased its ownership in Toyota from 5.00% to 6.02%.

According to The Bank of New York Mellon, depositary for Toyota s ADSs, as of March 31, 2011, 85,866,758 shares of Toyota common stock were held in the form of ADRs and there were 2,302 ADR holders of record in the United States. According to Toyota s register of shareholders, as of March 31, 2011, there were 652,568 holders of common stock of record worldwide. As of March 31, 2011, there were 233 record holders of Toyota common stock with addresses in the United States, whose shareholdings represented approximately 12.6% of the issued common stock on that date. Because some of these shares were held by brokers or other nominees, the number of record holders with addresses in the United States might not fully show the number of beneficial owners in the United States.

None of Toyota s shares of common stock entitles the holder to any preferential voting rights.

To the extent known to Toyota, Toyota is not owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by another corporation, any foreign government or any natural or legal person.

Toyota knows of no arrangements the operation of which may at a later time result in a change of control.

Kanto

As of March 31, 2011, 69,843,137 shares of Kanto common stock were issued, out of which, 481,668 shares were treasury stock and 69,361,469 shares were outstanding.

Table of Contents

Based on information known to Kanto or that can be ascertained from public filings, including filings made by Kanto s shareholders regarding their ownership of Kanto common stock under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan, the following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of holders of more than 5% of Kanto common stock as of March 31, 2011.

	Number of	Percentage of
	Shares	Shares
Name of Beneficial Owner	(in thousands)	Issued*
Toyota Motor Corporation	35,246	50.47

^{*} Including 0.39% owned through subsidiaries of Toyota

On February 15, 2008, Barclays Global Investors Japan Limited and two shareholders jointly filed a report with the Kanto Local Finance Bureau indicating that their aggregate ownership in Kanto became 5.01%. Subsequently, on February 17, 2009, Barclays Global Investors Japan Limited and three shareholders jointly filed a report with the Kanto Local Finance Bureau indicating that their aggregate ownership in Kanto decreased from 5.30% to 4.21%.

As of March 31, 2011, 3,548,964 shares, representing 5.1% of Kanto s outstanding common stock, were owned by 50 holders of record with addresses in the United States.

37

TAXATION

You are urged to consult your own tax advisor regarding the United States federal, state and local and the Japanese and other tax consequences of the share exchange and of owning and disposing of Toyota s shares or ADSs in your particular circumstances.

For the purposes of discussion of Japanese and U.S. tax consequences of the share exchange below, the term Treaty shall refer to the current income tax convention between the United States and Japan, as amended; a U.S. Holder shall refer to any beneficial owner of shares of Kanto common stock that either receives shares of Toyota common stock pursuant to the share exchange or properly exercises dissenters rights and that is (i) a citizen or individual resident of the United States, as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes; (ii) a corporation (or other entity treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof, or the District of Columbia; (iii) an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income tax without regard to its source; or (iv) a trust that is subject to the primary supervision of a U.S. court and the control of one or more U.S. persons, or that has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person; and an Eligible U.S. Holder shall refer to a U.S. Holder that: (i) is a resident of the United States for purposes of the Treaty; (ii) does not maintain a permanent establishment in Japan (a) with which shares of Toyota common stock or ADSs are effectively connected or (b) of which shares of Toyota common stock or ADSs form part of the business property; and (iii) is eligible for benefits under the Treaty, with respect to income and gain derived in connection with the shares of Toyota common stock or ADSs.

Japanese Tax Consequences

The following is a discussion of the principal Japanese tax consequences (limited to national taxes) of the share exchange and the ownership of shares of Toyota common stock and ADSs to non-resident holders who hold shares of Kanto common stock and ultimately of Toyota common stock or ADSs. The discussion is the opinion of TMI Associates, Japanese counsel to Toyota. A non-resident holder means a holder of shares of Kanto or Toyota common stock or ADSs, as the case may be, who holds such shares or ADSs as portfolio investments, and who is a non-resident individual of Japan or a non-Japanese corporation without a permanent establishment in Japan. For purposes of this discussion, a holder of shares or ADSs is considered to own such shares or ADSs, as applicable, as a portfolio investment if the holder owns less than 25% of the total number of the relevant corporation s issued shares.

The statements regarding Japanese tax laws set forth below are based on the laws in force and double taxation conventions applicable as of the date hereof which are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis, including changes due to the forthcoming 2012 Annual Tax Reform. This summary is not exhaustive of all possible tax considerations which may apply to a particular non-resident holder and potential non-resident holders are advised to satisfy themselves as to the overall tax consequences of the share exchange and of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of Toyota s shares or ADSs, including specifically the tax consequences under Japanese law, the laws of the jurisdiction of which they are residents, and any tax treaty between Japan and their country of residence, by consulting their own tax advisors.

Consequences of the Share Exchange

Under the terms of the share exchange, shares of Kanto common stock will be exchanged solely for shares of Toyota common stock, and no cash or other property other than shares of Toyota common stock will be distributed to holders of shares of Kanto common stock, except that some holders of shares of Kanto common stock may receive cash (i) in lieu of fractional shares of Toyota common stock where such fractional shares arise due to the exchange ratio in the share exchange or (ii) as a result of their exercise of dissenters appraisal rights under the Companies Act.

Except as described in the following paragraph, non-resident holders holding Kanto shares as a portfolio investor will not be subject to Japanese taxation with respect to the share exchange.

If holders of shares of Kanto common stock receive cash payments of the sale price from Kanto as a result of their exercise of dissenters appraisal rights under the Companies Act, the portion of such sale price in excess of the amount corresponding to a pro rata portion of return of capital as determined under Japanese tax laws will be deemed dividends for Japanese tax purposes, and such deemed dividend portion, if any, will generally be subject to Japanese withholding tax. Non-resident holders who wish to exercise dissenters appraisal rights are urged to consult their own tax advisors with respect to the exact tax consequences of their exercise of dissenters appraisal rights. See The Share Exchange Dissenters Appraisal Rights for a further discussion of dissenters appraisal rights of shareholders of Kanto common stock.

Ownership and Disposition of Toyota Shares

Generally, a non-resident holder will be subject to Japanese withholding tax on dividends paid by Toyota. Such taxes are withheld prior to payment of dividends as required by Japanese law. Stock splits in themselves generally are not subject to Japanese income tax.

For the purpose of Japanese taxation, a non-resident holder of ADSs of Toyota is generally treated as a beneficial owner of the shares of Toyota common stock underlying the ADSs evidenced by the ADRs. Deposits or withdrawals of shares of Toyota common stock by a non-resident holder in exchange for ADSs are generally not subject to Japanese income or corporation tax.

In the absence of any applicable tax treaty, convention or agreement reducing the maximum rate of Japanese withholding tax, or allowing exemption from Japanese withholding tax, the rate of Japanese withholding tax applicable to dividends paid by a Japanese corporation to non-resident holders is generally 20%. However, with respect to dividends paid on listed shares issued by a Japanese corporation (such as shares of Toyota common stock or ADSs) to non-resident holders, except for any individual shareholder who holds 5% or more of the total number of shares issued by the relevant Japanese corporation, the aforementioned 20% withholding tax rate is reduced to (i) 7% for dividends to be paid on or before December 31, 2011, and (ii) 15% for dividends to be paid on or after January 1, 2012.

At the date of this prospectus, Japan has income tax treaties, conventions or agreements in force, whereby the above-mentioned withholding tax rate is reduced, in most cases to 15% or 10% for portfolio investors (15% under the income tax treaties with, among other countries, Belgium, Canada, Denmark, Finland, Germany, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, New Zealand, Norway, Singapore, Spain, Sweden and Switzerland, and 10% under the income tax treaties with Australia, France, the U.K. and the United States.)

Under the Treaty, the maximum rate of Japanese withholding tax which may be imposed on dividends paid by a Japanese corporation to an Eligible U.S. Holder that is a portfolio investor is generally limited to 10% of the gross amount actually distributed, and dividends paid by a Japanese corporation to an Eligible U.S. Holder that is a pension fund are exempt from Japanese income taxation by way of withholding or otherwise unless such dividends are derived from the carrying on of a business, directly or indirectly, by such pension fund.

If the maximum tax rate provided for in the income tax treaty applicable to dividends paid by Toyota to any particular non-resident holder is lower than the withholding tax rate otherwise applicable under Japanese tax law, or if any particular non-resident holder is exempt from Japanese income tax with respect to such dividends under the income tax treaty applicable to such particular non-resident holder, such non-resident holder of shares of Toyota common stock who is entitled to a reduced rate of or exemption from Japanese withholding tax on payment of dividends is required to submit an Application Form for Income Tax Convention Regarding Relief from Japanese Income Tax on Dividends in advance through the withholding agent to the relevant tax authority before such payment of dividends. A standing proxy for non-resident holders may provide this application service. With respect to ADSs, this reduced rate or exemption is applicable if the Depositary or its agent submits two Application Forms (one before payment of dividends, the other within eight months after the record date concerning such payment of dividends) together with certain other documents to the Japanese tax authority. To claim this reduced rate or exemption, any relevant non-resident holder of ADSs will be required to file a proof of

taxpayer status, residence and beneficial ownership (as applicable) and to provide other information or documents as may be required by the Depositary. A non-resident holder who is entitled, under an applicable income tax treaty, to a reduced treaty rate lower than the withholding tax rate otherwise applicable under Japanese tax law or an exemption from the withholding tax, but failed to submit the required application in advance will be entitled to claim the refund of withholding taxes withheld in excess of the rate under an applicable tax treaty (if such non-resident holder is entitled to a reduced treaty rate under the applicable income tax treaty) or the whole of the withholding tax withheld (if such non-resident holder is entitled to an exemption under the applicable income tax treaty) from the relevant Japanese tax authority, by complying with a certain subsequent filing procedure. Toyota does not assume any responsibility to ensure withholding at the reduced treaty rate or not withholding for shareholders who would be so eligible under an applicable tax treaty but where the required procedures as stated above are not followed.

Gains derived from the sale or other disposition of shares of Toyota common stock or ADSs outside Japan by a non-resident holder holding such shares or ADSs as a portfolio investor are, in general, not subject to Japanese income or corporation tax under Japanese tax law. Eligible U.S. Holders are not subject to Japanese income or corporation tax with respect to such gains under the Treaty, subject to a certain filing requirement under Japanese law.

Japanese inheritance tax or gift tax at progressive rates may be payable by an individual who has acquired from an individual shares of Toyota common stock or ADSs as legatee, heir or donee even if neither the acquiring individual nor the decedent nor the donor is a Japanese resident.

Holders of Toyota's shares of common stock or ADSs should consult their tax advisors regarding the effect of these taxes and, in the case of U.S. Holders, the possible application of the Estate and Gift Tax Treaty between the U.S. and Japan.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences

dealers in securities or currencies:

The following discussion describes the anticipated U.S. federal income tax consequences to U.S. Holders of the share exchange and of owning Toyota common stock following the share exchange. The discussion is the opinion of Shearman & Sterling LLP, U.S. tax counsel to Toyota. The discussion is applicable to a U.S. Holder that has held shares of Kanto common stock as capital assets within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code, and will hold shares of Toyota common stock as capital assets following the share exchange.

Except where noted, this discussion does not deal with holders that are subject to special rules, such as the following:

traders in securities that elect to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for their securities holdings;
persons liable for the alternative minimum tax;
banks, financial institutions, insurance companies or mutual funds;
tax-exempt entities;
former citizens or long-term residents of the United States;
persons holding shares of Kanto common stock or Toyota common stock as part of a hedging, integrated, conversion or constructive sale transaction or a straddle;

persons owning (directly, indirectly or constructively) 10% or more of the voting shares of Kanto;

holders of Kanto stock acquisition rights;

persons who received their shares of Kanto common stock upon the exercise of stock acquisition rights or otherwise as compensation for services;

40

Table of Contents

except as specifically described below, U.S. Holders of shares of Kanto common stock that will own (directly, indirectly or constructively) 5% or more of either the total voting power or the total value of the shares of Toyota immediately after the share exchange (5% Transferee Shareholders); or

persons whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar.

In addition, the following discussion is based on the provisions of the Code, U.S. Treasury regulations, rulings and judicial decisions issued under the Code at the date of this registration statement. These authorities may be repealed, revoked or modified so as to result in U.S. federal income tax consequences different from those discussed below. Neither Toyota nor Kanto has requested a ruling from the IRS with respect to any of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the share exchange or any of the other matters discussed herein and, as a result, there can be no assurance that the IRS will not disagree with or challenge any of the conclusions described below, or that such conclusions, if challenged, will be upheld by a court.

This discussion does not contain a detailed description of all the U.S. federal income tax consequences to U.S. Holders in light of their particular circumstances and does not address the effects of any state, local or non-U.S. tax laws (other than Japanese withholding taxes, as specifically described under Ownership and Disposition of Toyota Common Stock Distributions), or other U.S. federal tax consequences, such as U.S. federal estate or gift tax consequences. U.S. Holders are urged to consult their own tax advisors concerning the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the share exchange and the ownership or disposition of shares of Toyota common stock in light of their particular circumstances, as well as any consequences arising under the laws of any other taxing jurisdiction.

If a partnership (including any entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds shares of Kanto common stock and will hold shares of Toyota common stock after the share exchange, the tax treatment of a partner will depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Partners of a partnership holding such stock should consult their own tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal tax treatment of the share exchange and of holding shares of Toyota common stock.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, owners of ADRs evidencing ADSs will be treated as the owners of the shares of Toyota common stock represented by those ADSs, and exchanges of shares of Toyota common stock for ADSs, and exchanges of ADSs for shares of Toyota common stock, will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax. Unless otherwise noted, references in this section to shares of Toyota common stock include shares represented by ADSs.

The Share Exchange

Treatment of the Share Exchange

The share exchange has not been structured to achieve a particular treatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and Toyota and Kanto have no obligation to structure the share exchange in a manner that is tax-free to U.S. Holders. As structured, however, the share exchange is expected to qualify as tax-deferred reorganization under the provisions of Section 368(a) of the Code, but such qualification depends on the resolution of issues and facts that will not be known until the date of the share exchange. Neither Toyota nor Kanto has obtained or will obtain a ruling from the IRS or an opinion of U.S. counsel that the share exchange will qualify as a reorganization. The following sections describe the tax consequences that will be applicable to a U.S. Holder (i) if the share exchange qualifies as a reorganization and (ii) if the share exchange does not qualify as a reorganization.

Share Exchange Qualifies as a Reorganization

Assuming that the share exchange qualifies as a reorganization, and subject to the discussion under Ownership and Disposition of Shares of Toyota Common Stock Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations below, no gain or loss will be recognized by a U.S. Holder on the exchange of shares of Kanto

41

Table of Contents

common stock for shares of Toyota common stock pursuant to the share exchange, except with respect to any cash received in lieu of a fractional share of Toyota common stock. Cash received in lieu of a fractional share of Toyota common stock will be treated as a payment in exchange for the fractional share of Toyota common stock, resulting in gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount of cash received for the fractional share of Toyota common stock and the U.S. Holder s adjusted tax basis attributable to the fractional share of Toyota common stock.

The aggregate tax basis of the shares of Toyota common stock received by the U.S. Holder in exchange for shares of Kanto common stock will equal the aggregate tax basis of the U.S. Holder s shares of Kanto common stock exchanged in the share exchange, reduced by any tax basis attributable to fractional shares of Toyota common stock treated as exchanged for cash. The holding period of the shares of Toyota common stock received in the share exchange will include the holding period of the shares of Kanto common stock exchanged for the shares of Toyota common stock. If the U.S. Holder acquired different blocks of shares of Kanto common stock at different times and at different prices, the tax basis and holding period of the shares of Toyota common stock the U.S. Holder received in the share exchange will be determined separately with respect to each block of the shares of Kanto common stock exchanged for shares of Toyota common stock and the shares of Toyota common stock received by the U.S. Holder will be allocated pro rata to each such block of shares.

Any gain or loss recognized by a U.S. Holder upon the share exchange will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder s holding period for the shares of Kanto common stock exceeds one year at the time of the share exchange. Long-term capital gains of non-corporate U.S. Holders, including individuals, currently are subject to reduced rates of taxation. Any gain recognized by a U.S. Holder will be treated as U.S. source income for U.S. foreign tax credit purposes. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to complex limitations under the Code.

5% Transferee Shareholders

Additional, special rules will apply to a U.S. Holder that is a 5% Transferee Shareholder following the share exchange if the share exchange qualifies as a reorganization. A 5% Transferee Shareholder will need to enter into a gain recognition agreement in accordance with applicable U.S. Treasury regulations. In addition, the 5% Transferee Shareholder will be required to file certain annual information statements with its U.S. federal income tax returns for each of the first five full taxable years following the taxable year of the joint share transfer. U.S. Holders that may be 5% Transferee Shareholders following the joint share transfer should consult their own tax advisors regarding the requirements that may apply to them.

Share Exchange Does Not Qualify as a Reorganization

If the share exchange does not qualify as a reorganization, and subject to the discussion under Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations below, a U.S. Holder that exchanges its shares of Kanto common stock for shares of Toyota common stock will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between (i) the sum of (a) the fair market value of the shares of Toyota common stock received and (b) any cash received in lieu of fractional shares of Toyota common stock and (ii) the U.S. Holder s adjusted tax basis in the shares of Kanto common stock exchanged.

Such gain or loss will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder s holding period for the shares of Kanto common stock exceeds one year at the time of the share exchange. Long-term capital gains of non-corporate U.S. Holders, including individuals, currently are subject to reduced rates of taxation. Any gain recognized by a U.S. Holder will be treated as U.S. source income for U.S. foreign tax credit purposes. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to complex limitations under the Code.

A U.S. Holder s aggregate tax basis in the shares of Toyota common stock received will be the fair market value of those shares on the date the U.S. Holder receives them. The U.S. Holder s holding period for shares of Toyota common stock received in the share exchange will begin on the day after the date the U.S. Holder receives those shares.

42

Dissenters Rights

Regardless of whether the share exchange qualifies as a reorganization, a U.S. Holder that properly exercises dissenters—appraisal rights with respect to shares of Kanto common stock will recognize taxable capital gain or loss based upon the difference between the amount of cash received by such U.S. Holder (including any Japanese taxes withheld, as described under—Japanese Tax Consequences—Consequences of the Share Exchange—) and the U.S. Holder—s tax basis in the shares of Kanto common stock exchanged. Such gain or loss will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder—s holding period for the shares of Kanto common stock exceeds one year. Long-term capital gains of non-corporate U.S. Holders, including individuals, currently are subject to reduced rates of taxation. Any gain realized by a U.S. Holder will be treated as U.S. source income for U.S. foreign tax credit purposes. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to complex limitations under the Code.

Records and Reporting Requirements

If the share exchange qualifies as a reorganization, a U.S. Holder that is a significant holder within the meaning of U.S. Treasury regulations Section 1.368-3(c)(1) will be required to attach a statement to its U.S. federal income tax return for the year in which the share exchange occurs that contains the information listed in U.S. Treasury regulations Section 1.368-3(b), including the U.S. Holder s tax basis in its shares of Kanto common stock and the fair market value of the U.S. Holder s shares of Kanto common stock immediately before they were exchanged for shares of Toyota common stock. A significant holder includes a holder of at least 1% (by vote or value) of the stock of a corporation if the stock is not publicly traded on a U.S. securities exchange or a holder of securities of a corporation with a basis of \$1 million or more.

All U.S. Holders should keep records regarding the number, basis and fair market value of their shares of Kanto common stock exchanged for shares of Toyota common stock. All U.S. Holders, including any potential 5% Transferee Shareholders, should consult their own tax advisors regarding any record-keeping and reporting requirements applicable to them in respect of the share exchange.

Ownership and Disposition of Shares of Toyota Common Stock

Distributions

Subject to the discussion under Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations below, the gross amount of distributions paid to a U.S. Holder with respect to shares of Toyota common stock, including any Japanese tax withheld, will be treated as dividend income to the extent paid out of Toyota's current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. Dividend income will be includible in gross income on the day it is actually or constructively received by the U.S. Holder, in the case of shares of Toyota common stock, or by the depositary, in the case of ADSs. These dividends will not be eligible for the dividends received deduction allowed to corporations under the Code in respect of dividends received from other U.S. corporations. To the extent amounts paid with respect to shares of Toyota common stock exceed Toyota's current and accumulated earnings and profits, those amounts will instead be treated first as a tax-free return of capital to the extent of the U.S. Holder's basis in the shares of Toyota common stock, and thereafter as capital gain.

Subject to the discussion under Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations below, for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2013, dividends paid by a qualified foreign corporation to non-corporate U.S. Holders, including individuals, are subject to reduced rates of taxation, provided certain holding period requirements are satisfied. A qualified foreign corporation includes a foreign corporation that is eligible for the benefits of an income tax treaty with the United States that meets certain requirements. The U.S. Treasury Department has determined that the Treaty meets these requirements, and it is expected that Toyota will be eligible for the benefits of the Treaty. U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the availability of the reduced tax rate on dividends in their particular circumstances.

43

Table of Contents

The amount of any dividend paid in Japanese yen will equal the U.S. dollar value of the Japanese yen received calculated by reference to the exchange rate in effect on the date the dividend is received by the U.S. Holder, regardless of whether the Japanese yen are converted into U.S. dollars on such date. If the Japanese yen received as a dividend are not converted into U.S. dollars on the date of receipt, a U.S. Holder will have a basis in the Japanese yen equal to their U.S. dollar value on the date of receipt. Any gain or loss realized on a subsequent conversion or other disposition of the Japanese yen will be treated as U.S. source ordinary income or loss.

Subject to certain limitations, Japanese tax withheld on dividends will be treated as a foreign tax eligible for credit or deduction against a U.S. Holder's U.S. federal income tax. See Japanese Tax Consequences Ownership and Disposition of Toyota Shares for a discussion of the Japanese withholding tax and, if applicable, how to obtain the reduced withholding tax rate. Special rules apply in determining the U.S. foreign tax credit limitation with respect to dividends received by non-corporate U.S. Holders that are subject to the reduced rates of taxation described above. The decision to claim either a credit or a deduction must be made each year, and will apply to all foreign taxes paid by a U.S. Holder to any foreign country with respect to that year. Dividends paid on shares of Toyota common stock will be treated as income from sources outside the United States and will constitute passive income or, in the case of certain U.S. Holders, general category income for U.S. foreign tax credit purposes. The rules relating to the determination of the U.S. foreign tax credit are complex and U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors to determine whether and to what extent a credit would be available in their particular circumstances.

Sale or Other Disposition of Shares of Toyota Common Stock

Subject to the discussion under Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations below, a U.S. Holder will recognize taxable gain or loss on any sale or other taxable disposition of shares of Toyota common stock in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized for the shares of Toyota common stock and such U.S. Holder s tax basis in the shares of Toyota common stock. The gain or loss will be capital gain or loss, and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder s holding period for the shares of Toyota common stock exceeds one year at the time of sale or other disposition. Long-term capital gains of non-corporate U.S. Holders, including individuals, currently are subject to reduced rates of taxation. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations. Capital gain or loss recognized by a U.S. Holder on the shares of Toyota common stock will be treated as U.S. source gain or loss for U.S. foreign tax credit purposes.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations

Special, unfavorable, U.S. federal income tax rules will apply to U.S. Holders that have held shares of Kanto common stock or will hold shares of Toyota common stock if Kanto or Toyota has been or is a PFIC at any time during which the U.S. Holder has held or holds shares of Kanto common stock or Toyota common stock, and may change the treatment of distributions on and dispositions of shares of Toyota common stock described above and the treatment of the exchange of shares of Kanto common stock pursuant to the share exchange. A non-U.S. corporation is classified as a PFIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes in any taxable year if (i) at least 75% of its gross income is passive income or (ii) at least 50% of the gross value of its assets (based on an average of the quarterly values of the assets) is attributable to assets that produce passive income or are held for the production of passive income.

Toyota does not believe that Kanto was a PFIC for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, and does not expect Kanto to be a PFIC for Kanto s current fiscal year, based on the expected composition of its income and assets. Neither Toyota nor Kanto has made a determination whether Kanto was a PFIC for any taxable year ending prior to March 31, 2011. Toyota does not believe that it was a PFIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes for its taxable year ended March 31, 2011, and intends to continue its operations in such a manner that it will not become a PFIC in the future. Because the PFIC determination is made annually after the end of the taxable year and the application of the PFIC rules to a corporation such as Toyota (which among other things is engaged in leasing and financing through several subsidiaries) is not entirely clear, no assurances can be made regarding

44

Table of Contents

determination of the PFIC status of either Kanto or Toyota in the current or any future taxable year. U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to their own tax situation.

If the share exchange qualifies as a reorganization and Kanto has been a PFIC at any time during the holding period of a U.S. Holder, assuming that Toyota is not a PFIC in the taxable year of the share exchange, as expected, such a U.S. Holder would, under proposed regulations which are proposed to be effective from April 11, 1992, recognize gain (but not loss) upon the exchange of its shares of Kanto common stock for shares of Toyota common stock pursuant to the share exchange. The gain will be equal to the difference between (i) the sum of (a) the fair market value of the shares of Toyota common stock received and (b) any cash received in lieu of fractional shares of Toyota common stock and (ii) the U.S. Holder s adjusted tax basis in the shares of Kanto common stock exchanged. If the share exchange does not qualify as a reorganization and Kanto has been a PFIC at any time during the holding period of a U.S. Holder, a U.S. Holder will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between (i) the sum of (a) the fair market value of the shares of Toyota common stock received and (b) any cash received in lieu of fractional shares of Toyota common stock and (ii) the U.S. Holder s adjusted tax basis in the shares of Kanto common stock exchanged. Further, if Toyota were a PFIC at any time during the holding period of a U.S. Holder, gain on disposition of shares of Toyota common stock and any distribution in excess of 125% of the average of the annual distributions on shares of Toyota common stock received by the U.S. Holder during the preceding three years or the U.S. Holder s holding period (whichever is shorter) would be subject to the PFIC rules.

In each case described in the preceding paragraph, in the absence of certain elections, the gain and any excess distributions will be allocated ratably to each day that the U.S. Holder held the shares of Kanto common stock or Toyota common stock (as applicable). Amounts allocated to the current taxable year and to any taxable years before Kanto or Toyota (as applicable) became a PFIC will be treated as ordinary income in the U.S. Holder s current taxable year. In addition, amounts allocated to each other taxable year beginning with the taxable year that Kanto or Toyota (as applicable) became a PFIC will be taxed at the highest rate in effect for that taxable year on ordinary income. The tax will be subject to an interest charge at the rate applicable to underpayments of income tax. If a U.S. Holder owns shares of Kanto common stock or Toyota common stock in any year in which Kanto or Toyota is a PFIC, the U.S. Holder will be required to file IRS Form 8621 (or any other form subsequently specified by the U.S. Department of the Treasury) with the U.S. Holder s U.S. federal income tax return.

U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to their own tax situation.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Information reporting requirements will apply to (i) cash payments received, if any, in the joint share transfer, (ii) dividends in respect of shares of Toyota common stock, and (iii) the proceeds received on the sale or other disposition of shares of Toyota common stock within the United States, and, in some cases, outside of the United States by a U.S. Holder unless such U.S. Holder is an exempt recipient. In addition, backup withholding may apply to such amounts if a U.S. Holder fails to provide an accurate taxpayer identification number or fails either to report dividends required to be shown on U.S. federal income tax returns or to make certain certifications. The amount of any backup withholding from a payment may be allowed as a credit against a U.S. Holder s U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the required information is furnished to the IRS in a timely manner.

Certain U.S. Holders who are individuals that hold certain foreign financial assets (which may include shares of Toyota common stock) are required to report information relating to such assets, subject to certain exceptions. U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the effect, if any, of this reporting requirement on their ownership and disposition of shares of common stock or ADSs.

45

COMPARISON OF SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

Upon the effectiveness of the share exchange, the shareholders of Kanto will become shareholders of Toyota. Both Toyota and Kanto are joint stock corporations organized under the laws of Japan. Toyota shares are traded on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, the Nagoya Stock Exchange and three other regional stock exchanges in Japan and on the London Stock Exchange. Toyota s ADSs, each representing two Toyota shares, are listed on the NYSE under the ticker symbol TM. Kanto common stock is listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and the Nagoya Stock Exchange. In addition, the description of the attributes of shares of common stock in the share capital provisions of the articles of incorporation of Toyota and Kanto are substantially similar. As a result, there are no material differences between the rights of holders of Toyota common stock and of Kanto common stock from a legal perspective.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements and management s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting (which is included in Management s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting) incorporated in this prospectus by reference to the Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended March 31, 2011 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers Aarata, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

VALIDITY OF TOYOTA SHARES

TMI Associates, Japanese counsel for Toyota, will render an opinion with respect to the validity of the shares of its common stock to be transferred in the share exchange.

48

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

This prospectus is part of a registration statement on Form F-4 that Toyota filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC). The registration statement, including the attached exhibits, contains additional relevant information about Toyota. The rules and regulations of the SEC allow Toyota to omit from this prospectus some of the information included in the registration statement.

In addition, as required by the U.S. securities laws, Toyota files annual reports, current reports and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any document filed with the SEC at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-(800)-SEC-0330 for further information on the Public Reference Room. The SEC also maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding registrants that file electronically with the SEC (http://www.sec.gov). You may also inspect the information Toyota files with the SEC at the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005. You may also access the SEC filings and obtain other information about Toyota through the website it maintains, which is www.toyota-global.com. The information contained in that website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

Toyota is currently exempt from the rules under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act) that prescribe the furnishing and content of proxy statements, and Toyota s officers, directors and principal shareholders are exempt from the reporting and short-swing profit recovery provisions contained in Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Toyota is not required under the Exchange Act to publish financial statements as frequently or as promptly as are U.S. companies subject to the Exchange Act. Toyota will, however, continue to furnish its shareholders with annual reports containing audited financial statements and will publish unaudited interim results of operations as well as such other reports as may from time to time be authorized by Toyota s board of directors or as may be otherwise required.

INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows Toyota to incorporate by reference in this prospectus some or all of the documents Toyota files with the SEC. This means that Toyota can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. The information in a document that is incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus. Toyota incorporates by reference the following documents or information it has filed with the SEC:

the annual report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, filed with the SEC on June 24, 2011;

a current report on Form 6-K relating to the financial review and results for the interim financial periods ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, filed on August 2, 2011.

In addition, all documents that Toyota files with the SEC in the future pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, and any future reports on Form 6-K that indicate they are incorporated into this prospectus shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purposes of this prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus or in any subsequently filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus modifies or supersedes that statement. The modifying or superseding statement need not state that it has modified or superseded a prior statement or include any other information set forth in the document that it modifies or supersedes. The making of a modifying or superseding statement shall not be deemed an admission for any purposes that the modified or superseded statement, when made, constituted a misrepresentation, an untrue statement of a material fact or an omission to state a material fact that is required

Table of Contents

to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus.

Toyota will provide you without charge upon written or oral request a copy of any of the documents that are incorporated by reference in this prospectus. If you would like Toyota to provide you with any of these documents, please contact Toyota at the following address or telephone number: 1 Toyota-cho, Toyota City, Aichi, 471-8571, Japan, Attention: Financial Reporting Department, Accounting Division, telephone: +81-565-28-2121.

Except as described above, no other information is incorporated by reference in this prospectus (including, without limitation, information on Toyota s website).

50

ENFORCEABILITY OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

Toyota is a joint-stock corporation with limited liability incorporated under the laws of Japan. Almost all of Toyota's directors and corporate auditors reside in Japan. Many of Toyota's assets and the assets of these persons are located in Japan and elsewhere outside the United States. It may not be possible, therefore, for investors to effect service of process within the United States upon Toyota or these persons or to enforce against it or these persons judgments obtained in United States courts predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States. Toyota's Japanese counsel, TMI Associates, has advised it that there is doubt as to the enforceability in Japan, in original actions or in actions for enforcement of judgments of United States courts, of liabilities predicated solely upon the federal securities laws of the United States.

APPENDIX A

[English Translation for reference purposes only. In the event of any discrepancy between this translation and the Japanese original, the original shall prevail.]

SHARE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT (ENGLISH TRANSLATION)

Share Exchange Agreement

Toyota Motor Corporation (**Toyota**) and Kanto Auto Works, Ltd. (**Kanto**) have entered into this Share Exchange Agreement (this **Agreement**) on July 13, 2011 (the **Execution Date**) as follows in order to implement Toyota s global vision promptly and with certainty, and for the purpose of maximizing the Toyota group s overall strength by promoting Kanto to an active role handling planning and development through to the production of vehicle types in which Kanto specializes.

Article 1. Share Exchange

Toyota and Kanto shall conduct a share exchange through which Toyota will become the wholly owning parent company of Kanto and Kanto will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota (the **Share Exchange**), and through which Toyota shall acquire all of the issued shares of Kanto (except for the shares of Kanto already held by Toyota; this same exception shall apply hereinafter).

Article 2. Trade Names and Addresses of the Parties

The trade names and addresses of Toyota and Kanto are as follows:

Toyota: Trade Name: Toyota Motor Corporation

Address: 1 Toyota-cho, Toyota City, Aichi Prefecture

Kanto: Trade Name: Kanto Auto Works, Ltd.

Address: Tauraminato-cho, Yokosuka City, Kanagawa Prefecture

Article 3. Shares to be Delivered Upon the Share Exchange and Allotment Thereof

- Upon effectiveness of the Share Exchange, Toyota shall deliver to shareholders of Kanto common stock (excluding Toyota; this same exclusion shall apply hereinafter), in exchange for Kanto common stock, the number of Toyota common stock calculated by multiplying the total number of Kanto common stock held by the holders of Kanto common stock as of the time immediately preceding the Share Exchange (the **Reference Time**) by 0.25.
- 2 Upon effectiveness of the Share Exchange, Toyota shall allot to shareholders of Kanto common stock as of the Reference Time, 0.25 Toyota common stock for each of Kanto s common stock held by such shareholders.
- With respect to any fractional shares comprising less than one share of Toyota common stock that are required to be allotted and delivered under the preceding two Paragraphs, Toyota shall handle them in accordance with Article 234 of the Companies Act.
 Article 4. Amounts of Stated Capital and Reserves of Toyota

The increases in the amounts of the stated capital, capital reserves and retained earnings reserves of Toyota due to the Share Exchange are as follows:

(1) Stated Capital: JPY 0

(2) Capital Reserves: Minimum amount required to be increased pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.

(3) Retained Earnings Reserves: JPY 0

A-1

Article 5. Effective Date

The date on which the Share Exchange takes effect (the **Effective Date**) shall be January 1, 2012, provided, however, that Toyota and Kanto may change such date as necessary in accordance with the progress of the Share Exchange, upon mutual consultation.

Article 6. Shareholders Meeting to Approve the Share Exchange Agreement

- Pursuant to the provisions of Article 796, main clause of Paragraph 3 of the Companies Act, Toyota shall conduct the Share Exchange without obtaining the approval at a shareholders meeting stipulated in Article 795, Paragraph 1 of the Companies Act; provided, however, that if, pursuant to the provisions of Article 796, Paragraph 4 of the Companies Act, approval of this Agreement at a shareholders meeting of Toyota becomes necessary, Toyota shall obtain the approval of this Agreement at a shareholders meeting no later than the day immediately preceding the Effective Date.
- 2 Kanto shall obtain shareholders approval of this Agreement pursuant to Article 783, Paragraph 1 of the Companies Act at the extraordinary meeting of shareholders scheduled to be convened in late November 2011.

Article 7. Duty of Care, Other

- During the period commencing from the Execution Date until the Effective Date, each of Toyota and Kanto shall conduct its business and manage its assets with the due care of a prudent manager, and Toyota and Kanto shall consult with each other before either party takes any action that would materially affect such assets, rights or obligations.
- 2 By resolution of the Board of Directors of Kanto at a meeting of the Board of Directors to be held no later than the day immediately preceding the Effective Date, Kanto shall cancel, by the Reference Time, all of its treasury shares held by Kanto and those that will be held by Kanto by the Reference Time (including the treasury shares to be acquired through the purchases related to any dissenting shareholders exercise of their appraisal rights pursuant to Article 785, Paragraph 1 of the Companies Act in connection with the Share Exchange).
- 3 Kanto shall cancel all of its issued share acquisition rights no later than the Reference Time.

Article 8. Modification and Termination of this Agreement

Toyota and Kanto may, upon mutual consultation, modify or terminate this Agreement, if, during the period commencing from the Execution Date until the Effective Date, due to an act of god or other events, (i) a material change occurs to the assets or results of operations of Toyota or Kanto, (ii) a material impediment arises in the implementation of the Share Exchange or (iii) it otherwise becomes difficult to achieve the purpose of this Agreement.

Article 9. Force and Effect of this Agreement

This Agreement shall cease to have any effect if (i) this Agreement is not approved at a shareholders meeting of Toyota no later than the day immediately preceding the Effective Date, if a shareholder holding the number of shares stipulated under Article 197 of the Ordinance of Enforcement of the Companies Act has submitted the notification pursuant to Article 796, Paragraph 4 of the Companies Act, (ii) this Agreement is not approved at a shareholders meeting of Kanto no later than the day immediately preceding the Effective Date, (iii) any of the approvals from the relevant regulatory authorities that are required by the laws and regulations of Japan or any other jurisdiction are not obtained, including, but not limited to, failure of any filings submitted to the relevant regulatory authorities to take effect or (iv) this Agreement has been terminated pursuant to the preceding Article 8.

Table of Contents 78

A-2

Article 10. Matters for Consultation

In addition to the matters set forth in this Agreement, matters necessary with respect to the Share Exchange shall be determined by consultation between Toyota and Kanto in accordance with the purpose of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in duplicate, and upon signing hereof, each of Toyota and Kanto retains one (1) original hereof.

July 13, 2011

Toyota:

1 Toyota-cho, Toyota City, Aichi Prefecture

Toyota Motor Corporation

Director and President

/s/ Akio Toyoda

Kanto:

Tauraminato-cho, Yokosuka City, Kanagawa Prefecture

Kanto Auto Works, Ltd.

Director and President

/s/ Tetsuo Hattori

A-3

APPENDIX B

[English Translation for reference purposes only. In the event of any discrepancy between this translation and the Japanese original, the original shall prevail.]

FAIRNESS OPINION DELIVERED BY MITSUBISHI UFJ MORGAN STANLEY SECURITIES CO., LTD. (ENGLISH TRANSLATION)

July 12, 2011

Board of Directors

Kanto Auto Works, Ltd.

Tauraminato-cho,

Yokosuka City,

Kanagawa Prefecture

Members of the Board:

We understand that Kanto Auto Works, Ltd. (the Company) and Toyota Motor Corporation (Toyota), propose to enter into a Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of July 13, 2011 (the Share Exchange Agreement), which provides, among other things, for a share exchange between the Company and Toyota under the Companies Act of Japan (the Share Exchange). Pursuant to the Share Exchange which is subject to approval by the extraordinary shareholders meeting of the Company, the Company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota, and each outstanding share of common stock of the Company (the Company Common Stock), other than shares held by Toyota, will be converted into the right to receive 0.25 shares of common stock of Toyota (the Toyota Common Stock) (the Exchange Ratio).

Holders of shares of Company Common Stock (other than Toyota) as of the time immediately preceding the share exchange will be allotted shares of Toyota Common Stock in amounts based on the Exchange Ratio, and any fractional shares of Toyota Common Stock that would otherwise be allotted to holders of shares of Company Common Stock will be treated in accordance with Article 234 of the Companies Act.

The terms and conditions of the Share Exchange are more fully set forth in the Share Exchange Agreement.

You have asked for our opinion as to whether the Exchange Ratio pursuant to the Share Exchange Agreement is fair from a financial point of view to the holders of shares of Company Common Stock (other than controlling shareholders of the Company as defined in Article 441-2 of the Securities Listing Regulations of the Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. (Tokyo Stock Exchange) and Article 436-3 of the Enforcement Rules of the Tokyo Stock Exchange (the Controlling Shareholders)).

For purposes of the opinion set forth herein, we have:

- (a) Reviewed certain publicly available financial statements and other business and financial information of the Company and Toyota, respectively;
- (b) Reviewed certain internal financial statements and other financial and operating data concerning the Company;
- (c) Reviewed certain financial projections prepared by the managements of the Company and Toyota, respectively;

(d) Discussed the past and current operations and financial condition and the prospects of the Company, including information relating to certain strategic, financial and operational benefits anticipated from the Share Exchange, with senior executives of the Company;

B-1

- (e) Discussed the past and current operations and financial condition and the prospects of Toyota, including information relating to certain strategic, financial and operational benefits anticipated from the Share Exchange, with senior executives of Toyota;
- (f) Reviewed the reported prices and trading activity for the Company Common Stock and Toyota Common Stock;
- (g) Compared the financial performance of the Company and Toyota and the prices and trading activity of the Company Common Stock and Toyota Common Stock with that of certain other publicly-traded companies comparable with the Company and Toyota, respectively, and their securities;
- (h) Reviewed the financial terms, to the extent publicly available, of certain comparable transactions;
- (i) Participated in discussions and negotiations among representatives of the Company and Toyota and Toyota s financial advisor;
- (j) Reviewed the Share Exchange Agreement (draft dated as of July 11, 2011) and certain related documents; and
- (k) Considered such other factors as we have deemed appropriate.

We have assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness of the information that was publicly available or supplied or otherwise made available to us by the Company and Toyota, and formed a substantial basis for this opinion.

With respect to the financial projections, including information relating to certain strategic, financial and operational benefits anticipated from the Share Exchange, we have assumed that they have been reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of the respective managements of the Company and Toyota of the future financial performance of the Company and Toyota.

In addition, we have assumed that the Share Exchange will be consummated in accordance with the terms set forth in the Share Exchange Agreement without any waiver, amendment or delay of any terms or conditions. We have assumed that in connection with the receipt of all the necessary governmental, regulatory or other approvals and consents required for the proposed Share Exchange, no delays, limitations, conditions or restrictions will be imposed that would have a material adverse effect on the contemplated benefits expected to be derived in the proposed Share Exchange.

We are not legal, accounting, or tax advisors. We are financial advisors only and have relied upon, without independent verification, the assessment of the Company and Toyota and their legal, accounting and tax advisors with respect to legal, accounting and tax matters. We express no opinion with respect to the fairness of the amount or nature of the compensation to any of the Company's officers, directors or employees, or any class of such persons, relative to the consideration to be received by the holders of shares of the Company Common Stock in the transaction.

We have not made any independent valuation or appraisal of the assets or liabilities of either the Company or Toyota, nor have we been furnished with any such appraisals.

Our opinion is necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as in effect on, and the information made available to us as of, the date hereof. Events occurring after the date hereof may affect this opinion and the assumptions used in preparing it, and we do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this opinion.

In arriving at our opinion, we were not authorized to solicit, and did not solicit, interest from any party with respect to the acquisition, business combination or other extraordinary transaction, involving the Company, nor did we negotiate with any of the parties, other than Toyota, which expressed interest to us in the possible acquisition of the Company or certain of its constituent businesses.

B-2

Table of Contents

We have acted as financial advisor to the Board of Directors of the Company in connection with this transaction and will receive a fee for our services, a substantial portion of which is contingent upon the consummation of the Share Exchange.

In the two years prior to the date hereof, we or our affiliates have provided financial advisory and financing services for Toyota and its affiliates and have received fees in connection with such services. We and our affiliates may also seek to provide such services to the Company, Toyota, and their respective affiliates in the future and expect to receive fees for the rendering of these services.

Please note that we, together with our affiliates (the Group), are a global financial services firm engaged in the banking (including financing for the Company and Toyota), securities, trust, investment management, credit services and other financial businesses (collectively, Financial Services). Our securities business is engaged in securities underwriting, trading, and brokerage activities, foreign exchange, commodities and derivatives trading, as well as providing investment banking, financing and financial advisory services. In the ordinary course of its underwriting, trading, brokerage and financing activities, the Group may at any time hold long or short positions, may provide Financial Services to Toyota, the Company, or companies that may be involved in this transaction and may trade or otherwise effect transactions, for its own account or the accounts of customers, in debt or equity securities or loans of Toyota, the Company, or any company that may be involved in this transaction, or in any related derivative instrument. The Group, its directors and officers may also at any time invest on a principal basis or manage funds that invest on a principal basis, in debt or equity securities of Toyota, the Company, or any company that may be involved in this transaction, or in any currency or commodity that may be involved in this transaction, or in any related derivative instrument. Further, we may at any time carry out ordinary course broking activities for Toyota, the Company, or any company that may be involved in this transaction.

This opinion has been approved by a committee of our investment banking and other professionals in accordance with our customary practice. This opinion is for the information of the Board of Directors of the Company only and may not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent, except that a copy of this opinion may be included in its entirety in any filing required to make with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with this transaction if such inclusion is required by applicable law.

In addition, this opinion does not in any manner address the prices at which Toyota Common Stock or Company Common Stock will trade at any time, including following consummation of the Share Exchange and we express no opinion or recommendation as to how the shareholders of the Company should vote at the shareholders meetings to be held in connection with the Share Exchange.

Based on and subject to the foregoing, we are of the opinion on the date hereof that the Exchange Ratio pursuant to the Share Exchange Agreement is fair from a financial point of view to holders of shares of the Company Common Stock, other than the Controlling Shareholders.

Very truly yours,

MITSUBISHI UFJ MORGAN STANLEY SECURITIES CO., LTD.
INVESTMENT BANKING BUSINESS UNIT

By: /s/ Kenji Fujita
Kenji Fujita
Managing Director

B-3

APPENDIX C

[English Translation for reference purposes only. In the event of any discrepancy between this translation and the Japanese original, the original shall prevail.]

SELECTED ARTICLES OF THE COMPANIES ACT OF JAPAN (ENGLISH TRANSLATION)

Companies Act

Act No. 86 of July 26, 2005

Part V Entity Conversion, Merger, Company Split, Share Exchange, and Share Transfer

Chapter IV Share Exchange and Share Transfer

SECTION 1 Share Exchange

Subsection 1 Common Provisions

(Conclusion of a Share Exchange Agreement)

Article 767 A Stock Company may effect Share Exchange. In such cases, the Stock Company shall conclude a Stock Exchange agreement with the company acquiring all of its Issued Shares (limited to a Stock Company or a Limited Liability Company; hereinafter referred to as the Wholly Owning Parent Company in Share Exchange in this Part).

Subsection 2 Share Exchange Which Causes a Stock Company to Acquire the Issued Shares

(Share Exchange Agreement Which Causes a Stock Company to Acquire the Issued Shares)

Article 768 In the case where a Stock Company effects a Share Exchange, if the Wholly Owning Parent Company in Share Exchange is a Stock Company, it shall prescribe the following matters in the Share Exchange agreement:

- (i) the trade names and domiciles of the Stock Company effecting the Share Exchange (hereinafter referred to as the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange in this Part) and the Wholly Owning Parent Company in Share Exchange which is a Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange in this Part);
- (ii) if the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange is to deliver to shareholders of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange Monies, etc. in lieu of the shares thereof when effecting the Share Exchange, the following matters concerning such Monies, etc.:
- (a) if such Monies, etc. are shares of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange, the description of the number of such shares (or, for a Company with Class Shares, the classes of the shares and the number of the shares for each class) or the method for calculating such numbers, and matters concerning the amount of the stated capital and capital reserves of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange;
- (b) if such Monies, etc. are Bonds of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange (excluding those pertaining to Bonds with Share Options), the description of the classes of such Bonds and the total amount for each class of Bonds, or the method for calculating that total amount:
- (c) if such Monies, etc. are Stock Options of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange (excluding those attached to Bonds with Share Options), the description of the features and number of such Share Options, or the method for calculating such number;
- (d) if such Monies, etc. are Bonds with Share Options of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange, the matters prescribed in (b) concerning such Bonds with Share Options and the matters prescribed in (c) concerning the Share Options attached to such Bonds with

Share Options; or

C-1

Table of Contents

- (e) if such Monies, etc. are property other than shares, etc. of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange, the description of the features and number or amount of such property, or the method for calculating such number or amount;
- (iii) in the case prescribed in the preceding item, matters concerning the allotment of Monies, etc. set forth in that item to shareholders of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange (excluding the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange);
- (iv) if the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange is to deliver to holders of Share Options of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange Share Options of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange in lieu of such Share Options at the time of the Share Exchange, the following matters concerning such Share Options:
- (a) the description of the features of the Share Options (hereinafter referred to as Share Options under Share Exchange Agreement in this Part) held by holders of Share Options of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange who will receive delivery of Share Options of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange;
- (b) the description of the features and number of Share Options of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange to be delivered to holders of Share Options under Share Exchange Agreement, or the method for calculating such number; and
- (c) if Share Options under Share Exchange Agreement are Share Options attached to Bonds with Share Options, a statement to the effect that the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange will succeed to the obligations relating to the Bonds pertaining to such Bonds with Share Options and the description of the classes of the Bonds subject to such succession and the total amount for each class of Bonds, or the method for calculating that total amount;
- (v) in the case prescribed in the preceding item, matters concerning the allotment of the Share Options of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange set forth in that item to holders of Share Options under Share Exchange Agreement; and
- (vi) the day on which the Share Exchange becomes effective (hereinafter referred to as the Effective Day in this Section).
- (2) In the case prescribed in the preceding paragraph, if the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange is a Company with Class Shares, the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange and the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange may provide for the following matters in prescribing the matters set forth in item (iii) of that paragraph in accordance with the features of the classes of shares issued by the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange:
- (i) if there is any arrangement that no Monies, etc. are allotted to shareholders of a certain class of shares, a statement to such effect and such class of shares; and
- (ii) in addition to the matters listed in the preceding item, if there is any arrangement that each class of shares shall be treated differently with respect to allotment of Monies, etc., a statement to such effect and the details of such different treatment.
- (3) In the case prescribed in paragraph (1), the provisions on the matters listed in item (iii) of that paragraph shall be such that the Monies, etc. are delivered in proportion to the number of the shares (or, in cases where there are provisions on the matters listed in item (ii) of the preceding paragraph, the number of the shares of each class) held by shareholders of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange (excluding the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange and shareholders of the class of shares referred to in item (i) of the preceding paragraph).

C-2

(Effectuation, etc. of a Share Exchange Which Causes a Stock Company to Acquire the Issued Shares)

Article 769 The Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange shall acquire all of the Issued Shares of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange (excluding shares of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange already held by the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange) on the Effective Day.

- (2) In the case set forth in the preceding paragraph, the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange shall be deemed to have given the approval set forth in Article 137(1) with regard to the acquisition of shares of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange (limited to Shares with a Restriction on Transfer, and excluding those already held by the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange prior to the Effective Day) by the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange.
- (3) In the cases listed in the following items, shareholders of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange shall become the persons specified respectively in those items, in accordance with the provisions on the matters set forth in paragraph (1)(iii) of the preceding Article, on the Effective Day:
- (i) in cases where there is a provision on the matters set forth in (a) of item (ii) of paragraph (1) of the preceding Article: shareholders of shares set forth in (a) of that item;
- (ii) in cases where there is a provision on the matters set forth in (b) of item (ii) of paragraph (1) of the preceding Article: bondholders of Bonds set forth in (b) of that item;
- (iii) in cases where there is a provision on the matters set forth in (c) of item (ii) of paragraph (1) of the preceding Article: holders of Share Options set forth in (c) of that item; or
- (iv) in cases where there is a provision on the matters set forth in (d) of item (ii) of paragraph (1) of the preceding Article: bondholders of the Bonds pertaining to Bonds with Share Options set forth in (d) of that item, and holders of the Share Options attached to such Bonds with Share Options.
- (4) In the case prescribed in paragraph (1)(iv) of the preceding Article, the Share Options under Share Exchange Agreement shall be extinguished and holders of the Share Options under Share Exchange Agreement shall become holders of the Share Options of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange set forth in item (iv)(b) of that Article, in accordance with the provisions on the matters set forth in item (v) of that Article, on the Effective Day.
- (5) In the case prescribed in (c) of item (iv) of paragraph (1) of the preceding Article, the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange shall succeed to the obligations relating to the Bonds pertaining to Bonds with Share Options set forth in (c) of that item on the Effective Day.
- (6) The provisions of the preceding paragraphs shall not apply in cases where procedures under the provisions of Article 789 or Article 799 are not completed yet or where the Share Exchange is cancelled.
- Chapter V Procedures of Entity Conversion, Merger, Company Split, Share Exchange, and Share Transfer
- SECTION 2 Procedures of an Absorption-type Merger, etc.
- Subsection 1 Procedures for a Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger, a Splitting Company in Absorption-type Company Split, and a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange
- Division 1 Procedures for a Stock Company
- (Keeping and Inspection, etc. of Documents, etc. Concerning an Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc.)
- Article 782 Each of the Stock Companies listed in the following items (hereinafter referred to as an Absorbed Stock Company, etc. in this Division) shall, from the day on which the Absorption-type Merger

C-3

Table of Contents

Agreement, etc. began to be kept until the day on which six months have elapsed from the day on which the Absorption-type Merger, Absorption-type Company Split or Share Exchange (hereinafter referred to as an Absorption-type Merger, etc. in this Section) becomes effective (hereinafter referred to as the Effective Day in this Section) (or, in the case of a Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger, until the Effective Day), keep documents or Electromagnetic Records that state or record the contents of the matters specified respectively in those items (hereinafter referred to as the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. in this Section) and other matters prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice at its head office:

- (i) Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger: the Absorption-type Merger agreement;
- (ii) Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split: the Absorption-type Company Split agreement; and
- (iii) Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange: the Share Exchange agreement.
- (2) The day on which the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. began to be kept prescribed in the preceding paragraph means the earliest of the following days:
- (i) if the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. is required to be approved by a resolution of a shareholders meeting (including a Class Meeting), the day two weeks prior to the day of the shareholders meeting (or, in the cases prescribed in paragraph (1) of Article 319, the day when the proposal under that paragraph is submitted);
- (ii) if there are shareholders who are to receive the notice under the provisions of paragraph (3) of Article 785, the day of the notice under the provisions of that paragraph or the day of the public notice under paragraph (4) of that Article, whichever is earlier;
- (iii) if there are holders of Share Options who are to receive the notice under the provisions of paragraph (3) of Article 787, the day of the notice under the provisions of that paragraph or the day of the public notice under paragraph (4) of that Article, whichever is earlier;
- (iv) if the procedures under the provisions of Article 789 are required to be carried out, the day of the public notice under the provisions of paragraph (2) of that Article or the day of the notice under the provisions of that paragraph, whichever is earlier; or
- (v) in cases other than those prescribed in the preceding items, the day on which two weeks have elapsed from the day of conclusion of the Absorption-type Company Split agreement or the Share Exchange agreement.
- (3) Shareholders and creditors of an Absorbed Stock Company, etc. (or, in the case of a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange, shareholders and holders of Share Options) may make the following requests to said Absorbed Stock Company, etc. at any time during its business hours; provided, however, that the fees designated by said Absorbed Stock Company, etc. are required to be paid in order to make the requests set forth in item (ii) or item (iv):
- (i) requests for inspection of the documents set forth in paragraph (1);
- (ii) requests for delivery of a transcript or extract of the documents set forth in paragraph (1);
- (iii) requests for inspection of anything that indicates the matters recorded in the Electromagnetic Records set forth in paragraph (1) in a manner prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice; and
- (iv) requests that the matters recorded in the Electromagnetic Records set forth in paragraph (1) be provided by the Electromagnetic Method designated by the Absorbed Stock Company, etc., or requests for the delivery of any document that states such matters.

C-4

Table of Contents

(Approval, etc. of the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc.)

Article 783 An Absorbed Stock Company, etc. shall obtain the approval of the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. by a resolution of a shareholders meeting by the day immediately preceding the Effective Day.

- (2) Notwithstanding the provisions of the preceding paragraph, in the cases where the Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange is not a Company with Classes of Shares, if all or part of the Monies, etc. to be delivered to shareholders of the Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange (hereinafter referred to as the Consideration for the Merger, etc. in this Article) are Equity Interests, etc. (meaning equity interests of a Membership Company or those prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as being equivalent thereto; hereinafter the same shall apply in this Article), the consent of all shareholders of the Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange shall be obtained with regard to the Absorption-type Merger agreement or the Share Exchange agreement.
- (3) In the cases where the Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange is a Company with Classes of Shares, if all or part of the Consideration for the Merger, etc. are Shares with a Restriction on Transfer, etc. (meaning Shares with a Restriction on Transfer and those prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as being equivalent thereto; hereinafter the same shall apply in this Chapter), the Absorption-type Merger or the Share Exchange shall not become effective without a resolution of a Class Meeting constituted by the Class Shareholders of the class of shares subject to the allotment of the Shares with a Restriction on Transfer, etc. (excluding Shares with a Restriction on Transfer) (in cases where there are two or more classes of shares relating to such Class Shareholders, the respective Class Meetings constituted by Class Shareholders categorized by the class of such two or more classes of shares); provided, however, that this shall not apply to cases where there is no Class Shareholder who is able to exercise a voting right at such Class Meeting.
- (4) In the cases where the Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange is a Company with Classes of Shares, if all or part of the Consideration for the Merger, etc. are Equity Interests, etc., the Absorption-type Merger or the Share Exchange shall not become effective without the consent of all shareholders of the class subject to the allotment of the Equity Interests, etc.
- (5) An Absorbed Stock Company, etc. shall notify its Registered Pledgees of Shares (excluding the Registered Pledgees of Shares in the cases prescribed in paragraph (3) of the following Article) and Registered Pledgees of Share Options concerning the Share Options specified in the items of Article 787(3) that it will effect the Absorption-type Merger, etc. by 20 days prior to the Effective Day.
- (6) A public notice may be substituted for the notice under the provisions of the preceding paragraph.

(Cases Where Approval of the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. Is Not Required)

Article 784 The provisions of paragraph (1) of the preceding Article shall not apply in the cases where the Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger, the Succeeding Company in Absorption-type Company Split or the Wholly Owning Parent Company in Share Exchange (hereinafter referred to as the Surviving Company, etc. in this Division) is the Special Controlling Company of the Absorbed Stock Company, etc.; provided, however, that this shall not apply in the cases where all or part of the value of the merger, etc. in the Absorption-type Merger or Share Exchange is Shares with a Restriction on Transfer, etc., and the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. is a Public Company and not a Company with Class Shares.

(2) In the cases prescribed in the main clause of the preceding paragraph, in any one of the following cases where shareholders of the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. are likely to suffer disadvantage, shareholders of the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. may demand that the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. refrain from effecting the Absorption-type Merger, etc.:

C-5

Table of Contents

- (i) in cases where the Absorption-type Merger, etc. violates the applicable laws and regulations or articles of incorporation; or
- (ii) in cases where the matters set forth in Article 749(1)(ii) or (iii), Article 751(1)(iii) or (iv), Article 758(iv), Article 760(iv) or (v), Article 768(1)(ii) or (iii), or Article 770(1)(iii) or (iv) are grossly improper in light of the financial status of the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. or the Surviving Company, etc.
- (3) The provisions of the preceding Article and the preceding paragraph shall not apply in cases where the sum of the book value of the assets that the Succeeding Company in Absorption-type Company Split succeeds to through the Absorption-type Company Split does not exceed one-fifth (or, in cases where a lesser proportion is prescribed in the articles of incorporation of the Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split, such proportion) of the amount calculated by the method specified by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as the total assets of the Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split.
- (Dissenting Shareholders Share Purchase Demand)

Article 785 In cases of effecting an Absorption-type Merger, etc. (excluding the following cases), dissenting shareholders may demand that the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. purchase, at a fair price, the shares held by such shareholders:

- (i) in cases prescribed in Article 783(2); or
- (ii) in cases prescribed in paragraph (3) of the preceding Article.
- (2) The dissenting shareholders provided for in the preceding paragraph shall mean the shareholders provided for in the following items in the cases listed in the same items (excluding shareholders entitled to allotment of Equity Interests, etc. prescribed in Article 783(4) in the cases prescribed in that paragraph):
- (i) in cases where a resolution of a shareholders meeting (including a Class Meeting) is required to effect the Absorption-type Merger, etc.: the following shareholders:
- (a) shareholders who gave notice to such Absorbed Stock Company, etc. to the effect that they dissented from such Absorption-type Merger, etc. prior to such shareholders meeting and who dissented from such Absorption-type Merger, etc. at such shareholders meeting (limited to those who can exercise voting rights at such shareholders meeting);
- (b) shareholders who are unable to exercise voting rights at such shareholders meeting; and
- (ii) in cases other than those prescribed in the preceding item: all shareholders.
- (3) An Absorbed Stock Company, etc. shall notify its shareholders (excluding shareholders entitled to allotment of Equity Interests, etc. prescribed in Article 783(4) in the cases prescribed in that paragraph) that it will effect an Absorption-type Merger, etc. and the trade name and domicile of the Surviving Company, etc., by 20 days prior to the Effective Day; provided, however, that this shall not apply in the cases listed in the items of paragraph (1).
- (4) In the following cases, a public notice may be substituted for the notice under the provisions of the preceding paragraph:
- (i) in cases where the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. is a Public Company; or
- (ii) in cases where the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. obtains the approval of the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. by the resolution of a shareholders meeting set forth in Article 783(1).

C-6

Table of Contents

- (5) Demands under the provisions of paragraph (1) (hereinafter referred to as a Share Purchase Demand in this Division) shall be made, within the period from the day twenty days prior to the Effective Day to the day immediately preceding the Effective Day, by disclosing the number of shares relating to such Share Purchase Demand (or, for a Company with Classes of Shares, the classes of the shares and the number of shares for each class).
- (6) Shareholders who made Share Purchase Demands may withdraw their Share Purchase Demands only in cases where such shareholders obtain the approval of the Absorbed Stock Company, etc.
- (7) If the Absorption-type Merger, etc. is cancelled, the Share Purchase Demands shall become ineffective.

(Determination, etc. of Price of Shares)

Article 786 In cases where a Share Purchase Demand is made, if an agreement on the determination of the price of the shares is reached between the shareholder and the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. (or, after the Effective Day in cases of effecting an Absorption-type Merger, the Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger; hereinafter the same shall apply in this Article), the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. shall make payment within 60 days from the Effective Day.

- (2) If no agreement on the determination of the price of the shares is reached within thirty days from the Effective Day, shareholders or the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. may file a petition to the court for a determination of the price within 30 days after the expiration of that period.
- (3) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (6) of the preceding Article, in the cases prescribed in the preceding paragraph, if the petition under that paragraph is not filed within sixty days from the Effective Day, shareholders may withdraw their Share Purchase Demands at any time after the expiration of such period.
- (4) The Absorbed Stock Company, etc. shall also pay interest on the price determined by the court which shall be calculated at the rate of six percent per annum from and including the day of the expiration of the period referred to in paragraph (1).
- (5) The purchase of shares relating to a Share Purchase Demand shall become effective on the Effective Day (or, in the case of effecting an Absorption-type Company Split, at the time of payment of the price of such shares).
- (6) If a Company Issuing Share Certificates receives a Share Purchase Demand with respect to shares for which share certificates are issued, the Company must pay the price of the shares relating to such Share Purchase Demand in exchange for the share certificates.

(Demand for Purchase of Share Options)

Article 787 In cases of carrying out any one of the acts listed in the following items, holders of Share Options of the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. provided for in those items may demand that the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. purchase, at a fair price, the Share Options held by the same:

- (i) Absorption-type Merger: Share Options other than those for which provisions on the matters set forth in Article 749(1)(iv) or (v) meet the conditions set forth in item (iii) of Article 236(1) (limited to those related to (a) of that item);
- (ii) Absorption-type Company Split (limited to cases where the Succeeding Company in Absorption-type Company Split is a Stock Company): among the following Share Options, Share Options other than those for which provisions on the matters set forth in Article 758(v) or (vi) meet the conditions set forth in item (viii) of Article 236(1) (limited to those related to (b) of that item):
- (a) Share Options under Absorption-type Company Split Agreement; and

C-7

Table of Contents

- (b) Share Options other than Share Options under Absorption-type Company Split Agreement and for which there are provisions to the effect that, in the case of effecting an Absorption-type Company Split, Share Options of the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split shall be delivered to holders of such Share Options; or
- (iii) Share Exchange (limited to cases where the Wholly Owning Parent Company in Share Exchange is a Stock Company): Among the following Share Options, Share Options other than those for which provisions on the matters set forth in item (iv) or item (v) of Article 768(1) meet the conditions set forth in item (viii) of Article 236(1) (limited to those related to (d) of that item):
- (a) Share Options under Share Exchange Agreement; and
- (b) Share Options other than Share Options under Share Exchange Agreement and for which there are provisions to the effect that, in the case of effecting a Share Exchange, Share Options of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange shall be delivered to holders of such Share Options.
- (2) If holders of the Share Options attached to Bonds with Share Options intend to make the demand under the preceding paragraph (hereinafter referred to as a Share Option Purchase Demand in this Division), they shall also make a demand for the purchase of the Bonds pertaining to Bonds with Share Options; provided, however, that this shall not apply in cases where it is otherwise provided for with respect to the Share Options attached to such Bonds with Share Options.
- (3) The Absorbed Stock Companies, etc. listed in the following items shall notify holders of Share Options provided for in those items that they will effect an Absorption-type Merger, etc. and the trade name and domicile of the Surviving Company, etc., by 20 days prior to the Effective Day:
- (i) Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger: all Share Options;
- (ii) Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split in cases where the Succeeding Company in Absorption-type Company Split is a Stock Company: the following Share Options:
- (a) Share Options under Absorption-type Company Split Agreement; and
- (b) Share Options other than Share Options under Absorption-type Company Split Agreement and for which there are provisions to the effect that, in the case of effecting an Absorption-type Company Split, Share Options of the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split shall be delivered to holders of such Share Options;
- (iii) Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange in cases where the Wholly Owning Parent Company in Share Exchange is a Stock Company: the following Share Options:
- (a) Share Options under Share Exchange Agreement; and
- (b) Share Options other than Share Options under Share Exchange Agreement and for which there are provisions to the effect that, in the case of effecting a Share Exchange, Share Options of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange shall be delivered to holders of such Share Options.
- (4) A public notice may be substituted for the notice under the provisions of the preceding paragraph.
- (5) A Share Option Purchase Demand shall be made, within the period from the day twenty days prior to the Effective Day to the day immediately preceding the Effective Day, by disclosing the features and number of Share Options relating to such Share Option Purchase Demand.

C-8

Table of Contents

- (6) Holders of Share Options who have made Share Option Purchase Demands may withdraw their Share Option Purchase Demands only in cases where they obtain the approval of the Absorbed Stock Company, etc.
- (7) If the Absorption-type Merger, etc. is cancelled, the Share Option Purchase Demands shall become ineffective.
- (Determination, etc. of Price of Share Options)

Article 788 In cases where a Share Option Purchase Demand is made, if an agreement on the determination of the price of the Share Options (in cases where such Share Options are those attached to Bonds with Share Options, if there is a demand for the purchase of Bonds pertaining to such Bonds with Share Options, they shall include such Bonds; hereinafter the same shall apply in this Article) is reached between the holder of Share Options and the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. (or, after the Effective Day in cases of effecting an Absorption-type Merger, the Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger; hereinafter the same shall apply in this Article), the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. shall make payment within 60 days from the Effective Day.

- (2) If no agreement on the determination of the price of the Share Options is reached within thirty days from the Effective Day, holders of Share Options or the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. may file a petition to the court for a determination of the price within 30 days after the expiration of that period.
- (3) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (6) of the preceding Article, in the cases prescribed in the preceding paragraph, if the petition under that paragraph is not filed within 60 days from the Effective Day, holders of Share Options may withdraw their Share Option Purchase Demands at any time after the expiration of such period.
- (4) The Absorbed Stock Company, etc. shall also pay interest on the price determined by the court which shall be calculated at the rate of six percent per annum from and including the day of the expiration of the period referred to in paragraph (1).
- (5) The purchase of Share Options relating to a Share Option Purchase Demand shall become effective at the times provided for in the following items for the categories of Share Options set forth respectively in those items:
- (i) Share Options provided for in paragraph (1)(i) of the preceding Article: the Effective Day;
- (ii) Share Options set forth in paragraph (1)(ii)(a) of the preceding Article: the Effective Day.
- (iii) Share Options set forth in paragraph (1)(ii)(b) of the preceding Article: the time of payment of the price of such Share Options;
- (iv) Share Options set forth in paragraph (1)(iii)(a) of the preceding Article: the Effective Day.
- (v) Share Options set forth in paragraph (1)(iii)(b) of the preceding Article: the time of payment of the price of such Share Options.
- (6) If an Absorbed Stock Company, etc. receives a Share Option Purchase Demand with respect to a Share Option for which a Share Option certificate is issued, it shall pay the price of the Share Option relating to such Share Option Purchase Demand in exchange for the Share Option certificate.
- (7) If an Absorbed Stock Company, etc. receives a Share Option Purchase Demand with respect to a Share Option attached to a Bond with a Share Option for which a certificate for a Bond with a Share Option is issued, it shall pay the price of the Share Option relating to such Share Option Purchase Demand in exchange for such certificate for a Bond with a Share Option.

C-9

Table of Contents

(Objections of Creditors)

Article 789 In the cases listed in the following items, the creditors provided for in those items may state their objections to the Absorption-type Merger, etc. to the Absorbed Stock Company, etc.:

- (i) in cases of effecting an Absorption-type Merger: creditors of the Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger;
- (ii) in cases of effecting an Absorption-type Company Split: creditors of the Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split who are unable to request the Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split to perform the obligations (including performance of the guarantee obligations that the Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split jointly and severally assumes with the Succeeding Company in Absorption-type Company Split as a guarantor) (or, in the case where there are provisions on the matter set forth in Article 758(viii) or Article 760(vii), creditors of the Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split); and
- (iii) in cases where the Share Options under Share Exchange Agreement are Share Options attached to Bonds with Share Options: bondholders pertaining to such Bonds with Share Options.
- (2) In cases where all or part of the creditors of the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. are able to state their objection pursuant to the provisions of the preceding paragraph, the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. shall give public notice of the matters listed below in the official gazette and shall give notices separately to each known creditor (limited to one who is able to state an objection pursuant to the provisions of such paragraph), if any; provided, however, that the period under item (iv) may not be less than one month:
- (i) a statement that an Absorption-type Merger, etc. will be effected;
- (ii) the trade name and domicile of the Surviving Company, etc.;
- (iii) the matters prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as the matters regarding the Financial Statements of the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. and the Surviving Company, etc. (limited to a Stock Company); and
- (iv) a statement to the effect that creditors may state their objections within a certain period of time.
- (3) Notwithstanding the provisions of the preceding paragraph, if the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. gives public notice under that paragraph by the Method of Public Notice listed in item (ii) or item (iii) of paragraph (1) of Article 939 in accordance with the provisions of the articles of incorporation under the provisions of that paragraph in addition to the official gazette, the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. is not required to give separate notices under the provisions of the preceding paragraph (excluding such notices to creditors of the obligations of the Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split that have arisen due to a tort in the case of effecting an Absorption-type Company Split).
- (4) In cases where creditors do not raise any objections within the period under paragraph (2)(iv), such creditors shall be deemed to have approved the Absorption-type Merger, etc.
- (5) In cases where creditors raise objections within the period under paragraph (2)(iv), the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. shall make payment or provide reasonable security to such creditors, or entrust equivalent property to a Trust Company, etc. for the purpose of having such creditors receive the payment; provided, however, that this shall not apply if there is no risk of harm to such creditors by such Absorption-type Merger, etc.

C-10

Table of Contents

(Change in the Effective Day of an Absorption-type Merger, etc.)

Article 790 An Absorbed Stock Company, etc. may change the Effective Day by agreement with the Surviving Company, etc.

- (2) In the cases prescribed in the preceding paragraph, the Absorbed Stock Company, etc. shall give public notice of the changed Effective Day by the day immediately preceding the original Effective Day (or, immediately preceding the changed Effective Day, in the case where the changed Effective Day comes before the original Effective Day).
- (3) When the Effective Day is changed pursuant to the provisions of paragraph (1), the provisions of this Section and Article 750, Article 752, Article 759, Article 761, Article 769, and Article 771 shall apply by deeming the changed Effective Day to be the Effective Day.

(Keeping and Inspection, etc. of Documents, etc. Concerning an Absorption-type Company Split or Share Exchange)

Article 791 The Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split or the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange shall, without delay after the Effective Day, prepare what are provided for in the following items for the categories set forth respectively in those items, jointly with the Succeeding Company in Absorption-type Company Split or the Wholly Owning Parent Company in Share Exchange:

- (i) Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split: documents or Electromagnetic Records that state or record the rights and obligations that the Succeeding Company in Absorption-type Company Split succeeded to by transfer from the Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split through the Absorption-type Company Split and any other matters prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as those concerning an Absorption-type Company Split; and
- (ii) Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange: documents or Electromagnetic Records that state or record the number of shares of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange acquired by the Wholly Owning Parent Company through the Share Exchange and any other matters prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as those concerning a Share Exchange.
- (2) A Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split or a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange shall, for a period of six months from the Effective Day, keep the documents or Electromagnetic Records set forth in the items of the preceding paragraph at its head office.
- (3) Shareholders, creditors and any other interested parties of a Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split may make the following requests to the Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split at any time during its business hours; provided, however, that the fees designated by said Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split are required to be paid in order to make the requests set forth in item (ii) or item (iv):
- (i) requests for inspection of the documents set forth in the preceding paragraph;
- (ii) requests for delivery of a transcript or extract of the documents set forth in the preceding paragraph;
- (iii) requests for inspection of anything that indicates the matters recorded in the Electromagnetic Records set forth in the preceding paragraph in a manner prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice; and
- (iv) requests that the matters recorded in the Electromagnetic Records set forth in the preceding paragraph be provided by the Electromagnetic Method designated by the Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split, or requests for the delivery of any document that states such matters.

C-11

Table of Contents

(4) The provisions of the preceding paragraph shall apply mutatis mutandis to a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange. In such cases, the phrase shareholders, creditors and any other interested parties of a Splitting Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split shall be deemed to be replaced with persons who were shareholders or holders of Share Options of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange as of the Effective Day.

(Special Provisions on Dividends of Surplus, etc.)

Article 792 The provisions of Article 458 and Part II, Chapter V, Section 6 shall not apply to the acts listed below:

- (i) acquisition of shares set forth in Article 758(viii)(a) or Article 760(vii)(a); and
- (ii) distribution of dividends of surplus set forth in Article 758(viii)(b) or Article 760(vii)(b).

Subsection 2 Procedures for the Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger, the Succeeding Company in Absorption-type Company Split and the Wholly Owning Parent Company in Share Exchange

Division 1 Procedures for a Stock Company

(Keeping and Inspection, etc. of Documents, etc. Concerning an Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc.)

Article 794 The Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger, the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split or the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange (hereinafter referred to as the Surviving Stock Company, etc. in this Division) shall, from the day on which the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. began to be kept until the day on which six months have elapsed from the Effective Day, keep documents or Electromagnetic Records that state or record the contents of the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. and other matters prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice at its head office.

- (2) The day on which the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. began to be kept prescribed in the preceding paragraph means the earliest of the following days:
- (i) if the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. is required to be approved by a resolution of a shareholders meeting (including a Class Meeting), the day two weeks prior to the day of the shareholders meeting (or, in the cases prescribed in paragraph (1) of Article 319, the day when the proposal under that paragraph is submitted);
- (ii) the day of the notice under the provisions of paragraph 3 of Article 797 or the day of the public notice under paragraph (4) of that Article, whichever is earlier; or
- (iii) if the procedures under the provisions of Article 799 are required to be carried out, the day of the public notice under the provisions of paragraph (2) of that Article or the day of the notice under the provisions of that paragraph, whichever is earlier.
- (3) Shareholders and creditors of a Surviving Stock Company, etc. (or, in the case where the Monies, etc. to be delivered to shareholders of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange or those prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as being equivalent thereto (excluding the case prescribed in Article 768(1)(iv)(c)), shareholders) may make the following requests to said Surviving Stock Company, etc. at any time during its business hours; provided, however, that the fees designated by said Surviving Stock Company, etc. are required to be paid in order to make the requests set forth in item (ii) or item (iv):
- (i) requests for inspection of the documents set forth in paragraph (1);

C-12

Table of Contents

- (ii) requests for delivery of a transcript or extract of the documents set forth in paragraph (1);
- (iii) requests for inspection of anything that indicates the matters recorded in the Electromagnetic Records set forth in paragraph (1) in a manner prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice; and
- (iv) requests that the matters recorded in the Electromagnetic Records set forth in paragraph (1) be provided by the Electromagnetic Method designated by the Surviving Stock Company, etc., or requests for the delivery of any document that states such matters.

(Approval, etc. of the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc.)

Article 795 A Surviving Stock Company, etc. shall obtain the approval of the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. by a resolution of a shareholders meeting by the day immediately preceding the Effective Day.

- (2) In the cases listed below, a director shall explain to that effect at the shareholders meeting set forth in the preceding paragraph:
- (i) in cases where the amount prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as the amount of obligations that the Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger or the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split succeeds to by transfer from the Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or the Splitting Company in Absorption-type Company Split (referred to as the Amount of Succeeded Obligations in the following item) exceeds the amount prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as the amount of assets that the Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger or the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split succeeds to by transfer from the Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or the Splitting Company in Absorption-type Company Split (referred to as the Amount of Succeeded Assets in the following item);
- (ii) in cases where the book value of the Monies, etc. (excluding shares, etc. of the Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger or the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split) delivered by the Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger or the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split to shareholders of the Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger, to partners of the Membership Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or to the Splitting Company in Absorption-type Company Split exceeds the amount obtained by deducting the Amount of Succeeded Obligations from the Amount of Succeeded Assets; or
- (iii) in cases where the book value of the Monies, etc. (excluding shares, etc. of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange) delivered by the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange to shareholders of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange exceeds the amount prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as the amount of shares of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange to be acquired by the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange.
- (3) In cases where the assets of the Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or the Splitting Company in Absorption-type Company Split include shares of the Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger or the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split, a director shall explain the matters concerning such shares at the shareholders meeting set forth in paragraph (1).
- (4) Where the Surviving Stock Company, etc. is a Company with Class Shares, in the cases listed in the following items, an Absorption-type Merger, etc. shall not become effective without a resolution of a Class Meeting constituted by Class Shareholders of the class of shares provided for respectively in those items (limited to Shares with a Restriction on Transfer and for which the provisions of the articles of incorporation set forth in Article 199(4) do not exist) (in cases where there are two or more classes of shares relating to such Class Shareholders, the respective Class Meetings constituted by Class Shareholders categorized by the class of

C-13

Table of Contents

such two or more classes of shares); provided, however, that this shall not apply to cases where there is no Class Shareholder who is able to exercise a voting right at such Class Meeting:

- (i) in cases where the Monies, etc. delivered to shareholders of the Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or to partners of the Membership Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger are shares of the Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger: the class of shares set forth in Article 749(1)(ii)(a);
- (ii) in cases where the Monies, etc. delivered to the Splitting Company in Absorption-type Company Split are shares of the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split: the class of shares set forth in Article 758(iv)(a); or
- (iii) in cases where the Monies, etc. delivered to shareholders of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange are shares of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange: the class of shares set forth in Article 768(1)(ii)(a).

(Cases Where Approval of the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. Is Not Required, etc.)

Article 796 The provisions of paragraphs (1) to (3) of the preceding Article shall not apply in the cases where the Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger, the Splitting Company in Absorption-type Company Split or the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange (hereinafter referred to as the Absorbed Company, etc. in this Division) is the Special Controlling Company of the Surviving Stock Company, etc.; provided, however, that this shall not apply in the cases where all or part of the Monies, etc. to be delivered to shareholders of the Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange, to partners of the Membership Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or to the Splitting Company in Absorption-type Company Split are Shares with a Restriction on Transfer, etc. of the Surviving Stock Company, etc., and the Surviving Stock Company, etc. is not a Public Company.

- (2) In the cases prescribed in the main clause of the preceding paragraph, in any one of the following cases where shareholders of the Surviving Stock Company, etc. are likely to suffer disadvantage, shareholders of the Surviving Stock Company, etc. may demand that the Surviving Stock Company, etc. refrain from effecting the Absorption-type Merger, etc.:
- (i) in cases where the Absorption-type Merger, etc. violates the applicable laws and regulations or articles of incorporation; or
- (ii) in cases where the matters set forth in Article 749(1)(ii) or (iii), Article 758(iv) or Article 768(1)(ii) or (iii) are grossly improper in light of the financial status of the Surviving Stock Company, etc. or the Absorbed Company, etc.
- (3) The provisions of paragraphs (1) to (3) of the preceding Article shall not apply in cases where the amount set forth in item (i) does not exceed one-fifth (or, in cases where a lesser proportion is prescribed in the articles of incorporation of the Surviving Stock Company, etc., such proportion) of the amount set forth in item (ii); provided, however, that this shall not apply in the cases listed in the items of paragraph (2) of the preceding Article or the cases prescribed in the proviso to paragraph (1):
- (i) the total amount of the amounts listed below:
- (a) the amount obtained by multiplying the number of shares of the Surviving Stock Company, etc. to be delivered to shareholders of the Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange, to partners of the Membership Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or to the Splitting Company in Absorption-type Company Split (hereinafter referred to as Shareholders, etc. of the Absorbed Company, etc. in this item) by the amount of net assets per share;

C-14

Table of Contents

- (b) the total amount of the book value of Bonds, Share Options or Bonds with Share Options of the Surviving Stock Company, etc. to be delivered to Shareholders, etc. of the Absorbed Company, etc.;
- (c) the total amount of the book value of property other than shares, etc. of the Surviving Stock Company, etc. to be delivered to Shareholders, etc. of the Absorbed Company, etc.; and
- (ii) the amount calculated by the method specified by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as the total assets of the Surviving Stock Company, etc.
- (4) In the cases prescribed in the main clause of the preceding paragraph, if shareholders that hold the shares (limited to those that entitle the shareholders to exercise voting rights at a shareholders meeting under paragraph (1) of the preceding article) in the number prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice notify the Surviving Stock Company, etc. to the effect that such shareholders dissent from the Absorption-type Merger, etc., within two weeks from the day of the notice under the provisions of paragraph (3) of the following Article or the public notice under paragraph (4) of that Article, such Surviving Stock Company, etc. must obtain the approval of the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. by a resolution of a shareholders meeting no later than the day immediately preceding the Effective Day.
- (Dissenting Shareholders Share Purchase Demand)
- Article 797 In cases of effecting an Absorption-type Merger, etc., dissenting shareholders may demand that the Surviving Stock Company, etc. purchase, at a fair price, the shares held by such shareholders.
- (2) The dissenting shareholders provided for in the preceding paragraph shall mean the shareholders provided for in the following items in the cases listed in the same items:
- (i) in cases where a resolution of a shareholders meeting (including a Class Meeting) is required to effect the Absorption-type Merger, etc.: the following shareholders:
- (a) shareholders who gave notice to such Surviving Stock Company, etc. to the effect that they dissented from such Absorption-type Merger, etc. prior to such shareholders meeting and who dissented from such Absorption-type Merger, etc. at such shareholders meeting (limited to those who can exercise voting rights at such shareholders meeting);
- (b) shareholders who are unable to exercise voting rights at such shareholders meeting; and
- (ii) in cases other than those prescribed in the preceding item: all shareholders;
- (3) A Surviving Stock Company, etc. shall notify its shareholders that it will effect an Absorption-type Merger, etc. and the trade name and domicile of the Absorbed Company, etc. (or, in the cases prescribed in Article 795(3), the fact that it will effect an Absorption-type Merger, etc., the trade name and domicile of the Absorbed Company, etc. and the matters concerning shares set forth in that paragraph), by 20 days prior to the Effective Day.
- (4) In the following cases, a public notice may be substituted for the notice under the provisions of the preceding paragraph:
- (i) in cases where the Surviving Stock Company, etc. is a Public Company; or
- (ii) in cases where the Surviving Stock Company, etc. obtains the approval of the Absorption-type Merger Agreement, etc. by the resolution of a shareholders meeting set forth in Article 795(1).

C-15

Table of Contents

- (5) Demands under the provisions of paragraph (1) (hereinafter referred to as the Share Purchase Demand in this Division) shall be made, within the period from the day twenty days prior to the Effective Day to the day immediately preceding the Effective Day, by disclosing the number of shares relating to such Share Purchase Demand (or, for a Company with Classes of Shares, the classes of the shares and the number of shares for each class).
- (6) Shareholders who made Share Purchase Demands may withdraw their Share Purchase Demands only in cases where such shareholders obtain the approval of the Surviving Stock Company, etc.
- (7) If the Absorption-type Merger, etc. is cancelled, the Share Purchase Demands shall become ineffective.

(Determination, etc. of Price of Shares)

Article 798 In cases where a Share Purchase Demand is made, if an agreement on the determination of the price of the shares is reached between the shareholder and the Surviving Stock Company, etc., the Surviving Stock Company, etc. shall make payment within 60 days from the Effective Day.

- (2) If no agreement on the determination of the price of the shares is reached within 30 days from the Effective Day, shareholders or the Surviving Stock Company, etc. may file a petition to the court for a determination of the price within 30 days after the expiration of that period.
- (3) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (6) of the preceding Article, in the cases prescribed in the preceding paragraph, if the petition under that paragraph is not filed within 60 days from the Effective Day, shareholders may withdraw their Share Purchase Demands at any time after the expiration of such period.
- (4) The Surviving Stock Company, etc. shall also pay interest on the price determined by the court which shall be calculated at the rate of six percent per annum from and including the day of the expiration of the period referred to in paragraph (1).
- (5) The purchase of shares relating to a Share Purchase Demand shall become effective at the time of payment of the price of such shares.
- (6) If a Company Issuing Share Certificates receives a Share Purchase Demand with respect to shares for which share certificates are issued, the Company must pay the price of the shares relating to such Share Purchase Demand in exchange for the share certificates.

(Objections of Creditors)

Article 799 In the cases listed in the following items, the creditors provided for in those items may state their objections to the Absorption-type Merger, etc. to the Surviving Stock Company, etc.:

- (i) in cases of effecting an Absorption-type Merger: creditors of the Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger;
- (ii) in cases of effecting an Absorption-type Company Split: creditors of the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split; or
- (iii) in cases of effecting a Share Exchange other than where the Monies, etc. to be delivered to shareholders of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange are only shares of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange or those prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as being equivalent thereto, or in the cases prescribed in Article 768(1)(iv): creditors of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange.

C-16

Table of Contents

- (2) In cases where the creditors of the Surviving Stock Company, etc. are able to state their objection pursuant to the provisions of the preceding paragraph, the Surviving Stock Company, etc. shall give public notice of the matters listed below in the official gazette and shall give notices separately to each known creditor, if any; provided, however, that the period under item (iv) may not be less than one month:
- (i) a statement that an Absorption-type Merger, etc. will be effected;
- (ii) the trade name and domicile of the Absorbed Company, etc.;
- (iii) the matters prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as the matters regarding the Financial Statements of the Surviving Stock Company, etc. and the Absorbed Company, etc. (limited to a Stock Company); and
- (iv) a statement to the effect that creditors may state their objections within a certain period of time.
- (3) Notwithstanding the provisions of the preceding paragraph, if the Surviving Stock Company, etc. gives public notice under that paragraph by Method of Public Notice listed in item (ii) or item (iii) of paragraph (1) of Article 939 in accordance with the provisions of the articles of incorporation under the provisions of that paragraph in addition to the official gazette, the Surviving Stock Company, etc. is not required to give separate notices under the provisions of the preceding paragraph.
- (4) In cases where creditors do not raise any objections within the period under paragraph (2)(iv), such creditors shall be deemed to have approved the Absorption-type Merger, etc.
- (5) In cases where creditors raise objections within the period under paragraph (2)(iv), the Surviving Stock Company, etc. shall make payment or provide reasonable security to such creditors, or entrust equivalent property to a Trust Company, etc. for the purpose of having such creditors receive the payment; provided, however, that this shall not apply if there is no risk of harm to such creditors by such Absorption-type Merger, etc.

(Special Provisions on Cases Where the Monies, etc. to Be Delivered to Shareholders, etc. of the Absorbed Company, etc. Are the Parent Company s Shares of the Surviving Stock Company, etc.)

Article 800 Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 135(1), in cases where all or part of the Monies, etc. to be delivered to shareholders of the Stock Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange, to partners of the Membership Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger or to the Splitting Company in Absorption-type Company Split (hereinafter referred to as Shareholders, etc. of the Absorbed Company, etc. in this paragraph) are the Parent Company s Shares (meaning the Parent Company s Shares prescribed in paragraph (1) of that Article; hereinafter the same shall apply in this Article) of the Surviving Stock Company, etc., the Surviving Stock Company, etc. may acquire such Parent Company s Shares in a number not exceeding the total number of such Parent Company s Shares to be delivered to the Shareholders, etc. of the Absorbed Company, etc. at the time of the Absorption-type Merger, etc.

(2) Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 135(3), the Surviving Stock Company, etc. set forth in the preceding paragraph may hold the Parent Company s Shares of the Surviving Stock Company, etc. until the Effective Day; provided, however, that this shall not apply when the Absorption-type Merger, etc. is cancelled.

(Keeping and Inspection, etc. of Documents, etc. Concerning an Absorption-type Merger, etc.)

Article 801 The Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger shall, without delay after the Effective Day, prepare documents or Electromagnetic Records that state or record the rights and obligations that the Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger succeeded to by transfer from the Company Absorbed in Absorption-type Merger through the Absorption-type Merger and any other matters prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as those concerning an Absorption-type Merger.

(2) The Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split (limited to the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split where the Limited Liability Company effects the Absorption-type

C-17

Table of Contents

Company Split) shall, without delay after the Effective Day, prepare, jointly with the Splitting Limited Liability Company in Absorption-type Company Split, documents or Electromagnetic Records that state or record the rights and obligations that the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split succeeded to by transfer from the Splitting Limited Liability Company in Absorption-type Company Split through the Absorption-type Company Split and any other matters prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as those concerning an Absorption-type Company Split.

- (3) Each of the Surviving Stock Companies, etc. listed in the following items shall, for a period of six months from the Effective Day, keep what are specified respectively in those items at its head office:
- (i) Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger: documents or Electromagnetic Records set forth in paragraph (1);
- (ii) Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split: documents or Electromagnetic Records set forth in the preceding paragraph or Article 791(1)(i); and
- (iii) Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange: documents or Electromagnetic Records set forth in Article 791(1)(ii).
- (4) Shareholders and creditors of the Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger may make the following requests to said Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger at any time during its business hours; provided, however, that the fees designated by said Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger are required to be paid in order to make the requests set forth in item (ii) or item (iv):
- (i) requests for inspection of the documents set forth in item (i) of the preceding paragraph;
- (ii) requests for delivery of a transcript or extract of the documents set forth in item (i) of the preceding paragraph;
- (iii) requests for inspection of anything that indicates the matters recorded in the Electromagnetic Records set forth in item (i) of the preceding paragraph in a manner prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice; and
- (iv) requests that the matters recorded in the Electromagnetic Records set forth in item (i) of the preceding paragraph be provided by the Electromagnetic Method designated by the Stock Company Surviving Absorption-type Merger, or requests for the delivery of any document that states such matters.
- (5) The provisions of the preceding paragraph shall apply mutatis mutandis to the Succeeding Stock Company in Absorption-type Company Split. In such cases, the phrase shareholders and creditors in that paragraph shall be deemed to be replaced with shareholders, creditors and any other interested parties, and the term item (i) of the preceding paragraph in the items of that paragraph shall be deemed to be replaced with item (ii) of the preceding paragraph.
- (6) The provisions of paragraph (4) shall apply mutatis mutandis to the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange. In such cases, the phrase—shareholders and creditors—in that paragraph shall be deemed to be replaced with—shareholders and creditors (or, in cases where Monies, etc. to be delivered to shareholders of the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company in Share Exchange are limited to shares of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange or those prescribed by the applicable Ordinance of the Ministry of Justice as being equivalent thereto (excluding the case prescribed in Article 768(1)(iv)(c)), shareholders of the Wholly Owning Parent Stock Company in Share Exchange), and the term—item (i) of the preceding paragraph—in the items of that paragraph shall be deemed to be replaced with—item (iii) of the preceding paragraph.

Source: Unofficial translation of the Companies Act of Japan, published by Ministry of Justice, Government of Japan

C-18

PART II

Information Not Required in Prospectus

Item 20. Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Article 330 of the Companies Act makes the provisions of Section 10, Chapter 2, Book III of the Civil Code of Japan applicable to the relationship between the Registrant and its directors and corporate auditors. Section 10, among other things, provides in effect that:

- (1) Any director or corporate auditor of a company may demand advance payment of expenses which are considered necessary for the management of the affairs of such company entrusted to him;
- (2) If a director or a corporate auditor of a company has defrayed any expenses which are considered necessary for the management of the affairs of such company entrusted to him, he may demand reimbursement therefor from the company;
- (3) If a director or a corporate auditor has assumed an obligation necessary for the management of the affairs entrusted to him, he may require the company to perform it in his place or, if it is not due, to furnish adequate security; and
- (4) If a director or a corporate auditor, without any fault on his part, sustains damage through the management of the affairs entrusted to him, he may demand compensation therefor from the company.

Under Article 388 of the Companies Act, a company may not refuse a demand from a corporate auditor referred to in subparagraphs (1) through (3) above unless the company establishes that the relevant expense or obligation was or is not necessary for the performance of the corporate auditor s duties

The Registrant maintains insurance on behalf of its directors and corporate auditors against liabilities asserted against them in shareholder derivative or other lawsuits.

Item 21. Exhibits and Financial Statements Schedules

(a) Exhibits

- 2.1* Share Exchange Agreement between Toyota Motor Corporation and Kanto Auto Works, Ltd. (English translation filed herewith as Appendix A to the prospectus which is part of this Registration Statement)
- 3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Toyota Motor Corporation (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Toyota s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 filed with the SEC on June 24, 2011 (file no. 001-14948))
- 3.2 Amended and Restated Regulations of the Board of Directors of the Toyota Motor Corporation (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2 to Toyota s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 filed with the SEC on June 24, 2011 (file no. 001-14948))
- 3.3 Amended and Restated Regulations of the Board of Corporate Auditors of Toyota Motor Corporation (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Toyota s Registration Statement on Form F-3 filed with the SEC on November 7, 2006 (file no. 333-138469))

- 3.4 Amended and Restated Share Handling Regulations of the Toyota Motor Corporation (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Toyota s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 filed with the SEC on June 24, 2009 (file no. 001-14948))
- 4.1 Form of Deposit Agreement among the Registrant, The Bank of New York (predecessor of The Bank of New York Mellon), as depositary, and the owners and beneficial owners from time to time of American Depositary Receipts, including the form of American Depositary Receipt (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to Toyota s Registration Statement on Form F-6, filed with the SEC on November 7, 2006 (file no. 333-138477))

II-1

Table of Contents

4.2	Form of ADR (included in Exhibit 4.1)	
5.1**	Opinion of TMI Associates regarding legality of securities	
8.1**	Opinion of TMI Associates regarding Japanese tax consequences of the share exchange (included in Exhibit 5.1)	
8.2**	Opinion of Shearman & Sterling LLP regarding United States Federal tax consequences of the share exchange	
21.1	Subsidiaries of Toyota Motor Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8.1 to Toyota s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 filed with the SEC on June 24, 2011 (file no. 001-14948))	
23.1	Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers Aarata	
23.2	Consent of TMI Associates (included in Exhibit 5.1)	
23.3	Consent of Shearman & Sterling LLP (included in Exhibit 8.2)	
24.1*	Powers of Attorney	
99.1**	Notice for extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto Auto Works, Ltd. and attachments thereto (English translation)	
99.2**	Form of mail-in voting card for the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto Auto Works, Ltd. (English translation)	
99.3*	Selected Articles of the Companies Act of Japan (English translation filed herewith as Appendix C to the prospectus which is par of this Registration Statement)	
99.4*	Consent of Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd., the financial advisor to Kanto Auto Works, Ltd.	

Filed herewith.

- * Previously filed.
- ** To be filed by amendment.
- (b) Financial Statement Schedules

Not applicable.

(c) Reports, Opinions and Appraisals

Not applicable.

Item 22. Undertakings

- (a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:
 - (1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this Registration Statement:
 - (i) to include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;
 - (ii) to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the Registration Statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information in the Registration Statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the

107

Table of Contents

total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the Calculation of Registration Fee table in the effective Registration Statement; and

- (iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the Registration Statement or any material change to such information in the Registration Statement.
- (2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
- (4) To file a post-effective amendment to the Registration Statement to include any financial statements required by Item 8.A. of Form 20-F at the start of any delayed offering or throughout a continuous offering. Financial statements and information otherwise required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933 need not be furnished, provided that the registrant includes in the prospectus, by means of a post-effective amendment, financial statements required pursuant to this paragraph (a)(4) and other information necessary to ensure that all other information in the prospectus is at least as current as the date of those financial statements.
- (5) That, for purpose of determining any liability under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant s annual report pursuant to section 13(a) or section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan s annual report pursuant to 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial *bona fide* of offering thereof.
- (6) That prior to any public reoffering of the securities registered hereunder through use of a prospectus which is a part of this Registration Statement, by any person or party who is deemed to be an underwriter within the meaning of Rule 145(c), the issuer undertakes that such reoffering prospectus will contain the information called for by the applicable registration form with respect to reofferings by persons who may be deemed underwriters, in addition to the information called for by the other items of the applicable form
- (7) That every prospectus (i) that is filed pursuant to paragraph (6) immediately preceding, or (ii) that purports to meet the requirements of Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933 and is used in connection with an offering of securities subject to Rule 415, will be filed as a part of an amendment to the Registration Statement and will not be used until such amendment is effective, and that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment will be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time will be deemed to be the initial *bona fide* offering thereof.
- (8) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers or controlling persons of the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of

II-3

Table of Contents

the Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

- (b) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes: (i) to respond to requests for information that is incorporated by reference into the prospectus pursuant to Item 4, 10(b), 11 or 13 of this form, within one business day of receipt of such request, and to send the incorporated documents by first class mail or other equally prompt means; and (ii) to arrange or provide for a facility in the U.S. for the purpose of responding to such requests. The undertaking in subparagraph (i) above includes information contained in documents filed subsequent to the effective date of the Registration Statement through the date of responding to the request.
- (c) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information concerning a transaction and the company being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and included in the Registration Statement when it became effective.

II-4

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the Registrant has duly caused this amendment to the Registration Statement on Form F-4 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in Toyota City, Aichi, Japan on August 31, 2011.

TOYOTA MOTOR CORPORATION

By: /s/ Таканіко Ілсні Name: Takahiko Ijichi Title: Authorized Signatory

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this amendment to the Registration Statement on Form F-4 has been signed by the following persons in the capacities indicated on August 31, 2011.

Name	Title
*	Chairman of the Board (Principal executive officer)
Fujio Cho	
*	President, Member of the Board
Akio Toyoda	
*	Executive Vice President, Member of the Board
Takeshi Uchiyamada	
*	Executive Vice President, Member of the Board
Yukitoshi Funo	
*	Executive Vice President, Member of the Board
Atsushi Niimi	
*	Executive Vice President, Member of the Board
Shinichi Sasaki	
*	Executive Vice President, Member of the Board (Principal financial and accounting officer)
Satoshi Ozawa	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
*	Director, Senior Managing Officer
Nobuyori Kodaira	
*	Director, Senior Managing Officer
Mamoru Furuhashi	

/s/ Таканіко Ілсні Director, Senior Managing Officer

Takahiko Ijichi

Director, Senior Managing Officer

Yasumori Ihara

II-5

Authorized Representative in the United States

Toyota Motor Sales, U.S.A., Inc.

By: *
Name: Christopher P. Reynolds
Title: Authorized Signatory
Dated: August 31, 2011

*By: /s/ Таканіко Ілісні Name: Takahiko Ijichi Title: Attorney-in-fact Dated: August 31, 2011

II-6

EXHIBIT INDEX

2.1*	Share Exchange Agreement between Toyota Motor Corporation and Kanto Auto Works, Ltd. (English translation filed herewith as Appendix A to the prospectus which is part of this Registration Statement)	
3.1	Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Toyota Motor Corporation (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Toyota s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 filed with the SEC on June 24, 2011 (file no. 001-14948))	
3.2	Amended and Restated Regulations of the Board of Directors of the Toyota Motor Corporation (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2 to Toyota s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 filed with the SEC on June 24, 2011 (file no. 001-14948))	
3.3	Amended and Restated Regulations of the Board of Corporate Auditors of Toyota Motor Corporation (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Toyota s Registration Statement on Form F-3 filed with the SEC on November 7, 2006 (file no. 333-138469))	
3.4	Amended and Restated Share Handling Regulations of the Toyota Motor Corporation (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Toyota s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 filed with the SEC on June 24, 2009 (file no. 001-14948))	
4.1	Form of Deposit Agreement among the Registrant, The Bank of New York (predecessor of The Bank of New York Mellon), as depositary, and the owners and beneficial owners from time to time of American Depositary Receipts, including the form of American Depositary Receipt (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to Toyota s Registration Statement on Form F-6, filed with the SEC on November 7, 2006 (file no. 333-138477))	
4.2	Form of ADR (included in Exhibit 4.1)	
5.1**	Opinion of TMI Associates regarding legality of securities	
8.1**	Opinion of TMI Associates regarding Japanese tax consequences of the share exchange (included in Exhibit 5.1)	
8.2**	Opinion of Shearman & Sterling LLP regarding United States Federal tax consequences of the share exchange	
21.1	Subsidiaries of Toyota Motor Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8.1 to Toyota s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 filed with the SEC on June 24, 2011 (file no. 001-14948))	
23.1	Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers Aarata	
23.2	Consent of TMI Associates (included in Exhibit 5.1)	
23.3	Consent of Shearman & Sterling LLP (included in Exhibit 8.2)	
24.1*	Powers of Attorney	
99.1**	Notice for extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto Auto Works, Ltd. and attachments thereto (English translation)	
99.2**	Form of mail-in voting card for the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of Kanto Auto Works, Ltd. (English translation)	
99.3*	Selected Articles of the Companies Act of Japan (English translation filed herewith as Appendix C to the prospectus which is part of this Registration Statement)	

Filed herewith.

99.4*

Table of Contents 114

Consent of Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd., the financial advisor to Kanto Auto Works, Ltd.

^{*} Previously filed.

^{**} To be filed by amendment.